
 
 

CABINET 
 

 Monday, 7th February, 2011 
at 5.00 pm 
Council Chamber 

 
This meeting is open to the public 

 
 Members 

 
 Councillor Smith, Leader of the Council 

Councillor Moulton, Cabinet Member for 
Resources and Workforce Planning 
Councillor Baillie, Cabinet Member for Housing 
Councillor Dean, Cabinet Member for Environment 
and Transport 
Councillor Hannides, Cabinet Member for Leisure, 
Culture and Heritage 
Councillor Holmes, Cabinet Member for Children's 
Services and Learning 
Councillor White, Cabinet Member for Adult Social 
Care and Health 
Councillor P Williams, Cabinet Member for Local 
Services and Community Safety 
 

 (QUORUM – 3) 
 
 

 Contacts 
 Cabinet Administrator 

Judy Cordell 
Tel: 023 8083 2766 
Email: judy.cordell@southampton.gov.uk  
 

  

 Director of Corporate Policy and Economic 
Development 
Dawn Baxendale 
Tel: 023 8091 7713 
Email: dawn.baxendale@southampton.gov.uk  

  

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

BACKGROUND AND RELEVANT INFORMATION 
 

The Role of the Executive 
The Cabinet and individual Cabinet Members make 
executive decisions relating to services provided by the 
Council, except for those matters which are reserved for 
decision by the full Council and planning and licensing 
matters which are dealt with by specialist regulatory 
panels.  

Procedure / Public Representations 
Reports for decision by the Cabinet (Part A of the 
agenda) or by individual Cabinet Members (Part B 
of the agenda). Interested members of the public 
may, with the consent of the Cabinet Chair or the 
individual Cabinet Member as appropriate, make 
representations thereon. 

Executive Functions 
The specific functions for which the Cabinet and 
individual Cabinet Members are responsible are 
contained in Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution. Copies 
of the Constitution are available on request or from the 

City Council website, www.southampton.gov.uk  Smoking policy – The Council operates a no-
smoking policy in all civic buildings. 

The Forward Plan 
The Forward Plan is published on a monthly basis and 
provides details of all the key executive decisions to be 
made in the four month period following its publication. 
The Forward Plan is available on request or on the 
Southampton City Council website, 

www.southampton.gov.uk  
 

Mobile Telephones – Please turn off your mobile 
telephone whilst in the meeting.  
 
Fire Procedure – In the event of a fire or other 
emergency, a continuous alarm will sound and 
you will be advised, by officers of the Council, of 
what action to take.  

 
Key Decisions 
A Key Decision is an Executive Decision that is likely to 
have a significant  

• financial impact (£500,000 or more)  

• impact on two or more wards 

• impact on an identifiable community 
Decisions to be discussed or taken that are key  
 

Access – Access is available for disabled people. 
Please contact the Cabinet Administrator who will 
help to make any necessary arrangements.  
 
 
Municipal Year Dates  (Mondays) 

2010 2011 

7 June 17 January  

21 June 7 February 

5 July 14 February 

2 August 14 March 

6 September 11 April  

27 September   

25 October   

22 November   

20 December   
 

Implementation of Decisions  
Any Executive Decision may be “called-in” as part of the 
Council’s Overview and Scrutiny function for review and 
scrutiny.  The relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel may 
ask the Executive to reconsider a decision, but does not 
have the power to change the decision themselves. 
 
Southampton City Council’s Six Priorities 
 

• Providing good value, high quality services 

• Getting the City working 

• Investing in education and training 

• Keeping people safe 

• Keeping the City clean and green 

• Looking after people 
 

 



 

 
CONDUCT OF MEETING 

 
TERMS OF REFERENCE  
 
The terms of reference of the Cabinet, and its 
Executive Members, are set out in Part 3 of the 
Council’s Constitution. 

BUSINESS TO BE DISCUSSED 
 
Only those items listed on the attached 
agenda may be considered at this 
meeting. 
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE 
 
The meeting is governed by the Executive 
Procedure Rules as set out in Part 4 of the 
Council’s Constitution. 
 
 

QUORUM 
 
The minimum number of appointed 
Members required to be in attendance 
to hold the meeting is 3. 
 

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 
 

Members are required to disclose, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, 
both the existence and nature of any “personal” or “prejudicial” interests they may have 
in relation to matters for consideration on this Agenda. 
 

PERSONAL INTERESTS 
 
A Member must regard himself or herself as having a personal interest in any matter:  

 
(i) if the matter relates to an interest in the Member’s register of interests; or 
(ii) if a decision upon a matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting to a greater 

extent than other Council Tax payers, ratepayers and inhabitants of the District, 
the wellbeing or financial position of himself or herself, a relative or a friend or:- 
(a) any employment or business carried on by such person; 
(b) any person who employs or has appointed such a person, any firm in which 

such a person is a partner, or any company of which such a person is a 
director; 

(c) any corporate body in which such a person has a beneficial interest in a 
class of securities exceeding the nominal value of £5,000; or 

(d) any body listed in Article 14(a) to (e) in which such a person holds a 
position of general control or management. 

 
A Member must disclose a personal interest. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cont/… 
 



 

 
Prejudicial Interests 

Having identified a personal interest, a Member must consider whether a member of the 
public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably think that the interest was 
so significant and particular that it could prejudice that Member’s judgement of the public 
interest. If that is the case, the interest must be regarded as “prejudicial” and the Member 
must disclose the interest and withdraw from the meeting room during discussion on the 
item. 
 
It should be noted that a prejudicial interest may apply to part or the whole of an item. 
 
Where there are a series of inter-related financial or resource matters, with a limited 
resource available, under consideration a prejudicial interest in one matter relating to that 
resource may lead to a member being excluded from considering the other matters 
relating to that same limited resource. 
 
There are some limited exceptions.  
 
Note:  Members are encouraged to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or his staff in 
Democratic Services if they have any problems or concerns in relation to the above. 
 

Principles of Decision Making 
 
All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following principles:- 
 

• proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome); 

• due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers; 

• respect for human rights; 

• a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency; 

• setting out what options have been considered; 

• setting out reasons for the decision; and 

• clarity of aims and desired outcomes. 
 

In exercising discretion, the decision maker must: 
 

• understand the law that regulates the decision making power and gives effect to it.  
The decision-maker must direct itself properly in law; 

• take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law requires the 
authority as a matter of legal obligation to take into account); 

• leave out of account irrelevant considerations; 

• act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good; 

• not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, (also known 
as the “rationality” or “taking leave of your senses” principle); 

• comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on an annual 
basis.  Save to the extent authorised by Parliament, ‘live now, pay later’ and forward 
funding are unlawful; and 

• act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness. 
 



 

 

AGENDA 

 

Agendas and papers are now available via the Council’s Website  

 
1 APOLOGIES    

 
 To receive any apologies.  

 
2 DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS    

 
 In accordance with the Local Government Act, 2000, and the Council’s Code of 

Conduct adopted on 16th May, 2007, Members to disclose any personal or 
prejudicial interests in any matter included on the agenda for this meeting. 

 

NOTE:  Members are reminded that, where applicable, they must complete the 
appropriate form recording details of any such interests and hand it to the 
Democratic Support Officer  
 

3 STATEMENT FROM THE LEADER     
 

4 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUDGET REPORT  
 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Housing, detailing the Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) budget report covering the HRA revenue budget for 2010/11 and 2011/12 
and capital budget for the period 2010/11 to 2012/13, attached.  
 

5 GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME - 2011/12 TO 2013/14  
 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Resources and Workforce Planning seeking 
approval to recommend to Council the updated Capital Programme, attached.  
 

6 GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET - 2011/12 TO 2013/14  
 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Resources and Workforce Planning seeking to 
set out the latest estimated overall financial position on the General Fund Revenue 
Budget for 2011/12 to 2012/13 and to outline the main issues that need to be 
addressed in considering the Cabinet’s budget proposals to Council on 16th 
February 2011, attached.  
 
Friday, 28 January 2011 SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  CABINET 

COUNCIL 

SUBJECT: HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUDGET REPORT  

DATE OF DECISION: 7 FEBRUARY 2011 

16 FEBRUARY 2011 

REPORT OF: CABINET MEMBER FOR HOUSING 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

None 

BRIEF SUMMARY 

This is the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budget report covering the HRA revenue 
budget for 2010/11 and 2011/12 and capital budget for the period 2010/11 to 2012/13. 

For the revenue budget this report sets out the revised budgets for the current 
financial year and the budgets for the new financial year for all the day to day housing 
services that are provided to Council tenants.  This report also sets out the proposed 
increases in rents, service charge and other charges to council tenants from April 
2011.  Key revenue issues are: 

• The self-financing arrangements for the HRA will not be in place for 2011/12.  
The new arrangements are included in the Localism Bill.  It is anticipated that 
the new system will start in 2012/13. 

• The Council is in “negative subsidy”.  The underlying payment to CLG is 
increasing from £6.2M in 2010/11 to £7.6M in 2011/12.  However, the actual 
payment for 2010/11 is £2.4M higher at £8.6M because £2.4M of the Major 
Repairs Allowance was taken into account in assessing the subsidy payment 
for 2009/10. 

• In the subsidy determinations the CLG are proposing to amend the target 
completion date for rent restructuring to 2015/16 from 2012/13. 

• Following the CLGs new rent restructuring rules would give an average rent 
increase of 6.99%. 

• It is recommended that charges for garages and parking spaces are increased 
in line with the average rent increase. 

• No increases are proposed on service charges. 

This report also updates the HRA Capital Programme that was approved by Council 
in September 2010.  The capital programme has spending plans of approximately 
£90M over the period 2010/11 to 2012/13.  The focus of spending is: 

• Continuing the investment in estate regeneration, with the launch of the first 
estate wide programme; 

• Maintaining the decent homes standard; 

• Completing the council new build programme; 

• Improvements to housing for older people; 

• Lift refurbishments; 

Agenda Item 4



 2

• Heating upgrades; 

• Window replacement; 

• Energy efficiency measures; and 

• Decent Neighbourhoods Programme.  

The report also provides an update on the Reform of Council Housing Finance. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

CABINET 

 (i) To consider the report and agree that the following 
recommendations be made to Council at the meeting on 16 February 
2011. 

COUNCIL 

 (i) To thank Tenant Association Representatives for their input to the 
capital and revenue budget setting process and to note their views 
as set out in this report. 

 (ii) To agree that, with effect from the 4th April 2011, the current average 
weekly dwelling rent figure of £65.15 should increase by 6.99%, 
which equates to an average increase of £4.55 per week, and to 
approve the following to calculate this increase: 

  • That the percentage increase applied to all dwelling rents 
should be 5.1%, equivalent to an increase of £3.32 per week; 
and 

• That the revised phased introduction of the Government’s 
Rent  Restructuring regime should be followed, giving an 
increase in average rent levels of 1.89% (£1.23 per week) and 

to note that: 

• The total percentage increase in individual rents will vary 
according to the restructured rent of their property in 2015/16. 

 (iii) To agree that the charges for garages and parking spaces for 
2011/12 should be increased by 6.99% in line with the increase in 
average rents. 

 (iv) To approve the Housing Revenue Account Revenue Estimates as 
set out in the attached Appendix 1. 

 (v) To approve the revised Housing Revenue Account Capital 
Programme set out in Appendix 2 which includes total spending of 
£55.028M on work that meets the definition of “affordable housing”. 

 (vi) To approve the use of resources to fund the HRA Capital 
Programme as shown in Appendix 3, including the following use of 
unsupported (prudential) borrowing: 

• £2.150M to support the overall programme (unchanged from 
the report in September 2010); 

 

• £3.356M to fund the new build programme that is not funded 



 3

from HCA grant, 

• £2.230M to fund the digital TV proposals, 

• £0.870M to fund the estate regeneration programme pending 
the receipt of capital receipts from sale of the sites and 

• £3.100M of short term borrowing to sustain the programme in 
2010/11, which can be repaid by the end of 2012/13. 

 (vii) To amend that parking charges at Wyndham Court as set out in 
appendix 5. 

 (viii) To adopt the rent setting policy for new build, acquired and 
converted dwellings set out in Appendix 6.  

 (ix) To note that rental income and service charge payments will be 
paid by tenants over a 48 week period. 

 (x) To note that the overall shortfall in resources of £3.079M to fund the 
capital programme is within the tolerances set by the Executive 
Director for Resources in the approved Medium Term Financial 
Strategy and that plans are in place to close this gap as set out in 
paragraph 35. 

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. The Council’s Constitution sets out the process to be followed in preparing the 
Council’s budget. This process includes a requirement for the Executive to 
formally submit their budget proposals for the forthcoming year to Council.  
The budget proposals in this report cover the HRA revenue budget and 
capital programme. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

2. The alternative option of not setting next year’s rent increase in accordance 
with the new rent restructuring guidance as well as changes to the HRA 
Capital Programme and HRA Revenue Estimates have been discussed with 
the tenant representatives.  These options were not supported. 

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out) 

3. The consultation formed part of the “Having Your Say” approach to tenants 
and resident involvement, with the budget consultation being part of the 
“winter conference”.  This was a well attended meeting with 100 tenants and 
residents in attendance.  The key budget issues set out in this report were 
discussed at this meeting. The budget position has also been the subject of 
discussion with representatives from the Tenants Federation. 

4. There was concern expressed about the increasing “subsidy” payment to the 
CLG and the impact of the Government’s rent restructuring policy on rent 
levels.  It was noted that the HRA self-financing proposals in the Localism 
Bill would bring the HRA subsidy system to an end and it is hoped that this 
new system would start from April 2012. 

5. The size and content of the HRA capital programme was also discussed and 
it was noted that the capital spending proposals are in line with the outcome 
of stock options appraisal and tenants’ aspirations. 



 4

6. It is recommended that Members formally recognise the support and 
commitment of tenants and tenant representatives who have participated in 
this years capital and revenue budget setting exercise. 

Background 

7. The HRA budget comprises a set of revenue estimates and a capital 
programme.  The revenue budget covers 2010/11 and 2011/12.  The 
proposed increase in rents and other charges is an integral part of the 
revenue estimates for 2011/12.  The capital programme covers the period 
2010/11 to 2012/13.   

8. The HRA records all the income and expenditure associated with the 
provision and management of Council owned homes in the City.  This account 
funds a significant range of services to over 18,000 Southampton tenants and 
leaseholders and their families.  This includes housing management, repairs 
and improvements, welfare advice, sheltered housing services, 
neighbourhood wardens, and contributes to capital spending on Council 
properties. 

9. The HRA Capital Programme deals with all capital expenditure on Council 
Housing and related environmental works.  The revised Capital Programme 
is shown at Appendix 2.  This has been updated in consultation with tenant 
representatives as part of the budget setting process. 

10. The main focus of the HRA capital programme is estate regeneration, 
maintaining the decent homes standard and delivering the decent 
neighbourhoods agenda.   

Reform of Council Housing Finance 

11. In last years budget report it was reported that there was a possibility of a 
voluntary self-financing agreement being available that could enable the 
council to exit the subsidy system by April 2010.  This possibility did not 
materialise. 

12. The current position is that the new self-financing system will be enforced 
through provision in the current Localism Bill.  It is anticipated that the new 
system will start from April 2012, but this is subject to the Localism Bill 
progressing through Parliament as planned. 

13. At the time of writing the council has not been provided with the level of 
detail necessary to assess the impact of the new system on the HRA.  The 
CLG anticipate making detailed information available at the end of January 
2011 but this will be too late to include in this report.  The budget in this 
report has therefore been prepared on the basis that the subsidy system 
continues for 2011/12. In assessing the capital resources for 2012/13 it has 
also been assumed that the subsidy system will continue for that year.  
However, it is clear that the new system will be operating for 2013/14 but it is 
not possible to make any assessment of the impact on the HRA. 

14. Given this uncertainty over the detail and timing of the new system it is 
expected that it may be necessary to make a special report on the 
implications of the new system during the summer and to further update 
capital spending plans for 2012/13 and subsequent years at that time. 



 5

Revenue Budget 

15. The main issues that need to be considered in setting the revenue budget are 
set out below.   It should be noted that the revenue budget figures used in the 
paragraphs below and in appendix 1 do not make any allowance for the 
savings that will arise from the proposed corporate changes to the terms and 
conditions of council staff.  The budgets will be amended once these are 
agreed and the additional revenue resources will be available to help bridge 
the funding gap in the HRA capital programme.  Based on the current 
proposals as set out in the General Fund budget report to Full Council, it is 
anticipated that the revenue savings to the HRA over 2011/12 and 2012/13 
would be in the order of £1.2M. 

 Responsive repairs 

16. The budget for 2010/11 has been increased for that year only by £250,000 
which has been transferred from the capital programme as the expenditure is 
more appropriately charged to revenue.   

17. The proposed budget for 2011/12 is £10.547M.  This budget will fund 52,700 
responsive repair orders and works to 1,400 voids.  The budget is £183,000 
less than allowed in the budget forecast.  

 Programme repairs 

18. The budget for 2010/11 includes the one-off increase to complete decoration 
work originally funded in 2009/10 (£249,000), together with efficiency 
savings on smoke detector testing (£84,000) and fewer than expected 
properties needing electrical testing (£160,000). 

19. The proposed budget for 2011/12 is £5.227M, which is £95,000 less than 
allowed in the budget forecast.  

 Supervision and Management 

20. The proposed budget for 2011/12 is £17.566M.  This is £160,000 less than 
allowed in the budget forecast which is attributable to the lower than budgeted 
pay award in 2010. 

 HRA Subsidy 

21. The Council is still in “negative subsidy”.  The underlying payment to CLG is 
increasing from £6.2M in 2010/11 to £7.6M in 2011/12.  However, the actual 
payment for 2010/11 is £2.4M higher at £8.6M because £2.4M of the Major 
Repairs Allowance was taken into account in assessing the subsidy payment 
for 2009/10. In overall terms, the Government is increasing the rent income it 
is taking from the council by 6.9% but only increasing allowances by 3.4%. At 
a national level the surplus the government receives from this system is 
increasing and this further emphasises the need to move to a self-financing 
system.  

22. The main features of the draft determinations are set out below: 

• The Management and Maintenance allowances are the Governments 
assessment of how much the Council should spend on Supervision 
and Management and the Repairs service.  The Council will receive 
£35.6M in 2011/12, approximately £380,000 more than expected from 



 6

these allowances. 

• The Major Repairs allowance is paid to help finance the HRA capital 
programme and is supposed to represent the costs of maintaining the 
stock at its current standard.  At £13.1M for 2011/12 this is slightly 
higher than expected (£78,000). 

• The Government pays a Capital Financing allowance based on what it 
assumes the level of HRA debt to be.  The assumed debt level for 
Southampton is approximately £122M, compared to a real debt level 
of approximately £106M.  In 2011/12 the subsidy payment is 
estimated to be £3.5M, compared to the estimated real interest 
charges of around £3.0M.   

• Last year CLG announced that the convergence date for Rent 
Restructuring would be brought forward to 2012/13.  It is now proposed 
that rent convergence is changed to 2015/16.  When this new date is 
incorporated into the rent calculation it means that there is an overall 
increase in rent income paid to CLG of 6.9%.  The issues arising from 
this are examined in more detail below. 

 Dwelling Rent Income 

23. This income is determined by the CLG rent restructuring guidelines.  Rent 
restructuring is the government’s policy that rents for all council owned 
dwellings will gradually increase to match the current social rent levels 
currently charged by Housing Associations.  The council is not required to 
increase rents to the proposed new affordable rent levels which can be set at 
up to 80% of market rents. 

24. Under this formula, the inflationary increase is determined by the Retail Price 
Index for September 2010, which was 4.6%.  The formula requires the 
addition of a further 0.5% plus an element for converging with Housing 
Association rent levels.  Last year the date for this convergence was set for 
2012/13.  This has now been extended to 2015/16.  This has the effect of 
increasing average rent levels by 2.1%, giving an overall increase in average 
rent levels of 7.2%%, or £4.67 per week. 

25. However, within the rent restructuring rules, there is also a requirement that 
the rent convergence component of the increase for each dwelling should 
not exceed £2.00 per week.  Applying this rule means that the increase for 
the rent convergence element of the calculation is 1.89% and not 2.1%.  This 
gives an overall rent increase of 6.99% or £4.55 per week.  

26. This also means that CLG are taking away approximately £100,000 more 
than the council is able to increase its charges to tenants. 

27. Whilst the rent restructuring process gives the basis for calculating rent 
increases every year it does not establish what rent level should initially be 
charged for new properties or when properties are newly acquired or 
converted.  In order to provide clarity on this issue a policy has been 
prepared and this is set out in Appendix 6.  In summary, it is proposed that 
the initial rents for newly built or acquired dwellings would be set at the full 
formula rent from initial let (or as otherwise required by any grant giving 
body) and that initial rents for converted properties would be set by reference 



 7

to similar properties in the area. 

 Tenants Service / Support Charges 

28. The current service charges for 2010/11 are shown in the table below (based 
on 48 rent weeks):  

Description Weekly 
charge 

Tower block wardens £5.53 

Sheltered housing management charge: 

• Scheme based accommodation 

• All other sheltered accommodation 

 

£5.31 

£1.33 

Concierge monitoring charge £1.20 

Sheltered support charge £2.85 

Community Alarm monitoring charge £1.35 

Digital TV £0.45 
 

29. It is not proposed to increase these charges for 2011/12.  However, work will 
be undertaken during 2011/12 to compare the income generated with the 
costs of the services.  The aim would be to ensure that the service charges 
are linked to costs and would vary in line with cost changes each year. 
Changes to service charges resulting from this work would be discussed as 
part of the budget preparation for 2012/13.  

 Other Charges 

30. It is proposed to increase the charges for garages or parking spaces for 
2011/12 in line with rents ie 6.99%.   

31. It is also proposed to harmonise charges at Wyndham Court so that council 
tenants and leaseholders are charged the same. This would be a fairer and 
more equitable system.  Leaseholders currently pay £1.63 per week more 
than tenants. Details of this proposal can be found in appendix 5. 

 Level of HRA Revenue Balances and Contingency Provision 

32. The revenue budget at appendix 1 shows that the contingency provision for 
2010/11 has been deleted as it is no longer required.  It is however 
recommended that this is retained at £100,000 for 2011/12.   

33. For 2011/12, it is recommended that the level of HRA balances should be 
unchanged at £1,200,000. 

Capital Budget 

 Overall Position 

34. When the capital programme was last considered by Council in September it 
was noted that there was a balanced programme, with forecast income 
matching expenditure.  In overall terms for the period 2010/11 to 2012/13, 
spending has increased by £10.941M and resources have increased by 
£7.862M.  This means that the latest programme has sufficient resources to 
meet expenditure up to the end of 2011/12 but there is a forecast resource 



 8

shortfall of £3.079M by the end of 2012/13. 

35. This shortfall in resources is within the tolerances set by the Executive 
Director for Resources in the approved Medium Term Financial Strategy so it 
is not proposed to make any reductions to spending plans at this time.  There 
are the following options for increasing resources to close this gap before 
considering spending reductions:  

• Benefits from reductions in staff terms and conditions which, as set out 
in paragraph 15, could yield £1.2M over 2011/12 and 2012/13, 

• Benefits from self-financing and 

• Capital receipts from asset sales. 

36. It is proposed that firm plans to produce a fully funded programme for 2012/13 
will be developed as part of the work on assessing the implications of the new 
self-financing proposals over the next few months. 

37. In the capital update report to Council in September 2010 it was noted that 
Estate Regeneration was the main priority for the administration and that 
there would be a full review of all unapproved spend in 2011/12 and 2012/13.  
The outcome of the review for 2011/12 is included in the new capital 
programme at appendix 2.  Any changes for 2012/13 will be considered as 
part of the proposed work to develop the detailed work for that year as 
explained above. 

 Resources 

38. The resources that are available to fund the HRA capital programme 
comprise: 

• HRA supported borrowing; 

• Unsupported (prudential) borrowing; 

• Usable Capital Receipts; 

• Grants and Contributions from third parties; 

• Direct Revenue Financing (DRF); and  

• The Major Repairs Allowance (MRA). 

39. Appendix 3 contains an explanation of these terms and an annual forecast of 
the resources available. 

40. Reasons for the changes in resources are set out below: 

• Borrowing – There is no change in the level of supported or prudential 
borrowing.  

• The level of contributions has increased by £2.7M because the 
forecasts now include the contribution from leaseholders to digital TV 
work, a further contribution from the HCA to the phase 2 estate 
regeneration scheme in lieu of a capital receipt from the developer 
and the use of S106 receipts to fund the council led redevelopment of 
Cumbrian Way. 

• The level of capital receipts has increased by £1M because of the 
inclusion of £2.7M of capital receipts from the council led 



 9

redevelopment of Cumbrian Way.  This is offset by a reduction of 
£1.4M in receipts from phase 2 estate regeneration as this money is 
now expected from the HCA and there is a further £0.3M not now 
expected to be received until 2013/14. 

• The level of DRF has increased by £4.1M.  This is due to the various 
revenue budget variations referred to earlier in this report and the 
effect of these in 2012/13. 

• Major Repairs Allowance – This has increased by £0.1M due to the 
increase in allowances in 2011/12. 

 Capital Spending Plans 

41. The programme presented to Council in September 2010 has been revised 
taking into account the latest cost and phasing of schemes.  The detailed 
programme is shown at appendix 2 and the change to the annual spending 
levels is shown below: 

 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 Total 

 £M £M £M £M 

New Proposed Programme 38.057 26.142 26.471 90.670 

September Programme 40.720 21.062 17.947 79.729 

Total (2.663) 5.080 8.524 10.941 

A number of changes have been approved through the new council project 
management system and the effect of these, along with other cabinet 
approvals and the latest proposed changes to the programme are set out in 
Appendix 4. 

42. The capital spending plans represent a significant investment in the stock 
and the surrounding neighbourhood. The main focus for spending is 
explained below: 

• Accelerating the investment in estate regeneration, with the launch of 
the first estate wide programme, the selection of a further 
regeneration site and the sale of a number of small vacant sites; 

• Maintaining the decent homes standard; 

• Completing the council new build programme which in total will see 
the completion of 53 new council dwellings; 

• Improvements to housing for older people with works undertaken at 
Graylings, Rozel Court, Sarnia Court, Milner Court, Neptune Court 
and James Street; 

• Lift refurbishments at Milner Court, Neptune Court and then Itchen 
estate; 

• Heating upgrades will enable the council to fuel swap a number of 
tenants houses which currently have electric heating to be replaced 
with gas central heating and allow replacement of gas central heating 
systems which are problematic to service and maintain; 

• The budget associated with window replacement will allow the council 
to complete its programme of replacing all homes which have single 



 10

glazed windows with new UPVC double glazed windows which will 
make these homes more thermally efficient; 

• Energy efficiency measures include increasing loft insulation to our 
homes and installing cavity wall insulation as well as installing new 
gas condensing boilers to our homes; and 

• Continuation of the Decent Neighbourhoods Programme with major 
works at Shirely, Millbrook, Northam and Holyrood. 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital/Revenue  

43. These are in the body of the report. 

Property/Other 

44. None. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

45. Housing Act legislation provides the authority to increase rent and other 
associated or like charges. There are no specific legal implications arising 
from the overall budget proposals contained in this report. 

46. The provision, maintenance and improvement of social housing by local 
authorities is authorised by various Housing Acts and other legislation. 

Other Legal Implications:  

47. None. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

48. The HRA estimates form part of the Council’s budget and are therefore key 
elements of the council’s overall budget and policy framework. The proposed 
estimates also reflect the priorities set out in the approved stock options 
report and HRA Business Plan. 

 

 



 11

 

AUTHOR: Name:  David Singleton Tel: 023 8083 2236 

 E-mail: David.Singleton@southampton.gov.uk 

KEY DECISION?  No 

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: All 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Non-confidential appendices are in the Members’ Rooms and can be accessed 
on-line 

Appendices  

1. HRA Revenue Estimates 2010/11 and 2011/12. 

2. Detailed HRA capital programme 2010/11 to 2012/13. 

3. Forecast of HRA capital resources and explanation of terms 

4. Proposed changes to the capital programme. 

5. Revised parking charges for Wyndham Court 

6. Rent setting Policy for new build, acquired or converted properties  

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Integrated Impact Assessment  

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Integrated Impact 
Assessment (IIA) to be carried out. 

Yes/No 

Other Background Documents 

Integrated Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for 
inspection at: 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if applicable) 

1. None  

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



REVENUE BUDGET

Original

Estimate

2010/11

Revised

Estimate

2010/11

Estimate

2011/12

£'000 £'000 £'000

SUMMARY

EXPENDITURE

10,548.9 10,776.2 Responsive Repairs 10,546.5

5,193.3 5,171.7 Programmed Repairs 5,226.7

15,742.2 15,947.9 Total Repairs 15,773.2

95.3 52.6 Rents Payable 52.9

46.8 46.8 Debt Management 52.4

17,130.9 17,175.5 Supervision & Management 17,566.1

2,364.1 2,286.9 Debt Charges 2,916.0

10,394.5 10,394.5 Major Repairs Allowance 13,095.6

5,843.8 6,076.4 Direct Revenue Financing of Capital 6,812.6

8,519.9 8,575.7 Housing Subsidy paid to DCLG 7,553.3

100.0 0.0 Contingency 100.0

60,237.5 60,556.3 TOTAL EXPENDITURE 63,922.1

INCOME

57,268.9 57,118.3 Dwelling Rents 60,650.4

1,280.7 1,262.2 Other Rents 1,259.4

58,549.6 58,380.5 Total Rental Income 61,909.8

1,034.8 1,099.9 Service Charge Income 1,314.6

602.1 659.7 Leaseholder Service Charges 677.0

51.0 27.4 Interest Received 20.7

60,237.5 60,167.5 TOTAL INCOME 63,922.1

0.0 -388.8 SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR YEAR 0.0

BALANCES

1,200.0 1,588.8 Working Balance B/Fwd 1,200.0

0.0 -388.8 Surplus/(deficit) for year 0.0

1,200.0 1,200.0 WORKING BALANCE C/FWD 1,200.0

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUDGET REPORT

Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



H
R

A
C

a
p

it
a

l
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

F
e

b
u

ra
ry

2
0

1
1

H
o

u
s

in
g

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
A

c
c

o
u

n
t

(H
C

A
P

)

S
h

a
re

P
o

in
t

R
e

f.

P
ro

je
c

t
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
ro

je
c

t

S
ta

tu
s

M
a

n
a

g
e

r
P

ri
o

r

Y
e

a
rs

A
c

tu
a

l

£
'0

0
0

's

B
u

d
g

e
t

1
0

/1
1

£
'0

0
0

's

B
u

d
g

e
t

1
1

/1
2

£
'0

0
0

's

B
u

d
g

e
t

1
2

/1
3

£
'0

0
0

's

B
u

d
g

e
t

la
te

r
y
e

a
rs

£
'0

0
0

's

O
v
e

ra
ll

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

's

H
R

A
0

2
-

D
e

c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
P

lu
s

M
a

n
a

g
e

d
b

y
B

ry
n

S
h

o
re

y

1
1

9
7

N
D

C
C

o
m

m
u

n
a

l
-

T
h

o
rn

h
ill

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
2

,4
3

2
3

4
7

2
,7

7
9

1
1

9
8

T
P

Y
T

h
o

rn
h

ill
C

o
m

m
u

n
a

l
Im

p
s
.

-
D

e
e

p
C

le
a

n
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

2
1

3
9

6
0

1
2

0
9

D
o

o
r

E
n

tr
y

-
C

e
n

tr
a

l
E

s
ta

te
s

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
1

4
1

3
3

0
4

7
1

1
2

1
0

D
o

o
r

E
n

tr
y

-
T

o
w

n
h

ill
P

a
rk

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
In

g
ra

m
,

C
la

ir
e

3
4

2
7

3
5

6
4

1
7

1
2

1
1

D
ig

it
a

l
T

V
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
M

e
re

d
it
h

,
K

e
it
h

4
3

2
,0

0
0

1
8

7
2

,2
3

0

1
2

1
5

E
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
C

o
n

c
ie

rg
e

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
4

,0
3

7
1

1
1

4
,1

4
8

1
2

2
1

L
if
t

R
e

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t

-
M

ill
b

a
n

k
&

K
in

lo
s
s

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
5

7
9

3
5

4
9

3
3

1
2

2
2

L
if
t

R
e

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t

-
M

iln
e

r
a

n
d

N
e

p
tu

n
e

C
o

u
rt

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
In

g
ra

m
,

C
la

ir
e

3
7

8
0

1
,5

9
0

1
,7

0
7

1
2

2
3

L
if
t

R
e

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t

-
It

c
h

e
n

V
ie

w
E

s
ta

te
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
In

g
ra

m
,

C
la

ir
e

3
1

0
0

9
2

7
1

,0
3

0

1
2

2
4

C
a

s
tl
e

H
o

u
s
e

B
a

lc
o

n
ie

s
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
3

4
7

3
6

3
8

3

1
2

2
9

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

A
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
S

tu
d

io
U

p
g

ra
d

e
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
In

g
ra

m
,

C
la

ir
e

2
1

4
1

8
6

4
0

0

1
2

3
2

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

-
C

h
a

lli
s

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
1

1
2

8
0

2
9

1

1
2

3
4

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

-
K

in
lo

s
s

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
8

0
7

4
0

8
4

7

1
2

3
5

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

-
W

e
s
to

n
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
2

9
3

8
6

7

1
2

3
6

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

-
M

a
n

s
to

n
C

o
u

rt
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
9

5
9

1
9

1
,0

1
4

1
2

3
7

H
a

rd
&

S
o

ft
S

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
L

a
n

d
s
c
a

p
in

g
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
H

o
w

a
rd

,
P

a
u

l
1

6
3

1
4

6
3

0
9

1
4

0
8

D
o

o
r

E
n

tr
y

-
M

ill
b

ro
o

k
&

M
a

y
b

u
s
h

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
In

g
ra

m
,

C
la

ir
e

3
4

4
9

5
5

2
9

1
4

1
4

H
e

a
ti
n

g
S

y
s
te

m
s

U
p

g
ra

d
e

1
0

/1
1

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
M

e
re

d
it
h

,
K

e
it
h

0
5

8
8

5
8

8

1
4

1
6

W
in

d
o

w
R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t

-
1

0
/1

1
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
M

e
re

d
it
h

,
K

e
it
h

0
9

0
0

9
6

8
1

,8
6

8

1
4

1
7

E
n

e
rg

y
S

a
v
in

g
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

1
0

/1
1

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
M

e
re

d
it
h

,
K

e
it
h

0
3

7
9

3
7

9

1
4

7
5

B
e

lla
m

y
C

o
u

rt
B

e
d

s
it

C
o

n
v
e

rs
io

n
s

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
In

g
ra

m
,

C
la

ir
e

0
1

0
0

1
0

0

1
5

0
6

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

C
o

m
m

Im
p

r.
-

B
a

s
s
e

tt
G

re
e

n
W

a
lk

w
a

y
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
3

4
0

1
4

7
1

9
0

1
5

0
7

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

-
M

iln
e

r
C

o
u

rt
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
0

2
4

3
2

4
3

1
5

0
8

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l
Im

p
o

v
e

m
e

n
ts

-
M

in
o

r
W

o
rk

s
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
In

g
ra

m
,

C
la

ir
e

1
3

4
4

5
7

1
5

0
9

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

-
N

e
p

tu
n

e
C

o
u

rt
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
0

2
4

0
2

4
0

1
5

1
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

-
P

le
a

s
a

n
t

V
ie

w
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
0

7
0

7
0

1
5

1
8

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
F

e
e

s
1

0
/1

1
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
M

ill
e

r,
G

e
o

ff
re

y
0

4
0

0
4

0
0

T
B

A
S

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
C

o
m

m
u

n
a

l
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

-R
o

z
e

l
c
o

u
rt

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
0

0
2

4
0

2
4

0

T
B

A
S

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
C

o
m

m
u

n
a

l
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

-S
a

rn
ia

C
o

u
rt

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
0

0
1

2
0

1
2

0

T
B

A
S

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
C

o
m

m
u

n
a

l
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

-J
a

m
e

s
S

tr
e

e
t

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
0

0
1

2
0

1
2

0

T
B

A
S

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
C

o
m

m
u

n
a

l
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

-M
iln

e
r

C
o

u
rt

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
0

0
1

2
0

1
2

0

T
B

A
S

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
C

o
m

m
u

n
a

l
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

-N
e

p
tu

n
e

C
o

u
rt

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
0

0
1

2
0

1
2

0

1
2

2
6

M
o

b
ile

W
o

rk
in

g
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
W

a
lla

c
e

,
J
o

n
a

th
a

n
0

2
0

0
2

0
0

1
2

3
3

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

-
G

ra
y
lin

g
s

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
1

1
2

0
5

5
9

5
9

0

T
B

A
C

h
e

ri
to

n
A

v
e

n
u

e
L

a
n

d
D

ra
in

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
M

ill
e

r,
G

e
o

ff
re

y
0

0
1

0
0

1
0

0

1
2

3
1

S
h

e
lt
e

re
d

C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t

1
1

/1
2

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
,

J
u

lie
0

0
2

9
2

2
9

2

1
4

7
1

H
e

a
ti
n

g
s
y
s
te

m
s

u
p

g
ra

d
e

1
1

/1
2

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
M

e
re

d
it
h

,
K

e
it
h

0
0

3
5

0
3

5
0

1
4

7
0

E
n

e
rg

y
S

a
v
in

g
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

1
1

/1
2

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
M

e
re

d
it
h

,
K

e
it
h

0
0

2
0

0
2

0
0

1
4

7
6

S
h

e
lt
e

re
d

s
e

lf
c
o

n
ta

in
e

d
c
o

n
v
e

rs
io

n
s

1
1

/1
2

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
In

g
ra

m
,

C
la

ir
e

0
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

1
4

7
4

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
fe

e
s

1
1

/1
2

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
M

ill
e

r,
G

e
o

ff
re

y
0

0
4

2
0

4
2

0

T
B

A
W

in
d

o
w

R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
M

ill
e

r,
G

e
o

ff
re

y
0

0
9

8
8

9
8

8

T
B

A
D

e
c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
P

lu
s

fu
tu

re
y
e

a
rs

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
M

ill
e

r,
G

e
o

ff
re

y
1

2
0

4
,7

8
3

4
,7

9
5

T
o

ta
l

fo
r

D
e

c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
P

lu
s

M
a

n
a

g
e

d
b

y
B

ry
n

S
h

o
re

y
9

,0
6

6
8

,7
5

2
6

,9
1

6
5

,7
7

1
0

3
0

,5
0

5

K
:\

C
L

\C
M

M
T

E
E

\D
e

m
1

0
-1

1
\M

tg
s
\E

x
e

c
D

e
c

M
tg

\C
a

b
\R

e
p

o
rt

s
\1

1
-

7
F

e
b

2
0

1
1

-
B

u
d

g
e

t\
P

u
b

lis
h

e
d

V
e

rs
io

n
s
\H

R
A

-A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
2

-
C

a
p

it
a

l
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

F
in

a
l

]
P

a
g

e
1

o
f

4Appendix 2



S
h

a
re

P
o

in
t

R
e

f.

P
ro

je
c

t
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
ro

je
c

t

S
ta

tu
s

M
a

n
a

g
e

r
P

ri
o

r

Y
e

a
rs

A
c

tu
a

l

£
'0

0
0

's

B
u

d
g

e
t

1
0

/1
1

£
'0

0
0

's

B
u

d
g

e
t

1
1

/1
2

£
'0

0
0

's

B
u

d
g

e
t

1
2

/1
3

£
'0

0
0

's

B
u

d
g

e
t

la
te

r
y
e

a
rs

£
'0

0
0

's

O
v
e

ra
ll

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

's

H
R

A
0

3
-

D
e

c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
M

a
n

a
g

e
d

b
y

B
ry

n
S

h
o

re
y

1
1

8
5

D
e

c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
-

C
e

n
tr

a
l

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

6
0

6
3

,9
3

2
4

,5
3

8

1
1

8
6

D
e

c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
-

H
a

re
fi
e

ld
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

2
1

6
2

,0
7

2
2

,2
8

8

1
1

8
7

D
e

c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
-

P
e

a
rt

re
e

/S
h

o
lin

g
P

h
2

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

0
3

6
6

3
6

6

1
1

8
8

D
e

c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
-

S
h

ir
le

y
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

4
,1

8
9

1
,5

3
7

5
,7

2
6

1
1

9
0

D
e

c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
-

T
o

w
n

h
ill

P
a

rk
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

4
,2

9
8

5
4

,3
0

3

1
1

9
1

D
e

c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
-

M
a

y
b

u
s
h

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

1
,5

0
8

1
1

5
1

,6
2

3

1
1

9
2

D
e

c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
-

M
ill

b
ro

o
k

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

1
3

,7
9

2
3

4
1

3
,8

2
6

1
1

9
4

D
e

c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
-

V
o

id
s

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
M

ill
e

r,
G

e
o

ff
re

y
7

3
1

1
3

3
8

6
4

1
1

9
6

E
le

c
tr

ic
a

l
R

is
e

rs
2

0
0

9
/1

0
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
M

e
re

d
it
h

,
K

e
it
h

2
6

0
1

1
6

3
7

6

1
1

9
9

R
o

o
f

R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t

-
T

o
w

n
h

ill
P

a
rk

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

1
4

1
6

1
5

1
8

0

1
2

0
0

R
o

o
f

R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t

G
re

e
n

L
a

n
e

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

1
3

1
5

1
3

6

1
2

0
1

D
e

c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
-

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

H
o

u
s
in

g
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

2
,9

3
0

2
,4

7
3

5
,4

0
3

1
2

0
4

W
a

te
r

T
a

n
k

&
P

u
m

p
re

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t

H
o

ly
ro

o
d

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
M

e
re

d
it
h

,
K

e
it
h

0
5

0
5

0

1
2

0
7

A
d

a
p

ta
ti
o

n
s

fo
r

D
is

a
b

le
d

P
e

o
p

le
0

9
/1

0
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

1
,3

4
5

1
2

6
1

,4
7

1

1
2

9
7

D
e

c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
-

L
o

rd
s
h

ill
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

5
6

1
5

6
2

0

1
4

1
3

S
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l
W

o
rk

s
2

0
1

0
/1

1
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
M

e
re

d
it
h

,
K

e
it
h

0
3

9
1

3
9

1

1
4

1
5

A
d

a
p

ti
o

n
s

fo
r

D
is

a
b

le
d

P
e

o
p

le
1

0
/1

1
&

1
1

/1
2

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

0
2

,7
0

0
2

,7
0

0

1
4

7
9

D
e

c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
W

e
s
to

n
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

0
1

1
8

1
1

8

1
4

8
0

D
e

c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
-

T
h

o
rn

h
ill

N
D

C
1

0
/1

1
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

0
1

3
1

1
3

1

1
4

8
1

D
e

c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
-

T
h

o
rn

h
ill

1
0

/1
1

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

0
9

9

1
4

8
2

D
e

c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
S

w
a

y
th

lin
g

P
h

2
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

0
1

,1
4

1
1

,1
4

1

1
4

7
7

D
e

c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
-

C
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
y

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
M

ill
e

r,
G

e
o

ff
re

y
0

5
0

5
0

1
5

2
2

W
a

te
r

T
a

n
k
s

a
n

d
P

u
m

p
R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t

1
0

/1
1

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
M

e
re

d
it
h

,
K

e
it
h

0
4

0
4

0

1
4

6
4

E
le

c
tr

ic
a

l
ri
s
e

rs
1

1
/1

2
U

n
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
M

e
re

d
it
h

,
K

e
it
h

0
0

3
0

0
3

0
0

1
4

6
5

R
o

o
f

re
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t

1
1

/1
2

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

0
0

3
0

0
3

0
0

1
4

6
6

S
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l
w

o
rk

s
1

1
/1

2
U

n
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
M

e
re

d
it
h

,
K

e
it
h

0
0

4
0

0
4

0
0

1
4

7
8

D
e

c
e

n
t

h
o

m
e

s
1

1
/1

2
U

n
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

0
0

5
,4

0
8

5
,4

0
8

1
4

6
7

D
is

a
b

le
d

a
d

a
p

ta
ti
o

n
s

1
1

/1
2

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
R

a
n

s
le

y
,

S
te

p
h

e
n

0
0

6
7

5
6

7
5

T
B

A
D

e
c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
F

u
tu

re
y
e

a
rs

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
M

ill
e

r,
G

e
o

ff
re

y
0

0
1

0
,1

8
1

1
0

,1
8

1

T
o

ta
l

fo
r

D
e

c
e

n
t

H
o

m
e

s
M

a
n

a
g

e
d

b
y

B
ry

n
S

h
o

re
y

3
0

,0
2

5
1

6
,3

2
0

7
,0

8
8

1
0

,1
8

1
0

6
3

,6
1

4

K
:\

C
L

\C
M

M
T

E
E

\D
e

m
1

0
-1

1
\M

tg
s
\E

x
e

c
D

e
c

M
tg

\C
a

b
\R

e
p

o
rt

s
\1

1
-

7
F

e
b

2
0

1
1

-
B

u
d

g
e

t\
P

u
b

lis
h

e
d

V
e

rs
io

n
s
\H

R
A

-A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
2

-
C

a
p

it
a

l
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

F
in

a
l

]
P

a
g

e
2

o
f

4



S
h

a
re

P
o

in
t

R
e

f.

P
ro

je
c

t
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
ro

je
c

t

S
ta

tu
s

M
a

n
a

g
e

r
P

ri
o

r

Y
e

a
rs

A
c

tu
a

l

£
'0

0
0

's

B
u

d
g

e
t

1
0

/1
1

£
'0

0
0

's

B
u

d
g

e
t

1
1

/1
2

£
'0

0
0

's

B
u

d
g

e
t

1
2

/1
3

£
'0

0
0

's

B
u

d
g

e
t

la
te

r
y
e

a
rs

£
'0

0
0

's

O
v
e

ra
ll

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

's

H
R

A
0

4
-

O
th

e
r

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

1
2

6
3

IT
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
W

a
lla

c
e

,
J
o

n
6

1
1

5
7

6

1
2

6
4

IT
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

0
8

/0
9

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
W

a
lla

c
e

,
J
o

n
a

th
a

n
0

5
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

2
5

0

T
o

ta
l

fo
r

O
th

e
r

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

6
1

6
5

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
3

2
6

H
R

A
0

5
-

D
e

c
e

n
t

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

1
2

3
9

K
in

g
s
la

n
d

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
2

1
3

0
0

0
1

3
2

1
2

4
2

D
N

:
V

a
n

g
u

a
rd

a
n

d
W

a
v
e

ll
R

o
a

d
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
8

4
2

3
6

1
6

1
2

8
5

1
0

1
2

4
3

D
N

:
T

a
n

k
e

rv
ill

e
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
6

4
1

6
2

5
9

6
2

9
1

1
2

4
4

D
N

:
In

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l
W

a
y

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
7

9
7

2
1

2
1

0
8

2
1

1
2

4
6

D
N

:
E

IP
0

9
/1

0
-

N
o

rt
h

a
m

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
3

3
2

4
0

0
5

7

1
2

4
9

D
N

:
C

e
n

tr
a

l
-

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

to
W

a
lk

-u
p

B
lo

c
k
s

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
1

,3
1

9
1

0
0

1
,3

2
0

1
2

5
1

D
N

:
E

IP
0

9
/1

0
-

S
o

u
th

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
6

3
4

0
0

4
0

1
2

5
2

D
N

:
E

IP
0

9
/1

0
-

W
e

s
t

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
3

6
1

4
0

0
5

0

1
2

5
5

T
h

o
rn

h
ill

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l
W

o
rk

s
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
H

o
w

a
rd

,
P

a
u

l
3

,2
2

4
2

5
1

0
0

3
,4

7
5

1
2

5
6

D
N

:
M

ill
b

ro
o

k
T

o
w

e
rs

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
2

5
5

9
3

0
7

1
1

4
0

1

1
2

7
1

D
N

:
H

o
ly

ro
o

d
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
8

0
6

1
7

6
8

2
2

9
3

1

1
2

8
8

D
N

:
M

ill
b

ro
o

k
-

A
d

iz
o

n
e

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
1

7
0

2
0

0
0

1
9

0

1
2

9
6

R
e

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t

o
f

M
a

y
b

u
s
h

L
H

O
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
C

a
re

y
,

M
ik

e
1

7
1

3
3

0
0

1
5

0

1
2

9
8

D
N

:
M

ill
b

ro
o

k
V

e
rg

e
P

a
rk

in
g

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
9

0
2

8
8

2
2

5
0

6
0

3

1
4

0
2

T
h

o
rn

h
ill

C
y
c
le

w
a

y
s

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
H

o
w

a
rd

,
P

a
u

l
9

6
6

3
1

5
9

1
4

9
4

D
N

:
N

o
rt

h
a

m
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
0

2
2

0
2

7
5

0
4

9
5

1
4

9
6

D
N

:
M

ill
b

ro
o

k
B

lo
c
k

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
0

1
7

0
2

8
8

1
6

0
1

2
6

3
0

1
4

9
7

D
N

:
T

h
o

rn
h

ill
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
0

1
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

1
4

9
8

D
N

:
E

s
ta

te
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
-

1
0

/1
1

-
E

a
s
t

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
0

6
6

0
0

6
6

1
4

9
9

D
N

:
E

s
ta

te
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
-

1
0

/1
1

-
W

e
s
t

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
0

6
6

0
0

6
6

1
5

0
0

D
N

:
E

s
ta

te
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
-

1
0

/1
1

-
C

e
n

tr
a

l
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
0

6
8

0
0

6
8

T
B

A
P

a
th

w
a

y
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
0

0
2

5
0

2
5

0

T
B

A
P

le
a

s
a

n
t

V
ie

w
C

a
r

P
a

rk
U

n
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
0

5
0

0
0

5
0

T
B

A
D

N
:

E
.I

.P
1

1
/1

2
U

n
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
0

0
2

0
0

2
0

0

T
B

A
S

h
ir
le

y
1

1
/1

2
U

n
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
0

0
5

0
0

4
7

5
2

5
1

,0
0

0

T
B

A
N

o
S

h
a

re
P

o
in

t
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
C

o
o

p
e

r,
A

id
a

n
0

0
1

,1
8

5
1

,1
8

5

T
o

ta
l

fo
r

D
e

c
e

n
t

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

5
,3

2
5

2
,9

3
6

3
,0

5
4

1
,8

8
7

3
7

1
3

,2
4

0

K
:\

C
L

\C
M

M
T

E
E

\D
e

m
1

0
-1

1
\M

tg
s
\E

x
e

c
D

e
c

M
tg

\C
a

b
\R

e
p

o
rt

s
\1

1
-

7
F

e
b

2
0

1
1

-
B

u
d

g
e

t\
P

u
b

lis
h

e
d

V
e

rs
io

n
s
\H

R
A

-A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
2

-
C

a
p

it
a

l
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

F
in

a
l

]
P

a
g

e
3

o
f

4



S
h

a
re

P
o

in
t

R
e

f.

P
ro

je
c

t
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
ro

je
c

t

S
ta

tu
s

M
a

n
a

g
e

r
P

ri
o

r

Y
e

a
rs

A
c

tu
a

l

£
'0

0
0

's

B
u

d
g

e
t

1
0

/1
1

£
'0

0
0

's

B
u

d
g

e
t

1
1

/1
2

£
'0

0
0

's

B
u

d
g

e
t

1
2

/1
3

£
'0

0
0

's

B
u

d
g

e
t

la
te

r
y
e

a
rs

£
'0

0
0

's

O
v
e

ra
ll

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

's

H
R

A
0

6
-

E
s

ta
te

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

1
2

5
7

C
u

m
b

ri
a

n
W

a
y

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
F

a
ll,

J
a

n
e

1
0

5
9

9
7

1
2

5
4

2
0

1
,2

6
9

1
2

5
8

E
x
fo

rd
P

a
ra

d
e

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
F

a
ll,

J
a

n
e

6
9

9
1

,9
3

1
8

7
7

8
4

0
3

,5
9

1

1
2

5
9

L
a

x
to

n
C

lo
s
e

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
F

a
ll,

J
a

n
e

2
8

9
5

2
7

9
8

4
3

0
9

5
7

1
2

6
0

M
e

g
g

e
s
o

n
A

v
e

n
u

e
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
F

a
ll,

J
a

n
e

8
7

3
6

5
9

7
7

8
0

6
2

7

1
2

6
2

H
in

k
le

r
P

a
ra

d
e

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
F

ri
e

d
m

a
n

,
D

a
n

ie
lle

1
,6

6
9

7
0

0
5

6
3

1
0

2
,9

4
2

1
5

1
2

A
c
q

u
is

it
io

n
o

f
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
a

t
N

o
rt

h
a

m
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
F

ri
e

d
m

a
n

,
D

a
n

ie
lle

0
3

3
5

3
3

5

T
B

A
S

m
a

ll
s
it
e

d
is

p
o

s
a

ls
U

n
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
D

o
u

g
la

s
s
,

A
m

a
n

d
a

0
5

0
1

0
0

0
0

1
5

0

T
B

A
O

th
e

r
D

is
p

o
s
a

ls
U

n
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
D

o
u

g
la

s
s
,

A
m

a
n

d
a

0
1

0
3

5
4

5

T
B

A
M

a
jo

r
E

s
ta

te
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
U

n
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
D

o
u

g
la

s
s
,

A
m

a
n

d
a

0
7

0
1

,4
0

0
5

,0
0

0
1

3
,5

3
0

2
0

,0
0

0

T
B

A
F

u
rt

h
e

r
s
h

o
p

p
in

g
p

a
ra

d
e

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
U

n
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
D

o
u

g
la

s
s
,

A
m

a
n

d
a

0
5

9
7

5
9

7
5

0
1

,9
5

5

T
B

A
O

th
e

r
s
it
e

a
s
s
e

m
b

ly
c
o

s
ts

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
D

o
u

g
la

s
s
,

A
m

a
n

d
a

0
0

5
6

0
0

0
5

6
0

T
B

A
C

u
m

b
ri
a

n
W

a
y

-
C

o
u

n
c
il

L
e

d
re

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
D

o
u

g
la

s
s
,

A
m

a
n

d
a

0
1

0
0

2
,4

0
0

2
,3

0
0

0
4

,8
0

0

T
o

ta
l

fo
r

E
s

ta
te

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

2
,8

4
9

5
,0

9
0

7
,2

2
9

8
,5

3
2

1
3

,5
3

0
3

7
,2

3
0

H
R

A
0

7
-

N
e

w
B

u
il

d

1
2

6
5

L
A

N
e

w
B

u
ild

-
B

o
rr

o
w

d
a

le
R

o
a

d
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
G

u
n

n
e

r,
K

e
it
h

1
7

6
1

3
7

3
7

0
3

1
2

6
6

L
A

N
e

w
B

u
ild

-
F

la
m

b
o

ro
u

g
h

C
lo

s
e

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
G

u
n

n
e

r,
K

e
it
h

9
4

6
6

1
3

4
8

8

1
2

6
7

L
A

N
e

w
B

u
ild

-
C

h
ilt

e
rn

G
re

e
n

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
G

u
n

n
e

r,
K

e
it
h

8
3

5
9

4
4

4
1

1

1
2

6
8

L
A

N
e

w
B

u
ild

-
G

ra
te

ly
C

lo
s
e

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
G

u
n

n
e

r,
K

e
it
h

8
0

9
4

2
1

0
5

1
,1

2
7

1
2

6
9

L
A

N
e

w
B

u
ild

-
O

rp
e

n
R

o
a

d
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
G

u
n

n
e

r,
K

e
it
h

8
6

8
4

9
5

7
8

7

1
2

7
0

L
A

N
e

w
B

u
ild

-
K

e
y
n

s
h

a
m

C
lo

s
e

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
G

u
n

n
e

r,
K

e
it
h

1
1

7
1

7
9

5
8

2
3

1
4

0
3

L
.A

.
N

e
w

B
u

ild
-

L
e

a
s
id

e
W

a
y

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
G

u
n

n
e

r,
K

e
it
h

1
3

3
8

1
9

4
5

3
3

1
4

0
4

L
.A

.
N

e
w

B
u

ild
-

C
u

m
b

ri
a

n
W

a
y

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
G

u
n

n
e

r,
K

e
it
h

1
7

7
5

1
,1

3
5

1
,9

1
1

T
o

ta
l

fo
r

N
e

w
B

u
il

d
1

3
5

4
,8

9
4

1
,7

5
4

0
0

6
,7

8
3

G
R

A
N

D
T

O
T

A
L

4
7

,4
6

1
3

8
,0

5
7

2
6

,1
4

2
2

6
,4

7
1

1
3

,5
6

7
1

5
1

,6
9

8

K
:\

C
L

\C
M

M
T

E
E

\D
e

m
1

0
-1

1
\M

tg
s
\E

x
e

c
D

e
c

M
tg

\C
a

b
\R

e
p

o
rt

s
\1

1
-

7
F

e
b

2
0

1
1

-
B

u
d

g
e

t\
P

u
b

lis
h

e
d

V
e

rs
io

n
s
\H

R
A

-A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
2

-
C

a
p

it
a

l
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

F
in

a
l

]
P

a
g

e
4

o
f

4



HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUDGET REPORT 
 
 

FORECAST OF HRA CAPITAL RESOURCES AND EXPLANATION OF 
TERMS 

 
 

Resource 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 Total 

 £M £M £M £M 

Supported 
Borrowing 

1.496 0 0 1.496 

Unsupported 
Borrowing 

9.692 1.144 870 11.706 

Useable capital 
receipts 

0.412 0.800 2.993 4.205 

Grants and 
contributions 
from  third parties 

8.399 0.919 1.153 10.471 

Direct Revenue 
Financing 

7.664 9.933 5.380 22.977 

Major Repairs 
Allowance 

10.394 13.096 13.247 36.737 

Total 38.057 25.892 23.643 87.592 

 
 
Supported Borrowing 
 
Supported borrowing is where the Government funds the cost of borrowing 
through the Housing Revenue Account Subsidy Settlement. 
 
Unsupported Borrowing (prudential borrowing) 
 
Unsupported borrowing is where the Housing Revenue Account meets the full 
capital financing costs with no support from Government. 
 
There is therefore no specific cash limit on borrowing but the key focus is on 
the ability to meet the capital financing costs from revenue budgets in the long 
term. 
 
Useable Capital Receipts 
 
Authorities are only able to use 25% of the proceeds from the sale of Council 
Houses and 50% from the sale of other Housing Revenue Account assets to 
finance capital expenditure in either the Housing Revenue Account or the 
General Fund Capital Programmes.  However, it is possible to fully utilise the 
receipts from the sale of certain HRA assets (the principal exclusions being 
receipts from Right-to-Buy sales and Large Scale Voluntary Transfers) 
provided the receipts are used for “the provision of affordable housing”.  The 
definition of “affordable housing” includes support to Registered Social 
Landlords and works to the Councils own stock to bring the dwellings up to 

Appendix 3



decent homes standard (or higher standard).  To utilise this facility it is 
necessary for a resolution to be passed that sets the Council’s expected 
spend on “affordable housing” for a given period before any sales take place.  
Such a resolution is included in the HRA budget report. 
 
It should be noted that General Fund receipts can be used to finance the HRA 
Capital Programme and vice versa without any compensating adjustments 
being made to either the General Fund or the Housing Revenue Account.  
However, the interest receipted on the usable proportion of all capital receipts 
must be paid to the General Fund.  Therefore, if Housing Revenue Account 
expenditure on capital schemes is financed from usable capital receipts, there 
is a cost to the General Fund because it will not receive interest on those 
capital receipts. 
 
Grants and contributions from third parties 
 
Contributions are received from third parties in respect of capital expenditure 
incurred by the Council e.g. payments from leaseholders of sold Council flats 
in respect of any major works that have been carried out to their homes.  In 
addition significant contributions are expected from the NDC and a CHP 
developer. 
 
Direct Revenue Financing 
 
This is the contribution from the HRA revenue account to fund the capital 
programme.  
 
Major Repairs Allowance 
 
The MRA is intended to represent the cost of maintaining the stock in its 
current condition and is an annual allowance set by DCLG as part of the 
annual HRA subsidy settlement.  
 



S
e
c
ti
o
n

P
ro

je
c

t
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s

2
0

1
0

/1
1

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s

2
0

1
2

/1
3

T
o

ta
l

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

D
e
c
e
n
t
H

o
m

e
s

p
lu

s
D

e
c
e
n
t
H

o
m

e
s

p
lu

s
-

fu
tu

re
s
c
h
e
m

e
s

0
-3

1
0
1

0
-3

1
0
1

D
e
c
e
n
t
H

o
m

e
s

p
lu

s
S

h
e
lt
e
re

d
C

o
m

m
u
n
a
l
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t
1
1
/1

2
0

2
9
2

0
2
9
2

D
e
c
e
n
t
H

o
m

e
s

p
lu

s
C

h
e
ri
to

n
A

v
e
n
u
e

L
a
n
d

D
ra

in
1
0
0

0
1
0
0

D
e
c
e
n
t
H

o
m

e
s

p
lu

s
H

e
a
ti
n
g

s
y
s
te

m
s

u
p
g
ra

d
e

1
1
/1

2
0

3
5
0

0
3
5
0

D
e
c
e
n
t
H

o
m

e
s

p
lu

s
E

n
e
rg

y
S

a
v
in

g
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
1
1
/1

2
0

2
0
0

0
2
0
0

D
e
c
e
n
t
H

o
m

e
s

p
lu

s
S

h
e
lt
e
re

d
s
e
lf

c
o
n
ta

in
e
d

c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
s

1
1
/1

2
0

1
0
0

0
1
0
0

D
e
c
e
n
t
H

o
m

e
s

p
lu

s
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
fe

e
s

1
1
/1

2
0

4
2
0

0
4
2
0

D
e
c
e
n
t
H

o
m

e
s

p
lu

s
M

o
b
ile

W
o
rk

in
g

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
-2

5
0

0
0

-2
5
0

D
e
c
e
n
t
H

o
m

e
s

p
lu

s
S

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d

C
o
m

m
u
n
a
l
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

-
G

ra
y
lin

g
s

0
5
5
9

0
5
5
9

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
D

e
c
e
n

t
H

o
m

e
s

p
lu

s
-2

5
0

-1
0
8
0

0
-1

3
3
0

D
e
c
e
n
t
H

o
m

e
s

E
le

c
tr

ic
a
l
re

n
e
w

a
l
1
1
/1

2
0

3
0
0

0
3
0
0

D
e
c
e
n
t
H

o
m

e
s

R
o
o
f

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t
1
1
/1

2
0

3
0
0

0
3
0
0

D
e
c
e
n
t
H

o
m

e
s

S
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l
w

o
rk

s
1
1
/1

2
0

4
0
0

0
4
0
0

D
e
c
e
n
t
H

o
m

e
s

D
e
c
e
n
t
h
o
m

e
s

1
1
/1

2
0

5
4
0
8

0
5
4
0
8

D
e
c
e
n
t
H

o
m

e
s

D
is

a
b
le

d
a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
s

1
1
/1

2
0

6
7
5

0
6
7
5

D
e
c
e
n
t
H

o
m

e
s

N
o

S
h
a
re

P
o
in

t
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e

0
-7

7
8
9

5
2

-7
7
3
7

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l
D

e
c
e
n

t
H

o
m

e
s

0
-7

0
6

5
2

-6
5
4

D
e
c
e
n
t
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

P
a
th

w
a
y

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

0
2
5
0

0
2
5
0

D
e
c
e
n
t
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

P
le

a
s
a
n
t
V

ie
w

C
a
r

P
a
rk

in
g

5
0

0
0

5
0

D
e
c
e
n
t
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

D
N

:
E

.I
.P

1
1
/1

2
0

2
0
0

0
2
0
0

D
e
c
e
n
t
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

S
h
ir
le

y
1
1
/1

2
0

5
0
0

4
7
5

9
7
5

D
e
c
e
n
t
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

D
e
c
e
n
t
H

o
m

e
s

-
fu

tu
re

s
c
h
e
m

e
s

-8
0

-1
8
0
5

-5
0
5

-2
3
9
0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l
D

e
c
e
n

t
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
-3

0
-8

5
5

-3
0

-9
1
5

E
s
ta

te
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

E
s
ta

te
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

F
u
tu

re
S

c
h
e
m

e
s

0
-1

6
5

0
-1

6
5

E
s
ta

te
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

S
it
e

d
is

p
o
s
a
ls

6
0

1
3
5

0
1
9
5

E
s
ta

te
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

M
a
jo

r
E

s
ta

te
re

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

7
0

1
4
0
0

5
0
0
0

6
4
7
0

E
s
ta

te
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

F
u
rt

h
e
r

s
h
o
p
p
in

g
p
a
ra

d
e

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

5
9
7
5

9
7
5

1
9
5
5

E
s
ta

te
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

O
th

e
r

s
it
e

a
s
s
e
m

b
ly

c
o
s
ts

0
5
6
0

0
5
6
0

E
s
ta

te
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

C
u
m

b
ri
a
n

W
a
y

-
C

o
u
n
c
il

L
e
d

re
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

1
0
0

2
4
0
0

2
3
0
0

4
8
0
0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l
E

s
ta

te
R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
2
3
5

5
3
0
5

8
2
7
5

1
3
8
1
5

O
th

e
r

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d

c
h
a
n
g
e
s

-2
6
1
8

2
4
1
6

2
2
7

2
5

T
o

ta
l

-2
6
6
3

5
0
8
0

8
5
2
4

1
0
9
4
1

Appendix 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Wyndham Court Car Parking Charges 
 
 
Current Situation: 
 
The current situation at Wyndham Court is that we charge different rates to 
council tenants and leaseholders for renting a car parking space.   The 
charges are: 
 
£3.28 per week for Council Tenants 
£4.91 per week for Leaseholders / Private tenants 
 
As at 9/11/10 we currently rent 76 spaces to Council Tenants and 29 to 
Leaseholders / Private tenants, giving a total of 105 spaces rented. 
 
Aim: 
 
The aim is to harmonise rents so that council tenants and leaseholders are 
charged the same, this would be a more fairer and equitable system. 
 
Proposal: 
 
Currently through renting the spaces to Council Tenants and Leaseholders a 
weekly income of £391.67 is received to the HRA. 
 
This is worked out as follows: 
 
76 x 3.28 per week = £249.28 
29 x 4.91 per week = £142.39 
 
Total = £391.67 
 
In order to make sure that we receive the same amount of income to the HRA 
you could simply divide this by 105 (the total number of residents renting car 
parking spaces). 
 
This would mean that the weekly charge would be £3.73 per week, resulting in 
a 13.7% increase for Council Tenants and a decrease of 24% for 
Leaseholders. 
 
The general increase in charges of 6.99% would be levied on top of this new 
charge, bringing the charge up to £3.99 per week. 
 

Appendix 5



This page is intentionally left blank



HM (HS-F) RENT SETTING PROCEDURE 1110 

RENT SETTING PROCEDURE 
 

The following rent setting procedure is to be adopted in the setting of rents for new build, 
acquired and converted council properties. 

 
1. New Build 

 
New build rents are to be set at full formula rents from initial let or as otherwise 
required by any grant giving body. 

 
2. Acquired Properties 

 
The numbers of acquired properties are strictly limited in number and the rent should 
be set at full formula rent from initial let or as otherwise required by any grant giving 
body. 

 
3. Converted Properties 
 

The principal aim is to ensure the council treats its tenants in a just and equitable 
manner and that rental charges on similar size and type of properties is broadly the 
same in a particular block, scheme, street or neighbourhood, to ensure parity 
between neighbouring tenants. 

 

In determining the rent for converted council properties (bed-sit to 1 bed, etc.) the 
following applies. 

 

a) Reference must be made to properties of a similar type and size within the 
same block or scheme. 

b) If a property of the same type and size exists, the rent must be set at the 
same level and incorporated within the rent restructuring plan. 

c) If there are no properties of the same type and size within the block or 
scheme, similar properties within the same street or geographic area must 
be used as a comparator to set the appropriate rent level. Again, this will 
be incorporated within the rent restructuring plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Appendix 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  CABINET 

COUNCIL 

SUBJECT: THE GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2010/11 
TO 2013/14 

DATE OF DECISION: 7 FEBRUARY 2011 

16 FEBRUARY 2011 

REPORT OF: CABINET MEMBER FOR RESOURCES AND 
WORKFORCE PLANNING PORTFOLIO 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

N/A 

BRIEF SUMMARY 

The purpose of this report is to inform Council of any major changes in the overall 
General Fund Capital Programme since it was last reported on 15th September 2010.  
This report also outlines the way in which the revised programme has been funded, 
reflecting the changes in availability and usage of capital resources. 

The net result of the changes in this report is that the current overall programme has 
increased by £13.1M. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 CABINET 

Recommends that Full Council: 

 (i) Approve the revised General Fund Capital Programme (which totals 
£219.5M as detailed in paragraph 4) and use of resources. 

 (ii) Approve the over programming of £9.2M as detailed in paragraph 11 
which is within the previously approved tolerances. 

 (iii) Add £1.4M to the Leader’s capital programme in 2011/12 for the 
following schemes to be funded by revenue: 

• Major Site Development Posts - £150,000 

• Watermark West Quay - £346,000 

• West Quay Site B Phase 2 - £37,000 

• Royal Pier - £445,000 

• Town Depot - £381,000 

• Former Tyrrell & Green Site - £60,000 

• Fruit & Vegetable Market - £25,000 

 (iv) Add £3.8M to the Environment & Transport capital programme in 
2011/12 for the following works to be funded by government grants 
(LTP Settlement): 

• Roads & Other Highways - £1,923,000 

• Integrated Transport - £1,900,000 

Agenda Item 5



 2

 (v) Add £2,649,000 to the Environment & Transport capital programme 
in 2011/12 for roads to be funded by revenue. 

 (vi) Add £2,054,000 to the Environment & Transport capital programme 
in 2011/12 for Roads to be funded by Council Resources (Highways 
Borrowing). 

 (vii) Add £1.0M to the Environment & Transport capital programme for 
the Itchen Bridge Toll Automation - £150,000 in 2010/11 and 
£850,000 in 2011/12, to be funded by council resources 
(unsupported borrowing) £510,000 and contributions £490,000. 

 (viii) Add £920,000 to the Environment & Transport capital programme for 
the following schemes to be funded by revenue: 

• Congestion Relief - £100,000 in 2011/12 

• Pavement Works - £200,000 in 2010/11 and £550,000 in 
2011/12 

• St Denys Footway & Lighting - £70,000 in 2010/11 

 (ix) Add £800,000 to the Environment & Transport capital programme in 
2011/12 for the following schemes to be funded by contributions: 

• Civic Centre Place - £625,000  

• Legible Cities - £175,000  

 (x) Add £310,000 to the Adult Social Care & Health capital programme 
in 2011/12 for the following schemes to be funded by revenue: 

• Care Standards and Health & Safety £260,000 

• Essential Appliances and Equipment £50,000 

 (xi) Add an additional £50,000 to the Local Services & Community 
Safety capital programme for the Daisy Dip scheme to be funded by 
council resources (Aster House capital receipt). 

 (xii) Note that the revised General Fund Capital Programme takes into 
account the Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) for 2011/12 
and future years. 

 COUNCIL 

It is recommended that Council 

 (i) Approve the revised General Fund Capital Programme (which totals 
£219.5M as detailed in paragraph 4) and use of resources. 

 (ii) Approve the over programming of £9.2M as detailed in paragraph 11 
which is within the previously approved tolerances. 

 

 

 

 

 



 3

 (iii) Add £1.4M to the Leader’s capital programme in 2011/12 for the 
following schemes to be funded by revenue: 

• Major Site Development Posts - £150,000 

• Watermark West Quay - £346,000 

• West Quay Site B Phase 2 - £37,000 

• Royal Pier - £445,000 

• Town Depot - £381,000 

• Former Tyrrell & Green Site - £60,000 

• Fruit & Vegetable Market - £25,000 

 (iv) Add £3.8M to the Environment & Transport capital programme in 
2011/12 for the following works to be funded by government grants 
(LTP Settlement): 

• Roads & Other Highways - £1,923,000 

• Integrated Transport - £1,900,000 

 (v) Add £2,649,000 to the Environment & Transport capital programme 
in 2011/12 for roads to be funded by revenue. 

 (vi) Add £2,054,000 to the Environment & Transport capital programme 
in 2011/12 for Roads to be funded by Council Resources (Highways 
Borrowing). 

 (vii) Add £1.0M to the Environment & Transport capital programme for 
the Itchen Bridge Toll Automation - £150,000 in 2010/11 and 
£850,000 in 2011/12, to be funded by council resources 
(unsupported borrowing) £510,000 and contributions £490,000. 

 (viii) Add £920,000 to the Environment & Transport capital programme for 
the following schemes to be funded by revenue: 

• Congestion Relief - £100,000 in 2011/12 

• Pavement Works - £200,000 in 2010/11 and £550,000 in 
2011/12 

• St Denys Footway & Lighting - £70,000 in 2010/11 

 (ix) Add £800,000 to the Environment & Transport capital programme in 
2011/12 for the following schemes to be funded by contributions: 

• Civic Centre Place - £625,000  

• Legible Cities - £175,000 

 (x) Add £310,000 to the Adult Social Care & Health capital programme 
in 2011/12 for the following schemes to be funded by revenue: 

• Care Standards and Health & Safety £260,000 

• Essential Appliances and Equipment £50,000 

 (xi) Add an additional £50,000 to the Local Services & Community 
Safety capital programme for the Daisy Dip scheme to be funded by 
Council Resources (Aster House capital receipt). 



 4

 (xii) Note that the revised General Fund Capital Programme takes into 
account the Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) for 2011/12 
and future years. 

   

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. The update of the Capital Programme is undertaken twice a year in 
accordance with Council Policy and is required to enable schemes in the 
programme to proceed and to approve additions and changes to the 
programme. 

  

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

2. The update of the Capital Programme is undertaken within the resource 
constraints imposed on it.  No new schemes can be added unless specific 
additional resources are identified.  Alternative options for new capital 
spending are considered as part of the Budget setting process. 

  

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out) 

 CONSULTATION 

3. The General Fund Capital Programme update summarises additions to the 
capital programme since September 2010.  Each addition to the capital 
programme has been subject to the relevant consultation process which now 
reflects the key role played by Capital Boards and the developing use of the 
Councils project management system Sharepoint.  The content of this report has 
been subject to consultation with Finance Officers from each portfolio. 

  

 THE FORWARD CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

4. The following table shows a comparison of the total planned expenditure for each 
year with the sums previously approved.  The Latest Programme figures include 
additions to the programme which are subject to approval of the specific 
recommendations. 

 

 

2010/11 

£000’s 

2011/12 

£000’s 

2012/13 

£000’s 

2013/14 

£000’s 

Later 
Years 

£000’s 

Total  

£000’s 
Latest  
Programme 

99,174 82,330 17,157 4,950 15,853 219,464 

Sep 2010  
Programme 

118,956 53,682 21,530 0 12,173 206,341 

Variance (19,782) 28,648 (4,373) 4,950 3,680 13,123 
 

  

 

 



 5

5. The above table shows that the General Fund Capital Programme has increased 
by £13.1M.  With the exception of changes requiring approval detailed in this 
report’s recommendations, all of the increase has been previously approved by 
Council, Cabinet or under delegated authority. Details of each portfolio’s 
programme are shown in Appendix 1. 

The change in individual portfolios’ capital programmes is shown in the following 
table and a summary of the major variations, together with the source of funding 
and the priorities to which they contribute, is detailed in Appendix 2: 

 

 

 

Latest 
Programme 

£000’s 

Previous 
Programme 

£000’s 

Total 
Change 

£000’s 

Children’s Services & Learning 57,538 56,329 1,209 

Leader’s (Economic Development.) 11,391 10,367 1,024 

Environment & Transport 42,770 31,148 11,622 

Adult Social Care & Health 4,161 3,773 388 

Housing  10,241 11,284 (1,043) 

Local Services & Community Safety 2,345 2,271 74 

Leisure, Culture & Heritage 40,596 40,747 (151) 

Resources & Workforce Planning 50,422 50,422 0 

Total GF Capital Programme 219,464 206,341 13,123 
 

  

 CAPITAL RESOURCES 

6. The resources which can be used to fund the capital programme are as follows: 

• Supported Borrowing  

• Unsupported Borrowing 

• Capital Receipts from the sale of HRA assets 

• Capital Receipts from the sale of General Fund assets 

• Contributions from third parties 

• Central Government Grants   

• Grants from other bodies 

• Direct Revenue Financing (DRF) raised from Council Tax payers or 
balances 

7. Capital Receipts from the sale of Right to Buy (RTB) properties are passed to the 
General Fund capital programme to support the Housing Association schemes 
within the Housing Portfolio. 

  

 



 6

 CHANGES IN AVAILABLE RESOURCES 

8. The additional spending within the Capital programme must be met from 
additional sources of finance.  The following table shows the resource changes 
that have taken place since September 2010: 

 

 £000’s 

Supported Borrowing (6) 

Unsupported Borrowing 2,133 

Capital Receipts 1,512 

Contributions 165 

Capital Grants 4,986 

Car Parking Surplus 0 

DRF from Balances 777 

Contribution from Revenue 2,354 

Direct Revenue Financing from Portfolios 1,984 

Total Change in Available Resources 13,905 
 

  

9. The main reasons for the resource changes are detailed in Appendix 3.  It should 
be noted that the programme takes into account the outcome of the 
Comprehensive Spending Review for 2011/12 and future years. This affects 
areas such as the roads programme within the Environment & Transport capital 
programme which is heavily reliant on grant funding from government each year. 

  

 OVERALL USE OF RESOURCES 

10. The following table shows capital expenditure by portfolio and the use of 
resources to finance the General Fund Capital Programme: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 7

 

2010/11 

£000’s 

2011/12 

£000’s 

2012/13 

£000’s 

2013/14 

£000’s 

Later 
Years 

£000’s 

Total  

£000’s 

Children’s Services & 
Learning 

23,394 29,224 4,316 430 174 57,538 

Leader’s  6,933 3,473 0 0 985 11,391 

Environment & 
Transport 

21,430 19,612 1,516 212 0 42,770 

Adult Social Care & 
Health 

1,148 2,363 650 0 0 4,161 

Housing  4,691 3,675 1,563 22 290 10,241 

Local Services & 
Community Safety 

1,462 722 161 0 0 2,345 

Leisure, Culture & 
Heritage 

7,946 13,037 1,688 3,521 14,404 40,596 

Resources & Workforce 
Planning 

32,170 10,224 7,263 765 0 50,422 

Total GF Capital 
Programme 

99,174 82,330 17,157 4,950 15,853 219,464 
 

  

 
 

2010/11 

£000’s 

2011/12 

£000’s 

2012/13 

£000’s 

2013/14 

£000’s 

Later 
Years 

£000’s 

Total  

£000’s 

       

Supported Borrowing 6,840 0 0 0 0 6,840 

Unsupported Borrowing 40,988 9,454 4,196 1,058 1,058 56,753 

Capital Receipts 6,272 10,876 5,004 5,719 15,430 43,301 

Contributions 5,842 6,452 766 470 1,920 15,450 

Capital Grants 26,513 36,998 4,481 2,010 5,674 75,676 

Car Parking Surplus 85 200 0 0 0 285 

Contributions from Rev 2,354 0 0 0 0 2,354 

DRF from Balances 1,264 1,194 0 0 0 2,458 

DRF from Portfolios 2,763 4,252 133 0 0 7,148 

Total Financing 92,921 69,426 14,580 9,257 24,082 210,265 

Surplus / (Deficit) (6,253) (12,904) (2,577) 4,307 8,229 (9,199) 
 



 8

11. The table above shows that following the latest update of the capital programme 
there is deficit of £9.2M due largely to the loss of capital receipts.  This is 
compared to the £10.5M deficit reported in September 2010.  The deficit has 
reduced largely due to additional future capital receipts. At this stage rather than 
make large scale changes to the existing programme, it is recommended that 
the Council continue to “over-programme’ on the basis that in future years the 
position should improve.  The deficit represents 4.2% of the overall capital 
programme which is within the limit of 5% set in the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy and approved on the 13th May 2009. 

12. The table also shows that there is deficit funding in the early years of the 
programme and the biggest individual deficit is £12.9M in 2011/12.  However, 
analysis of previous programmes has shown that there has been on average a 
minimum level of slippage of £15M per annum and therefore based on the current 
profile of the programme it is anticipated that the over programming can be 
contained. 

13. It is therefore proposed at this stage to manage the deficit in individual years 
through slippage in the programme, which will be monitored carefully throughout 
the year, although delegated powers do exist to prudentially borrow in the event 
of a deficit in any particular year.  The overall deficit of £9.2M in the programme 
will be met from new resources that will become available in future years or by 
the use of prudential borrowing, the costs of which will have to be built into future 
budget forecasts.  

14. Given the deficit in the programme and the lack of available capital resources 
over the past three years, additions to the programme are only considered in very 
exceptional circumstances.  The proposed capital programme in this report 
contains nine items for approval which are detailed below. 

15. A large element relates to major site development in the City which represents 
the continuation of schemes which have already begun, but are only being funded 
on a year by year basis subject to available resources and the status of the sites 
themselves.  The progression of these sites is seen as one of the key priorities of 
the Council since each one will bring new investment, new development and new 
jobs to the City. 

16. The addition of the works to the Environment & Transport programme totalling 
£920,000 are partly to replace monies lost as part of the LTP settlement but also 
to take the opportunity to use new technologies to undertake significant footpath 
improvement works across the City which will bring environmental and health 
benefits to many areas that desperately need it.  The other additions totalling just 
over £10.3M reflect the addition of the financial year 2011/12 to the programme, 
largely as a result of the LTP settlement. 

17. The additions in Adult Social Care and Health reflect the annual ongoing 
programme of improvements to Council owned care facilities and the replacement 
of equipment, both of which are essential if the facilities are to remain open in an 
acceptable condition. 

18. The £50,000 for Daisy Dip represents a commitment made by the Council 
following the successful bid as part of the people’s millions.   More details of the 
additions are shown below. 



 9

19. Add £1.4M to the Leader’s capital programme in 2011/12 for the following 
schemes to be funded by revenue: 

• Major Site Development Posts - £150,000 

• Watermark West Quay - £346,000 

• West Quay Site B Phase 2 - £37,000 

• Royal Pier - £445,000 

• Town Depot - £381,000 

• Former Tyrrell & Green Site - £60,000 

• Fruit & Vegetable Market - £25,000 

Add £3.8M to the Environment & Transport capital programme in 2011/12 for the 
following works to be funded by Government Grants (LTP Settlement). 

• Roads - £1,923,000  

• Integrated Transport - £1,900,000  

Add £2,649,000 to the Environment & Transport capital programme in 2011/12 for 
Roads to be funded by revenue. 

Add £2,054,000 to the Environment & Transport capital programme in 2011/12 for 
Roads to be funded by Council Resources (Highways Borrowing). 

Add £1.0M to the Environment & Transport capital programme for the Itchen 
Bridge Toll Automation - £150,000 in 2010/11 and £850,000 in 2011/12, to be 
funded by Council Resources (unsupported borrowing) £510,000 and 
contributions £490,000. 

Add £920,000 to the Environment & Transport capital programme for the 
following schemes to be funded by revenue: 

• Congestion Relief - £100,000 in 2011/12 

• Pavement Works - £200,000 in 2010/11 and £550,000 in 2011/12 

• St Denys Footway & Lighting - £70,000 in 2010/11 

Add £800,000 to the Environment & Transport capital programme in 2011/12 for 
the following schemes to be funded by contributions: 

• Civic Centre Place - £625,000 

• Legible Cities - £175,000  

Add £310,000 to the Adult Social Care & Health capital programme in 2011/12 for 
the following schemes to be funded by revenue: 

• Care Standards and Health & Safety £260,000 

• Essential Appliances and Equipment £50,000 

Add £50,000 to the Local Services & Community Safety capital programme for 
the Daisy Dip scheme to be funded by Council Resources (Aster House capital 
receipt). 

  

 

 



 10

 CHANGES TO THE PROGRAMME 

21. A number of changes to the overall programme have been approved at Capital 
Boards and via separate reports.   

22. A recommendation to approve the addition of £310,000 to the Adult Social Care & 
Health portfolio is included within this report. This additional expenditure is for 
further essential health and safety work and equipment replacement at care 
homes and is funded from revenue balances. There is an ongoing need to 
provide equipment and undertake essential works to the City’s care homes now 
that Government borrowing approvals have ceased to ensure minimum standards 
are maintained.  

23. A recommendation to approve the addition of £920,000 to the Environment & 
Transport Portfolio for congestion relief works and pavement works is included 
within this report. The updating of traffic signal control and communication 
equipment is to optimise junction efficiency on key corridors, incorporating public 
transport journey benefits. Additional investment in footways across the City is in 
response to public demand, to improve their condition, assist less mobile 
pedestrians and improve safety. 

24. A series of recommendations to approve the addition of £10.3M to the 
Environment & Transport portfolio to reflect the addition of the financial year 
2011/12 to the capital programme for Highways, Integrated Transport and Itchen 
Bridge Toll Automation works are also included.  The Council is continuing to 
invest £6M each year in highways infrastructure to help offset the deterioration of 
the City’s roads.  In 2011/12 this will be funded by £1.3M from the Local 
Transport Plan settlement (government grants), £2.6M from DRF and £2.1M from 
unsupported borrowing.  In addition, there will be a one-off investment of 
£750,000 in pavement works funded from revenue. 

25. A recommendation to approve the addition of £1.4M to the Leader’s portfolio for a 
number of schemes is included within this report.  This additional expenditure is 
for programme management and scheme progression for major projects is 
funded by revenue.  This is a continuation of previous funding that has been 
allocated to progress these key sites in the City but due to restrictions on capital 
funding provision is only being made one forward year at a time. 

26. A recommendation to approve the addition of a further £50,000 to the Local 
Services & Community Safety portfolio for the Daisy dip scheme is included within 
this report. This represents match funding of the People’s Millions 50,000 award 
for a multi-use games area at Daisy Dip. 

 NEW SPENDING PRIORITIES PUT FORWARD BY CABINET 

27. Due to the current over-programming and lack of additional funding, no new 
initiatives, other than those outlined above as consistent with previous policy 
decisions are being proposed. 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital  

28. As set out in the report details. 

 



 11

Revenue 

29. This report principally deals with capital. However, the revenue implications 
arising from borrowing to support the capital programme are considered as 
part of the annual revenue budget setting meetings.  In addition any revenue 
consequences arising from new capital schemes are considered as part of the 
approval process for each individual scheme. 

Property 

30. There are no specific property implications arising from this report other than 
the schemes already referred to within the main body of the report. 

Other 

31. None 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

32. The General Fund Capital Programme update is prepared in accordance with 
the Local Government Acts 1972 – 2003. 

Other Legal Implications:  

33. None directly, but in preparing this report, the Council has had regard to the 
Human Rights Act 1998, and the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2001 and 
other associated legislation. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

34. The update of the Capital Programme forms part of the overall Budget 
Strategy of the Council. 

AUTHOR: Name:  Andrew Lowe Tel: 023 8083 2049 

 E-mail: Andrew Lowe @southampton.gov.uk 

KEY DECISION? Yes/No YES 

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: ALL 

 



 12

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Non-confidential appendices are in the Members’ Rooms and can be accessed 
on-line 

Appendices  

1. General Fund Capital Programme – Scheme Details 

2. Major Variations since September 2010 Capital Update 

3. Major Reasons for Changes in Capital Resources 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Integrated Impact Assessment  

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Integrated Impact 
Assessment (IIA) to be carried out. 

Yes/No 

Other Background Documents 

Integrated Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for 
inspection at: 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if applicable) 

1. The General Fund Capital Programme  

2009/10 to 2012/13 as approved by Council 
on the 15th September 2010. 

 

 
 



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

A
D

U
L

T
S

O
C

IA
L

C
A

R
E

&
H

E
A

L
T

H
C

A
P

IT
A

L

S
c
h
e
m

e

N
o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
0
/1

1

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
1
/1

2

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
2
/1

3

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
3
/1

4

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

L
a
te

r
Y

rs

£
0
0
0

T
o
ta

l

£
0
0
0

P
ro

je
c
t
M

a
n
a
g
e
r

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

R
9
2
1
5

M
o
d
e
rn

is
a
ti
o
n

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
D

a
y

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

-
P

h
a
s
e

2
2
4
3

1
0
0

0
0

0
3
4
3

H
a
rr

is
,
S

u
s
a
n

R
9
2
6
5

S
D

S
M

o
d
e
rn

is
a
ti
o
n

W
o
o
ls

to
n

C
o
m

m
C

e
n
tr

e
1
0
0

3
5
0

6
5
0

0
0

1
,1

0
0

H
a
rr

is
,
S

u
s
a
n

R
9
3
1
0

M
e
n
ta

l
H

e
a
lt
h

S
c
h
e
m

e
(R

9
3
1
0
)

2
7
6

0
0

0
0

2
7
6

B
in

n
s
,
C

a
ro

le

R
9
3
3
0

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l
C

a
re

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
a
n
d

H
&

S
W

o
rk

1
0
0

4
2
4

0
0

0
5
2
4

C
h
a
n
,
L
in

d
a

R
9
3
4
0

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t
o
f

A
p
p
lia

n
c
e
s

a
n
d

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

7
7

1
2
0

0
0

0
1
9
7

C
h
a
n
,
L
in

d
a

R
9
3
6
0

B
lu

e
B

a
d
g
e

-
S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
C

e
n
tr

e
fo

r
E

x
c
e
lle

n
c
e

1
8

0
0

0
0

1
8

Y
a
s
in

,
S

a
q
ib

R
9
5
0
0

IT
In

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
G

ra
n
t

9
6
3

0
0

0
7
2

C
h
u
b
b
,
A

n
d
re

a

R
9
7
0
0

C
o
m

m
o
n

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

1
7
0

1
,3

0
6

0
0

0
1
,4

7
6

Y
a
s
in

,
S

a
q
ib

9
9
3

2
,3

6
3

6
5
0

0
0

4
,0

0
6

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

R
9
7
1
0

S
C

R
G

C
a
p
it
a
l
-

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
A

d
u
lt

S
o
c
ia

l
C

a
re

1
5
5

0
0

0
0

1
5
5

C
h
u
b
b
,
A

n
d
re

a

1
5
5

0
0

0
0

1
5
5

T
o

ta
l
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

1
,1

4
8

2
,3

6
3

6
5
0

0
0

4
,1

6
1

Appendix 1



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
'S

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
&

L
E

A
R

N
IN

G
C

A
P

IT
A

L

S
c
h
e
m

e

N
o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
0
/1

1

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
1
/1

2

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
2
/1

3

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
3
/1

4

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

L
a
te

r
Y

rs

£
0
0
0

T
o
ta

l

£
0
0
0

P
ro

je
c
t
M

a
n
a
g
e
r

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

E
0
A

C
A

A
c
a
d
e
m

ie
s
.

5
,4

9
9

1
1
,4

2
3

3
6
1

0
0

1
7
,2

8
3

E
0
B

P
S

B
it
te

rn
e

P
a
rk

6
th

F
o
rm

P
a
re

n
t

1
,7

6
8

3
,1

1
7

7
4

0
0

4
,9

5
9

E
0
C

C
3

C
h
ild

re
n
's

C
e
n
tr

e
s

P
h
a
s
e

3
4
,0

3
0

7
1

0
0

0
4
,1

0
1

E
0
C

C
C

C
h
ild

re
n
s

C
e
n
tr

e
C

a
p
it
a
l
P

ro
je

c
ts

3
1
3

4
2

0
0

0
3
5
5

E
0
C

S
L

C
S

&
L

G
e
n
e
ra

l
O

th
e
r

2
8
5

0
0

0
0

2
8
5

E
0
D

IP
1
4
-1

9
D

ip
lo

m
a
s
,
S

E
N

a
n
d

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
0

5
,1

4
7

0
0

0
5
,1

4
7

E
0
IC

T
IC

T
5
2
8

2
6
8

0
0

0
7
9
6

E
0
K

IT
S

c
h
o
o
l
K

it
c
h
e
n
s

4
2
4

0
0

0
0

4
2
4

E
0
N

D
S

N
e
w

D
e
a
ls

fo
r

S
c
h
o
o
ls

1
,6

7
0

2
3
8

0
0

0
1
,9

0
8

E
0
O

L
D

C
o
m

p
le

te
d

S
c
h
e
m

e
s

-6
1

0
0

0
0

-6
1

E
0
P

L
A

P
la

y
A

re
a
s
.

4
8
1

4
1
9

0
0

0
9
0
0

E
0
P

R
2

P
ri

m
a
ry

R
e
v
ie

w
P

h
a
s
e

2
.

6
9
0

0
0

0
0

6
9
0

E
0
P

R
H

P
ri

m
a
ry

R
e
b
u
ild

-
H

a
re

fi
e
ld

2
,0

0
0

1
,0

6
0

1
4
9

0
0

3
,2

0
9

E
0
P

R
I

P
ri

m
a
ry

S
c
h
o
o
l
R

e
b
u
ild

P
ro

je
c
ts

3
7
8

2
0

0
0

0
3
9
8

E
0
P

R
N

P
ri

m
a
ry

R
e
b
u
ild

-
N

e
w

la
n
d
s

4
7
5

3
,7

2
5

2
,7

0
0

3
4
3

0
7
,2

4
3

E
0
P

R
R

P
ri

m
a
ry

R
e
b
u
ild

-
R

e
d
b
ri

d
g
e

4
7
4

0
0

0
0

4
7
4

E
0
P

R
W

P
ri

m
a
ry

R
e
v
ie

w
.

1
,8

7
1

2
,9

9
2

8
8
8

8
7

1
7
4

6
,0

1
2

E
0
S

A
F

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

2
9
8

1
3
2

0
0

0
4
3
0

E
0
S

C
A

S
c
h
o
o
ls

A
c
c
e
s
s

In
it
ia

ti
v
e

(E
0
S

C
A

)
1
6
0

0
0

0
0

1
6
0

E
0
S

C
N

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

S
c
h
o
o
ls

R
e
v
ie

w
3
7
2

1
0
0

1
4
4

0
0

6
1
6

E
0
S

E
N

S
p
e
c
ia

l
E

d
u
c
ti
o
n

N
e
e
d
s

R
e
v
ie

w
1
,5

9
4

6
0

0
0

0
1
,6

5
4

E
0
Y

P
S

Y
o
u
n
g

P
e
o
p
le

&
S

k
ill

s
7
5

1
0

0
0

7
6

2
3
,3

2
4

2
8
,8

1
5

4
,3

1
6

4
3
0

1
7
4

5
7
,0

5
9

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

E
0
Y

P
S

Y
o
u
n
g

P
e
o
p
le

&
S

k
ill

s
7
0

4
0
9

0
0

0
4
7
9

7
0

4
0
9

0
0

0
4
7
9

T
o

ta
l
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

2
3
,3

9
4

2
9
,2

2
4

4
,3

1
6

4
3
0

1
7
4

5
7
,5

3
8



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
A

P
IT

A
L

S
c
h
e
m

e

N
o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
0
/1

1

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
1
/1

2

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
2
/1

3

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
3
/1

4

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

L
a
te

r
Y

rs

£
0
0
0

T
o
ta

l

£
0
0
0

P
ro

je
c
t
M

a
n
a
g
e
r

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

A
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

C
7
1
7
1

A
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

4
2
0

3
2
5

0
0

0
7
4
5

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

4
2
0

3
2
5

0
0

0

A
c
ti
v
e

T
ra

v
e
l

C
7
1
2
1

W
a
lk

in
g

2
5
9

2
3
0

0
0

0
4
8
9

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

C
7
1
2
W

W
a
lk

in
g

-
B

e
d
fo

rd
P

la
c
e

5
0
2

0
0

0
0

5
0
2

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

C
7
1
3
1

C
y
c
lin

g
8
5
2

1
9
1

0
0

0
1
,0

4
3

B
o
s
to

c
k
,
D

a
le

1
,6

1
3

4
2
1

0
0

0

B
ri

d
g
e
s

C
6
1
2
0

C
h
a
n
tr

y
R

o
a
d

F
o
o
tb

ri
d
g
e

4
9
1

0
0

0
0

4
9
1

H
a
rv

e
y
,
J
o
h
n

C
7
9
0
0

It
c
h
e
n

B
ri

d
g
e

C
7
9
0
0

1
,0

6
1

1
3
9

0
0

0
1
,2

0
0

H
a
rv

e
y
,
J
o
h
n

C
7
9
1
1

B
ri

d
g
e
s

3
5
6

4
4
8

0
0

0
8
0
4

H
a
rv

e
y
,
J
o
h
n

1
,9

0
8

5
8
7

0
0

0

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t
&

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty

C
2
0
5
0

C
a
rb

o
n

E
m

is
s
io

n
s

In
v
e
n
to

ry
3
4

4
0

0
0

3
8

K
rz

a
n
o
w

s
k
i,

H
e
le

n

C
2
4
0
0

P
D

G
C

a
p
it
a
l

2
0
4

6
5

0
0

0
2
6
9

N
ic

h
o
ls

,
P

a
u
l

C
2
4
1
0

M
o
b
ile

W
o
rk

in
g

1
5

3
5

0
0

0
5
0

F
e
rr

is
,
N

e
il

C
2
5
2
0

S
a
lix

E
n
e
rg

y
E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y

M
e
a
s
u
re

s
2
1
3

0
0

0
0

2
1
3

T
a
y
lo

r,
J
a
s
o
n

4
6
6

1
0
4

0
0

0

G
e
n
e
ra

l
E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t

C
2
5
4
0

G
a
n
tr

y
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t
-

E
n
e
rg

y
In

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
3
9
3

0
0

0
0

3
9
3

S
id

le
,
C

h
ri

s
to

p
h
e
r

C
2
6
0
0

M
a
n
s
e
l
a
n
d

G
re

e
n

P
a
rk

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

1
0

0
0

0
1

F
ri

e
d
m

a
n
,
D

a
n
ie

lle

C
2
6
8
0

E
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l
W

o
rk

s
to

K
e
n
n
e
ls

5
5

0
0

0
0

5
5

W
ils

o
n
,
N

o
rm

a
n

C
2
6
9
0

R
e
lo

c
a
ti
o
n

o
f

T
o
w

n
D

e
p
o
t

6
,1

8
9

4
,5

4
3

1
1
8

0
0

1
0
,8

5
0

C
o
o
p
e
r,

M
a
lc

o
lm

C
2
7
4
0

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

M
a
jo

r
W

o
rk

s
1
2
9

1
,0

5
0

1
,3

9
8

2
1
2

0
2
,7

8
9

W
e
lls

,
P

h
ili

p

V
e
h
ic

le
P

u
rc

h
a
s
e

7
3
8

0
0

0
0

7
3
8

7
,5

0
5

5
,5

9
3

1
,5

1
6

2
1
2

0

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

O
th

e
r

C
3
9
1
0

T
ra

ff
ic

S
ig

n
a
ls

U
p
g
ra

d
e

2
0
0

2
0
0

0
0

0
4
0
0

W
y
lie

,
M

a
rt

in

C
7
1
9
1

L
T

P
-

O
th

e
r

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

2
0

5
0

0
0

0
7
0

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

C
7
1
9
C

C
it
y

C
e
n
tr

e
S

tu
d
ie

s
1

0
0

0
0

1
B

a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

C
7
2
4
1

D
N

U
M

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g

1
0
9

0
0

0
0

1
0
9

W
a
lk

e
r,

P
a
u
l

C
7
9
7
1

U
K

P
M

S
1
0
2

0
0

0
0

1
0
2

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

C
8
2
0
0

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

D
ra

in
a
g
e

(C
8
2
0
0
)

5
8

4
0

0
0

0
9
8

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

4
9
0

2
9
0

0
0

0



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
A

P
IT

A
L

S
c
h
e
m

e

N
o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
0
/1

1

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
1
/1

2

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
2
/1

3

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
3
/1

4

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

L
a
te

r
Y

rs

£
0
0
0

T
o
ta

l

£
0
0
0

P
ro

je
c
t
M

a
n
a
g
e
r

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

S
a
fe

ty

C
7
1
5
1

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

S
a
fe

ty
2
5
3

2
6
3

0
0

0
5
1
6

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

2
5
3

2
6
3

0
0

0

N
e
tw

o
rk

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

C
7
1
8
1

IT
S

1
0
0

0
0

0
0

1
0
0

B
u
rn

s
,
N

ic
h
o
la

s
1
0
0

0
0

0
0

P
a
rk

in
g

C
9
4
7
1

M
S

C
P

1
0

Y
e
a
r

M
a
in

t.
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
6
3
9

3
2
2

0
0

0
9
6
1

S
a
h
o
ta

,
J
a
s
w

in
d
e
r

6
3
9

3
2
2

0
0

0

P
u
b
lic

R
e
a
lm

C
7
3
6
0

L
o
c
a
l
a
n
d

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

e
n
tr

e
s

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

1
8
7

9
0

0
0

0
2
7
7

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

C
8
9
0
0

C
it
y

C
e
n
tr

e
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

2
0
0

7
2
5

0
0

0
9
2
5

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

3
8
7

8
1
5

0
0

0

P
u
b
lic

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

C
6
1
9
0

S
m

a
rt

c
a
rd

s
(M

ig
ra

ti
o
n

to
IT

S
O

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
)

3
0

0
0

0
3

B
e
ll,

S
im

o
n

C
7
1
4
1

P
u
b
lic

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

1
,1

0
2

7
3
5

0
0

0
1
,8

3
7

B
a
x
te

r,
F

ra
n
c
is

1
,1

0
5

7
3
5

0
0

0

R
o
a
d
s

C
6
1
2
4

D
o
c
k
g
a
te

2
0

4
0

0
0

0
4

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

C
7
9
2
1

V
a
ri

o
u
s

P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l

9
1
6

2
1
8

0
0

0
1
,1

3
4

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

C
7
9
2
J

S
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l
R

e
p
a
ir

s
C

7
9
2
J

3
8
1

0
0

0
0

3
8
1

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

C
7
9
5
E

P
o
rt

s
m

o
u
th

R
d

2
2
9

0
0

0
0

2
2
9

A
rm

s
tr

o
n
g
,
D

a
v
id

C
8
0
0
0

C
la

s
s
if
ie

d
R

o
a
d
s

8
4
3

1
2
1

0
0

0
9
6
4

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

C
8
1
0
0

U
n
c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
R

o
a
d
s

8
9
8

1
4
1

0
0

0
1
,0

3
9

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

C
9
0
0
0

A
d
v
a
n
c
e

D
e
s
ig

n
fe

e
s

3
5

0
0

0
0

3
5

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

C
9
1
2
0

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r)

9
1
1

0
0

0
0

9
1
1

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

C
9
1
3
1

S
u
rf

a
c
e

T
re

a
tm

e
n
ts

C
9
1
3
1

1
,0

5
4

0
0

0
0

1
,0

5
4

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

5
,2

7
1

4
8
0

0
0

0

S
tr

e
e
t
F

u
rn

it
u
re

C
8
8
0
0

S
t
F

u
rn

it
u
re

1
6
1

1
6
5

0
0

0
3
2
6

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

1
6
1

1
6
5

0
0

0

T
ra

v
e
l
P

la
n
n
in

g

C
7
1
6
1

T
ra

v
e
l
to

S
c
h
o
o
l

2
0
1

1
6
1

0
0

0
3
6
2

B
a
g
s
h
a
w

,
C

a
ro

l
2
0
1

1
6
1

0
0

0

2
0
,5

1
9

1
0
,2

6
1

1
,5

1
6

2
1
2

0
3
2
,5

0
8



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
A

P
IT

A
L

S
c
h
e
m

e

N
o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
0
/1

1

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
1
/1

2

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
2
/1

3

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
3
/1

4

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

L
a
te

r
Y

rs

£
0
0
0

T
o
ta

l

£
0
0
0

P
ro

je
c
t
M

a
n
a
g
e
r

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

A
c
ti
v
e

T
ra

v
e
l

C
7
1
3
1

C
y
c
lin

g
0

7
5

0
0

0
7
5

B
o
s
to

c
k
,
D

a
le

0
7
5

0
0

0

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t
&

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty

C
2
5
6
0

C
a
rb

o
n

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

M
e
a
s
u
re

s
0

7
5

0
0

0
7
5

T
a
y
lo

r,
J
a
s
o
n

0
7
5

0
0

0

G
e
n
e
ra

l
E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t

C
2
7
3
0

It
c
h
e
n

B
ri

d
g
e

T
o
ll

A
u
to

m
a
ti
o
n

P
ro

je
c
t

1
5
0

8
5
0

0
0

0
1
,0

0
0

J
o
h
n
s
o
n
,
N

ic
h
o
la

s
1
5
0

8
5
0

0
0

0

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

O
th

e
r

C
8
2
0
0

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

D
ra

in
a
g
e

(C
8
2
0
0
)

1
0
0

4
6

0
0

0
1
4
6

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

1
0
0

4
6

0
0

0

N
e
tw

o
rk

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

C
7
1
8
1

IT
S

0
5
4
7

0
0

0
5
4
7

B
u
rn

s
,
N

ic
h
o
la

s
0

5
4
7

0
0

0

P
u
b
lic

R
e
a
lm

C
8
9
0
0

C
it
y

C
e
n
tr

e
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

0
8
0
0

0
0

0
8
0
0

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

0
8
0
0

0
0

0

P
u
b
lic

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

C
7
1
4
1

P
u
b
lic

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

0
1
0
0

0
0

0
1
0
0

B
a
x
te

r,
F

ra
n
c
is

0
1
0
0

0
0

0

R
o
a
d
s

C
7
9
2
1

V
a
ri

o
u
s

P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l

0
2
,4

0
0

0
0

0
2
,4

0
0

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

C
8
0
0
0

C
la

s
s
if
ie

d
R

o
a
d
s

9
5

1
,3

2
0

0
0

0
1
,4

1
5

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

C
8
1
0
0

U
n
c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
R

o
a
d
s

3
4
7

2
,8

3
0

0
0

0
3
,1

7
7

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

C
9
2
0
0

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

R
is

k
F

u
n
d

C
9
2
0
0

2
0
4

2
0
8

0
0

0
4
1
2

A
rm

s
tr

o
n
g
,
D

a
v
id

6
4
6

6
,7

5
8

0
0

0

S
tr

e
e
t
F

u
rn

it
u
re

C
8
8
0
0

S
t
F

u
rn

it
u
re

1
5

0
0

0
0

1
5

B
a
lf
o
u
r

B
e
a
tt
y

1
5

0
0

0
0

T
ra

v
e
l
P

la
n
n
in

g

C
7
1
6
1

T
ra

v
e
l
to

S
c
h
o
o
l

0
1
0
0

0
0

0
1
0
0

B
a
g
s
h
a
w

,
C

a
ro

l
0

1
0
0

0
0

0

9
1
1

9
,3

5
1

0
0

0
1
0
,2

6
2

T
o

ta
l
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

2
1
,4

3
0

1
9
,6

1
2

1
,5

1
6

2
1
2

0
4
2
,7

7
0



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

H
O

U
S

IN
G

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
F

U
N

D
C

A
P

IT
A

L

S
c
h
e
m

e

N
o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
0
/1

1

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
1
/1

2

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
2
/1

3

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
3
/1

4

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

L
a
te

r
Y

rs

£
0
0
0

T
o
ta

l

£
0
0
0

P
ro

je
c
t
M

a
n
a
g
e
r

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

G
0
4
0
0

P
la

c
e
s

o
f

C
h
a
n
g
e

2
9

0
0

0
0

2
9

S
ta

n
le

y
,
S

h
e
rr

e
e

G
4
0
7
0

D
is

a
b
le

d
F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s

G
ra

n
t
A

p
p
ro

v
e
d

in
2
0
0
9
/1

0
4
0
3

0
0

0
0

4
0
3

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
4
0
8
0

D
is

a
b
le

d
F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s

G
ra

n
ts

C
o
m

p
u
te

r
S

y
s
te

m
s

1
1

0
0

0
0

1
1

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
4
0
9
0

D
is

a
b
le

d
F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s

G
ra

n
ts

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d

in
2
0
1
0
/1

1
1
,1

7
8

6
3
4

0
0

0
1
,8

1
2

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
4
1
0
0

W
a
rm

H
o
m

e
G

ra
n
ts

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d

in
2
0
1
0
/1

1
4
0

0
0

0
0

4
0

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
4
1
1
0

H
o
m

e
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t
L
o
a
n
s

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d

in
2
0
1
0
/1

1
1
,4

6
4

3
4
9

0
0

0
1
,8

1
3

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
4
1
2
0

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l
S

a
la

ri
e
s

2
0
1
0
/1

1
3
2
9

5
0

0
0

0
3
7
9

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
4
1
3
0

H
o
m

e
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t
A

g
e
n
c
y

2
0
1
0
/1

1
7
5

0
0

0
0

7
5

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
4
1
4
0

D
is

a
b
le

d
F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s

G
ra

n
t
S

u
p
p
o
rt

C
o
s
ts

2
0
1
0
/1

1
(G

4
1
4
0
)

1
6
3

0
0

0
0

1
6
3

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
4
2
0
0

A
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
H

o
m

e
s

L
o
a
n
s

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d

in
2
0
1
0
/1

1
9
3

4
0

0
0

0
1
3
3

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
4
2
5
0

P
U

S
H

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g

-
P

S
R

G
-

2
0
1
0
/1

1
4
0

0
0

0
0

4
0

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
4
2
7
0

In
s
u
la

ti
o
n

fo
r

p
ri

v
a
te

S
e
c
to

r
L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s

1
6
7

0
0

0
0

1
6
7

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
4
4
9
0

In
s
u
la

ti
o
n

G
ra

n
ts

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d

in
2
0
0
9
/1

0
5
0

0
0

0
0

5
0

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
6
5
0
0

E
n
a
b
lin

g
S

a
la

ri
e
s

2
0
1
0
/1

1
4
9

0
0

0
0

4
9

S
ta

n
le

y
,
S

h
e
rr

e
e

G
6
5
3
0

F
a
m

ily
H

o
u
s
in

g
E

x
a
m

p
la

r
S

c
h
e
m

e
6
0
0

0
0

0
0

6
0
0

S
ta

n
le

y
,
S

h
e
rr

e
e

4
,6

9
1

1
,0

7
3

0
0

0
5
,7

6
4

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

G
4
3
1
0

P
ri

v
a
te

S
e
c
to

r
H

o
u
s
in

g
:
F

u
tu

re
Y

e
a
rs

F
u
n
d
in

g
0

5
0
0

0
0

0
5
0
0

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
4
3
3
0

H
o
m

e
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t
A

g
e
n
c
y

2
0
1
1
/1

2
0

2
2

2
2

2
2

0
6
6

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
4
4
1
0

D
is

a
b
le

d
F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s

G
ra

n
ts

–
F

u
tu

re
Y

e
a
rs

0
1
,1

8
6

1
8
2

0
0

1
,3

6
8

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
4
4
2
0

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l
S

a
la

ri
e
s

-
2
0
1
1
/1

2
0

1
3
0

0
0

0
1
3
0

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
4
4
3
0

C
o
m

p
u
te

r
S

y
s
te

m
s

-
2
0
1
1
/1

2
0

3
7

0
0

0
3
7

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
4
5
9
0

D
is

a
b
le

d
F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
0

0
1
,1

9
2

0
2
9
0

1
,4

8
2

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
4
6
0
0

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l
S

a
la

ri
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
0

0
1
3
0

0
0

1
3
0

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
4
6
1
0

D
is

a
b
le

d
F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s

G
ra

n
ts

S
u
p
p
o
rt

C
o
s
ts

–
F

u
tu

re
Y

e
a
rs

0
0

3
7

0
0

3
7

J
u
a
n
,
P

a
u
l

G
6
4
3
0

E
s
ta

te
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

0
6
7
6

0
0

0
6
7
6

S
ta

n
le

y
,
S

h
e
rr

e
e

G
6
5
2
0

E
n
a
b
lin

g
S

a
la

ri
e
s

2
0
1
1
/1

2
0

5
1

0
0

0
5
1

S
ta

n
le

y
,
S

h
e
rr

e
e

0
2
,6

0
2

1
,5

6
3

2
2

2
9
0

4
,4

7
7

T
o

ta
l
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

4
,6

9
1

3
,6

7
5

1
,5

6
3

2
2

2
9
0

1
0
,2

4
1



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

L
E

A
D

E
R

'S
P

O
R

T
F

O
L

IO
C

A
P

IT
A

L

S
c
h
e
m

e

N
o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
0
/1

1

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
1
/1

2

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
2
/1

3

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
3
/1

4

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

L
a
te

r
Y

rs

£
0
0
0

T
o
ta

l

£
0
0
0

P
ro

je
c
t
M

a
n
a
g
e
r

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

C
2
1
5
0

M
a
y
fl
o
w

e
r

P
a
rk

.
2
6

0
0

0
0

2
6

R
ic

h
a
rd

s
o
n
,
A

d
ri

a
n

C
6
2
0
0

Q
E

2
M

ile
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
1
,0

6
9

9
0

0
0

9
8
5

2
,1

4
4

E
v
a
n
s
,
M

a
rk

J
7
7
4
0

E
a
s
tp

o
in

t
S

u
rr

e
n
d
e
r

2
,6

2
4

1
2
4

0
0

0
2
,7

4
8

C
a
rr

,
R

o
b
e
rt

J
7
8
9
0

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

A
re

a
s

C
P

O
F

u
n
d

0
1
9

0
0

0
1
9

J
o
n
e
s
,
S

u
s
a
n

J
7
8
9
5

D
is

tr
ic

t
S

h
o
p
p
in

g
C

e
n
tr

e
0

1
0

0
0

0
1
0

C
o
n
n
e
lly

,
J
o
h
n

M
9
3
1
0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

P
u
rc

h
a
s
e

o
f

S
it
e
s

1
0

1
,0

1
3

0
0

0
1
,0

2
3

K
it
s
o
n
,
D

a
v
id

M
9
3
7
0

T
o
w

n
D

e
p
o
t

5
3

5
3
0

0
0

0
5
8
3

M
e
re

d
it
h
,
E

m
m

a

M
9
3
9
0

R
o
y
a
l
P

ie
r

1
3
4

5
7
6

0
0

0
7
1
0

M
e
re

d
it
h
,
E

m
m

a

M
9
4
2
0

W
e
s
t
Q

u
a
y

P
h
a
s
e

3
W

W
Q

3
6

5
5
1

0
0

0
5
8
7

C
o
u
c
h
,
W

e
n
d
y

M
9
4
3
0

N
o
rt

h
e
rn

A
b
o
v
e

B
a
r

F
e
e
s

-
T

&
G

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g

F
e
e
s

6
0

6
0

0
0

0
1
2
0

S
h
e
e
ra

n
,
G

ill
ia

n

M
9
4
6
0

G
a
n
tr

y
S

it
e

6
5

0
0

0
1
1

E
v
a
n
s
,
M

a
rk

M
9
4
7
0

C
o
lle

g
e

S
tr

e
e
t

1
0

4
1

0
0

0
5
1

D
o
b
s
o
n
,
A

la
s
ta

ir

M
9
5
0
0

N
o
rt

h
e
rn

A
b
o
v
e

B
a
r

-
G

u
ild

h
a
ll

S
q
u
a
re

2
,1

5
2

1
5
0

0
0

0
2
,3

0
2

E
v
a
n
s
,
M

a
rk

M
9
8
2
0

M
a
jo

r
S

it
e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t
S

ta
ff

P
o
s
ts

1
5
3

1
5
0

0
0

0
3
0
3

C
o
u
c
h
,
W

e
n
d
y

M
9
8
3
0

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

-
M

a
jo

r
S

it
e

D
e
v
lp

m
n
t

2
8

1
2
9

0
0

0
1
5
7

C
o
u
c
h
,
W

e
n
d
y

M
9
8
4
0

N
o
rt

h
e
rn

A
b
o
v
e

B
a
r

-
R

B
C

D
is

p
o
s
a
l/
D

A
F

e
e
s

3
3

0
0

0
0

3
3

S
h
e
e
ra

n
,
G

ill
ia

n

M
9
8
5
0

L
o
w

e
r

H
ig

h
S

tr
e
e
t

3
4

0
0

0
0

3
4

M
e
re

d
it
h
,
E

m
m

a

M
9
8
7
0

N
o
rt

h
e
rn

A
b
o
v
e

B
a
r

-
T

y
rr

e
ll

&
G

re
e
n

B
u
ild

in
g

D
e
m

o
lit

io
n

5
0
5

0
0

0
0

5
0
5

S
h
e
e
ra

n
,
G

ill
ia

n

6
,9

3
3

3
,4

4
8

0
0

9
8
5

1
1
,3

6
6

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

M
9
4
8
0

F
ru

it
&

V
e
g

(D
is

p
o
s
a
l)

0
2
5

0
0

0
2
5

D
o
b
s
o
n
,
A

la
s
ta

ir

0
2
5

0
0

0
2
5

T
o

ta
l
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

6
,9

3
3

3
,4

7
3

0
0

9
8
5

1
1
,3

9
1



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

L
E

IS
U

R
E

,
C

U
L

T
U

R
E

&
H

E
R

IT
A

G
E

C
A

P
IT

A
L

S
c
h
e
m

e

N
o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
0
/1

1

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
1
/1

2

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
2
/1

3

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
3
/1

4

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

L
a
te

r
Y

rs

£
0
0
0

T
o
ta

l

£
0
0
0

P
ro

je
c
t
M

a
n
a
g
e
r

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

L
1
4
4
0

T
u
d
o
r

H
o
u
s
e

M
u
s
e
u
m

P
h
a
s
e

1
0

1
3

0
0

0
1
3

M
a
tt
h
e
w

s
,
D

a
n
ie

l

L
1
4
8
0

C
o
n
d
u
it

H
e
a
d

M
o
n
u
m

e
n
t

5
0

0
0

0
5

R
u
s
s
e
l,

A
n
d
re

w

L
6
7
4
B

R
iv

e
rs

id
e

F
o
o
tb

a
ll

P
it
c
h

D
ra

in
a
g
e
/T

e
n
n
is

C
o
u
rt

s
2

0
0

0
0

2
L
u
d
d
e
n
,
J
a
y
n
e

L
6
7
4
C

S
p
o
rt

s
C

e
n
tr

e
-

C
y
c
lo

C
ro

s
s

2
0

0
0

0
2

L
u
d
d
e
n
,
J
a
y
n
e

L
6
7
4
E

S
p
o
rt

s
C

e
n
tr

e
A

th
le

ti
c
s

T
ra

c
k

1
7
4

0
0

0
0

1
7
4

L
u
d
d
e
n
,
J
a
y
n
e

L
6
7
4
F

S
p
o
rt

s
C

e
n
tr

e
S

y
n
th

e
ti
c

P
it
c
h
e
s

3
2

0
0

0
0

3
2

L
u
d
d
e
n
,
J
a
y
n
e

L
8
1
0
0

A
rt

in
P

u
b
lic

P
la

c
e
s

–
H

a
la

ti
o
n

D
e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
8

0
0

0
0

8
S

m
it
h
,
E

liz
a
b
e
th

L
8
2
0
0

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
N

e
w

A
rt

s
C

e
n
tr

e
(S

N
A

C
)

5
3
3

4
6
7

1
,0

8
8

3
,4

2
3

1
4
,4

0
4

1
9
,9

1
5

L
o
w

,
J
ill

L
8
2
6
0

T
u
d
o
r

H
o
u
s
e

M
u
s
e
u
m

P
h
a
s
e

2
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

3
,2

4
0

1
,2

4
3

0
0

0
4
,4

8
3

L
o
w

e
,
J
a
s
o
n

L
8
2
8
0

S
e
a

C
it
y

M
u
s
e
u
m

(l
8
2
8
0
)

3
,8

0
8

1
0
,7

6
6

6
0
0

9
8

0
1
5
,2

7
2

D
y
e
r-

S
la

d
e
,
T

in
a

L
8
3
0
0

Q
u
a
y
s

L
e
is

u
re

C
e
n
tr

e
G

y
m

E
x
te

n
s
io

n
-5

0
0

0
0

-5
L
u
d
d
e
n
,
J
a
y
n
e

L
8
3
1
0

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s

R
F

ID
2
8

0
0

0
0

2
8

W
h
a
le

,
E

liz
a
b
e
th

L
8
3
2
0

G
o
d
s

H
o
u
s
e

T
o
w

e
r

R
e
c
e
p
ti
o
n

1
4

0
0

0
0

1
4

S
h
e
p
h
e
rd

,
L
is

a

L
8
3
3
0

S
w

im
m

in
g

P
o
o
l
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

6
5

0
0

0
0

6
5

L
u
d
d
e
n
,
J
a
y
n
e

7
,9

0
6

1
2
,4

8
9

1
,6

8
8

3
,5

2
1

1
4
,4

0
4

4
0
,0

0
8

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

L
1
5
3
0

S
o
le

n
t
S

k
y

R
e
p
a
ir

s
3

3
1
6

0
0

0
3
1
9

S
h
e
p
h
e
rd

,
L
is

a

L
8
1
0
U

A
rt

in
P

u
b
lic

P
la

c
e
s

–
M

ill
b
ro

o
k

a
n
d

W
e
s
to

n
9

6
5

0
0

0
7
4

S
m

it
h
,
E

liz
a
b
e
th

L
8
1
3
0

C
e
n
o
ta

p
h

M
e
m

o
ri

a
l
W

a
ll

2
0

1
1
7

0
0

0
1
3
7

S
m

it
h
,
E

liz
a
b
e
th

L
8
2
3
0

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l
T

IC
R

e
lo

c
a
ti
o
n

0
5
0

0
0

0
5
0

H
a
rr

is
,
M

ic
h
a
e
l

L
8
2
7
0

O
ld

T
o
w

n
H

e
ri

ta
g
e

8
0

0
0

0
8

S
h
e
p
h
e
rd

,
L
is

a

4
0

5
4
8

0
0

0
5
8
8

T
o

ta
l
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

7
,9

4
6

1
3
,0

3
7

1
,6

8
8

3
,5

2
1

1
4
,4

0
4

4
0
,5

9
6



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

L
O

C
A

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

&
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
S

A
F

E
T

Y
C

A
P

IT
A

L

S
c
h
e
m

e

N
o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
0
/1

1

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
1
/1

2

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
2
/1

3

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
3
/1

4

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

L
a
te

r
Y

rs

£
0
0
0

T
o
ta

l

£
0
0
0

P
ro

je
c
t
M

a
n
a
g
e
r

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

J
4
2
4
0

Q
u
e
e
n
s

P
a
rk

5
6
0

0
0

0
6
5

Y
e
a
ts

,
N

ic
h
o
la

s

J
4
2
5
0

R
o
lle

s
b
ro

o
k

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

Y
rs

2
0
0
9
-1

1
9

0
0

0
0

9
B

ro
w

n
,
C

lif
fo

rd

J
4
2
6
H

P
e
a
rt

re
e

G
re

e
n

4
0

0
0

0
4

Y
e
a
ts

,
N

ic
h
o
la

s

J
4
2
6
K

S
h
o
re

b
u
rs

H
o
n
e
y
p
o
t
Im

p
ro

v
m

e
n
ts

Y
r

2
0
0
9
-1

0
7

0
0

0
0

7
Y

e
a
ts

,
N

ic
h
o
la

s

J
4
2
6
L

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
C

o
m

m
o
n

1
4

0
0

0
0

1
4

Y
e
a
ts

,
N

ic
h
o
la

s

J
4
2
7
E

M
o
n
k
s

B
ro

o
k

A
c
c
e
s
s

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

Y
rs

2
0
0
8
-1

1
3

0
0

0
0

3
B

ro
w

n
,
C

lif
fo

rd

J
4
2
7
F

C
e
n
tr

a
l
P

a
rk

s
In

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o
n

S
ig

n
a
g
e

Y
r

2
0
0
9
-1

0
8

0
0

0
0

8
Y

e
a
ts

,
N

ic
h
o
la

s

J
4
2
7
H

F
re

e
m

a
n
tl
e

L
a
k
e

P
a
rk

Im
p
ro

v
m

e
n
ts

Y
r

2
0
0
9
-1

1
5

1
2

0
0

0
1
7

Y
e
a
ts

,
N

ic
h
o
la

s

J
4
2
8
0

W
e
s
to

n
S

h
o
re

G
re

e
n

F
la

g
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

Y
r

2
0
0
9

-
1
3

3
0

0
0

0
3

Y
e
a
ts

,
N

ic
h
o
la

s

J
4
2
9
0

D
o
n
k
e
y

C
o
m

m
o
n

B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

4
0

0
0

0
4

B
ro

w
n
,
C

lif
fo

rd

J
4
3
1
0

D
e
e
p

D
e
n
e

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

1
2

0
0

0
0

1
2

Y
e
a
ts

,
N

ic
h
o
la

s

J
4
3
2
0

P
o
rt

s
w

o
o
d

R
e
c

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

-
P

h
a
s
e

3
3
3

0
0

0
0

3
3

B
ro

w
n
,
C

lif
fo

rd

J
4
3
3
0

W
e
s
to

n
S

h
o
re

G
re

e
n

F
la

g
Im

p
ro

v
m

e
n
ts

Y
r

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2

0
0

0
0

2
B

ro
w

n
,
C

lif
fo

rd

J
4
3
4
0

H
in

k
le

r
G

re
e
n

G
re

e
n

F
la

g
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

Y
r

2
0
1
0
/1

1
4

0
0

0
0

4
B

ro
w

n
,
C

lif
fo

rd

J
4
3
5
0

M
a
n
s
e
l
P

a
rk

G
re

e
n

F
la

g
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

Y
r

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2

0
0

0
0

2
B

ro
w

n
,
C

lif
fo

rd

J
4
3
6
0

C
e
n
tr

a
l
P

a
rk

s
G

re
e
n

F
la

g
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

Y
r

2
0
1
0
/1

1
1
4

3
0

0
0

0
4
4

B
ro

w
n
,
C

lif
fo

rd

J
4
3
7
0

P
a
rk

C
o
d
e

fo
r

G
re

e
n

S
p
a
c
e

(D
o
g

C
o
n
tr

o
l)

3
0

0
0

0
0

3
0

Y
e
a
ts

,
N

ic
h
o
la

s

J
7
5
8
0

M
o
s
q
u
e

T
ru

s
t

3
0

0
0

0
0

3
0

S
h
a
h
a
n
i,

V
a
n
e
s
s
a

J
7
8
3
0

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

S
a
fe

ty
P

ro
je

c
ts

.
1
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

P
o
th

e
c
a
ry

,
G

e
o
rg

e

J
7
9
8
0

C
C

T
V

D
ig

it
a
lis

a
ti
o
n

3
1

0
0

0
0

3
1

P
o
th

e
c
a
ry

,
G

e
o
rg

e

J
8
1
0
0

M
o
b
ile

W
o
rk

in
g

fo
r

P
&

C
F

ro
n
tl
in

e
0

3
0

0
0

0
3
0

H
o
rt

o
n
,
J
o
h
n

J
8
1
2
0

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

to
L
o
rd

s
h
ill

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s

5
0

0
0

0
5

J
o
n
e
s
,
D

a
w

n

J
8
1
4
B

S
t
J
a
m

e
s

P
a
rk

-
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

9
2
5

3
7
5

6
1

0
0

1
,3

6
1

S
a
w

a
rd

,
H

e
le

n

J
8
1
5
B

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

1
0

0
0

0
1

S
a
w

a
rd

,
H

e
le

n

J
8
1
6
A

D
e
s
ig

n
&

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

6
7

0
0

0
0

6
7

H
o
w

a
rd

,
P

a
u
l

J
8
1
6
B

E
x
te

rn
a
l
W

o
rk

s
8
8

0
0

0
0

8
8

H
o
w

a
rd

,
P

a
u
l

J
8
1
6
C

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

&
P

u
b
lic

it
y

6
0

0
0

0
6

H
o
w

a
rd

,
P

a
u
l

J
8
1
6
E

P
ro

je
c
t
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
(J

8
1
6
E

)
1
5

0
0

0
0

1
5

H
o
w

a
rd

,
P

a
u
l

J
8
1
8
0

P
re

v
e
n
ti
n
g

Il
le

g
a
l
A

c
c
e
s
s

to
G

re
e
n

S
p
a
c
e

(J
8
1
8
0
)

2
2

0
0

0
0

2
2

Y
e
a
ts

,
N

ic
h
o
la

s

J
8
1
9
0

D
a
is

y
D

ip
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

1
8

1
1
0

0
0

0
1
2
8

Y
e
a
ts

,
N

ic
h
o
la

s

J
8
2
0
0

R
e
d
b
ri

d
g
e

W
h
a
rf

0
1
0

0
0

0
1
0

H
o
rt

o
n
,
J
o
h
n

J
8
2
2
0

F
ro

g
s

C
o
p
s
e

9
0

0
0

0
9

Y
e
a
ts

,
N

ic
h
o
la

s

J
8
2
3
0

F
re

e
m

a
n
tl
e

C
o
m

m
o
n

M
in

o
r

Im
p
ro

v
m

e
n
ts

Y
r

2
0
0
9
-1

1
7

0
0

0
0

7
Y

e
a
ts

,
N

ic
h
o
la

s

J
8
2
4
0

P
a
rk

s
S

a
fe

ty
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

Y
rs

2
0
0
9
-1

1
1
4

0
0

0
0

1
4

H
o
rt

o
n
,
J
o
h
n

J
8
2
5
0

B
it
te

rn
e

M
a
n
o
r/

C
la

u
s
e
n
tu

m
W

o
o
d

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

Y
rs

2
0
1
0
-1

3
3
0

2
0

0
0

0
5
0

Y
e
a
ts

,
N

ic
h
o
la

s



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

L
O

C
A

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

&
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
S

A
F

E
T

Y
C

A
P

IT
A

L

S
c
h
e
m

e

N
o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
0
/1

1

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
1
/1

2

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
2
/1

3

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
3
/1

4

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

L
a
te

r
Y

rs

£
0
0
0

T
o
ta

l

£
0
0
0

P
ro

je
c
t
M

a
n
a
g
e
r

1
,4

3
7

6
4
7

6
1

0
0

2
,1

4
5

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

J
8
2
6
0

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t
-

O
p
e
n

S
p
a
c
e
s

2
5

7
5

1
0
0

0
0

2
0
0

Y
e
a
ts

,
N

ic
h
o
la

s

2
5

7
5

1
0
0

0
0

2
0
0

T
o

ta
l
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

1
,4

6
2

7
2
2

1
6
1

0
0

2
,3

4
5



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
1

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
&

W
O

R
K

F
O

R
C

E
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

C
A

P
IT

A
L

S
c
h
e
m

e

N
o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
0
/1

1

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
1
/1

2

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
2
/1

3

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

2
0
1
3
/1

4

£
0
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

L
a
te

r
Y

rs

£
0
0
0

T
o
ta

l

£
0
0
0

P
ro

je
c
t
M

a
n
a
g
e
r

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

/
U

n
a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

P
6
8
5
0

R
&

M
b
a
c
k
lo

g
N

e
w

C
a
p
it
a
l
2

m
ill

io
n

5
7
3

0
1
,6

3
3

0
0

2
,2

0
6

H
o
d
g
e
,
R

ic
h
a
rd

5
7
3

0
1
,6

3
3

0
0

2
,2

0
6

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

M
9
6
4
0

C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n

to
U

ti
lic

o
m

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

o
o
lin

g
S

y
s
te

m
1
3

0
0

0
0

1
3

H
o
d
g
e
,
R

ic
h
a
rd

M
9
7
1
0

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

S
tr

a
te

g
y

A
c
ti
o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
(A

S
A

P
)

5
,0

5
8

6
,6

8
5

5
,6

3
0

7
6
5

0
1
8
,1

3
8

E
d
m

o
n
d
s
o
n
,
C

la
ir

e

P
5
0
2
0

A
rt

G
a
lle

ry
-

R
o
o
f

R
e
p
a
ir

s
a
n
d

A
H

U
R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

2
2
5

1
,7

1
1

0
0

0
1
,9

3
6

H
o
d
g
e
,
R

ic
h
a
rd

P
5
0
4
0

P
u
rc

h
a
s
e

o
f

th
e

R
e
g
io

n
a
l
B

u
s
in

e
s
s

C
e
n
tr

e
2
6
,0

2
1

0
0

0
0

2
6
,0

2
1

F
o
x
,
A

n
n
a
b
e
l

P
6
2
3
0

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n

o
f

N
e
w

C
o
o
lin

g
S

y
s
te

m
(C

o
m

p
u
te

r
S

u
it
e
)

2
7
8

0
0

0
0

2
7
8

A
lla

n
,
M

a
rk

P
6
8
3
0

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
R

e
v
ie

w
0

1
2

0
0

0
1
2

F
o
x
,
A

n
n
a
b
e
l

P
8
0
0
0

1
8
3

H
ig

h
S

tr
e
e
t
(B

a
rg

a
te

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
S

w
o
p
s
)

0
1
,7

6
8

0
0

0
1
,7

6
8

M
a
d
d
o
x
-H

in
to

n
,
D

e
e

3
1
,5

9
5

1
0
,1

7
6

5
,6

3
0

7
6
5

0
4
8
,1

6
6

U
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

P
5
0
3
0

M
a
rl

a
n
d
s

H
o
u
s
e

-
F

lo
o
r

7
,
C

o
o
lin

g
R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

2
4
8

0
0

0
5
0

H
o
d
g
e
,
R

ic
h
a
rd

2
4
8

0
0

0
5
0

T
o

ta
l
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

3
2
,1

7
0

1
0
,2

2
4

7
,2

6
3

7
6
5

0
5
0
,4

2
2



This page is intentionally left blank



P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

S
C

H
E

M
E

£
0

0
0

's
S

O
U

R
C

E
o

f
F

U
N

D
IN

G
C

O
U

N
C

IL
P

R
IO

R
IT

Y

In
c

re
a

s
e

s
to

th
e

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

E
&

T
C

it
y

C
e

n
tr

e
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

1
,5

2
5

C
o

n
tr

/G
G

G
e

tt
in

g
th

e
C

it
y

W
o

rk
in

g

E
&

T
C

la
s
s
if
ie

d
R

o
a

d
s

1
,3

2
0

C
R

/G
G

/R
e

v
G

e
tt
in

g
th

e
C

it
y

W
o

rk
in

g

E
&

T
U

n
c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
R

o
a

d
s

3
,1

5
4

C
R

/C
o

n
tr

/G
G

/R
e

v
G

e
tt
in

g
th

e
C

it
y

W
o

rk
in

g

E
&

T
P

ri
n

c
ip

a
l
R

o
a

d
s

2
,4

0
0

C
R

/G
G

/R
e

v
G

e
tt
in

g
th

e
C

it
y

W
o

rk
in

g

E
&

T
It
c
h

e
n

B
ri
d

g
e

T
o

ll
A

u
to

m
a

ti
o

n
1

,0
0

0
C

R
/C

o
n

tr
P

ro
v
id

in
g

G
o

o
d

V
a

lu
e

,
H

ig
h

Q
u

a
lit

y
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

E
&

T
P

u
rc

h
a

s
e

o
f

V
e

h
ic

le
s

(i
n

s
te

a
d

o
f

le
a

s
in

g
)

7
3

8
C

R
P

ro
v
id

in
g

G
o

o
d

V
a

lu
e

,
H

ig
h

Q
u

a
lit

y
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

L
E

A
D

V
a

ri
o

u
s

A
d

d
it
io

n
s

(s
e

e
re

p
o

rt
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
)

1
,4

4
4

V
a

ri
o

u
s

G
e

tt
in

g
th

e
C

it
y

W
o

rk
in

g

C
S

L
P

ri
m

a
ry

R
e

v
ie

w
P

h
a

s
e

2
6

9
1

G
G

In
v
e

s
ti
n

g
in

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

n
d

T
ra

in
in

g

V
a

ri
o

u
s

V
a

ri
o

u
s

O
th

e
r

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
1

,8
9

4
V

a
ri
o

u
s

V
a

ri
o

u
s

1
4

,1
6

6

D
e

c
re

a
s

e
s

to
th

e
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

H
O

U
V

a
ri
o

u
s

O
th

e
r

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

(H
o

u
s
in

g
)

(1
,0

4
3

)
C

o
n

tr
V

a
ri
o

u
s

(1
,0

4
3

)

T
o

ta
l

1
3

,1
2

3

K
E

Y
:

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

C
S

L
C

h
ild

re
n

's
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
&

L
e

a
rn

in
g

E
&

T
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t
&

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

L
E

A
D

L
e

a
d

e
r'
s

(f
o

rm
e

rl
y

E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t)

H
O

U
H

o
u

s
in

g
G

e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n

d

F
u

n
d

in
g

S
o

u
rc

e

C
R

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

G
G

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
G

ra
n

ts

C
o

n
tr

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

R
e

v
R

e
v
e

n
u

e

M
A

J
O

R
V

A
R

IA
T

IO
N

S
S

IN
C

E
T

H
E

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
2
0
1
0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

U
P

D
A

T
E

Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

MAJOR CHANGES IN CAPITAL RESOURCES SINCE SEPTEMBER 2010 UPDATE 

 

The main reasons for the resource changes are: 

 

• Unsupported Borrowing - £2.1M increase 

o £2.1M Highways 

o £0.7M Vehicles (purchase rather than lease) 

o £0.5M Itchen Bridge Toll Automation 

o (£1.2M) borrowing review reduction 

 

• Capital Receipts - £1.5M increase 

o £1.7M additional non-Housing capital receipts 

o (£0.4M) net adjustment to b/f balance 

o £0.2M increased Housing capital receipts 

 

• Contributions - £0.2M increase 

o (£1.0M) Various Other Schemes (Housing) 

o £0.5M Itchen Bridge Toll Automation 

o £0.6M East West Spine (Civic Centre Place) 

o £0.1M Other net increased Contributions   

 

• Capital Grants - £5.0M increase 

o £0.7M Primary Review Phase 2 

o £0.9M City Centre Improvements 

o £1.2M Principal/Classified/Unclassified Roads 

o £0.4M ITS (E&T) 

o £0.4M Mayfield Academy 

o £1.4M Other net increased grants 

 

• Revenue - £5.1M increase 

o £0.3M Health & Safety Equipment/Essential Appliances 

o £1.4M Various additions to the Leader’s programme (see 
recommendations) 

o £3.4M Roads Programmes 

Appendix 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  CABINET 

COUNCIL 

SUBJECT: GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2011/12 TO 
2013/14 

DATE OF DECISION: 7 FEBRUARY 2011 

16 FEBRUARY 2011 

REPORT OF: CABINET MEMBER FOR RESOURCES AND 
WORKFORCE PLANNING 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

N/A 

BRIEF SUMMARY 

Since the Council set its 2010/11 budget in February 2010, the economic outlook for 
the economy has remained pessimistic.  The level of public debt is a major issue and 
prior to the General Election in May, it was recognised that any incoming Government 
would be required to review public spending in order to reduce the debt burden in 
future years. 

Soon after the election, an interim budget was announced by the Government, which 
outlined major cuts in public spending.  At that time £6.2 billion of in year cuts in 
Government grant were announced of which more than £1.1 billion were targeted at 
Local Government.  The impact of these cuts on the City Council was the withdrawal 
in round terms of over £4.6M of grants that represented a significant in year cut to 
funding.  At that time the medium term financial outlook for the City Council estimated 
that a budget reduction of around £40M would be required over the next three years.  
However it was recognised that the full extent of the cuts in grant and the impact on 
the City’s financial position would not be known until the Comprehensive Spending 
Review (CSR) and then ultimately the resulting provisional grant settlement was 
announced in December.  Given this financial position and the risks associated with 
the forecast, it was estimated that savings options of at least £50M would be required 
over the next three years in order to balance the budget. 

The Council has been improving its medium term budgeting approach over a number 
of years and has been re-prioritising expenditure towards stated Council priorities and 
driving out significant efficiency savings year on year.  Under normal circumstances 
this improving strategic approach would have continued on an incremental basis.  
However, against the current backdrop, the Council has been required to take an 
extremely robust approach to medium term planning and is challenging every aspect 
of service delivery in order to ensure that the services provided and the performance 
levels achieved are at an appropriate level commensurate with the stated Priorities of: 

1. Providing good value, high quality services 

2. Getting the city working 

3. Investing in education and training 

4. Keeping people safe 

5. Keeping the city clean and green 

6. Looking after people 

Agenda Item 6



 2

Given the likely impact of the recession and the level of national debt on local 
government finances, work on the 2011/12 budget was started last January and 
Officers and the Administration have been working on developing proposals in 
response to the forecast gap over the next three years.  A consolidation exercise was 
undertaken during October in readiness for the CSR. 

At this time, the Administration started a detailed consultation exercise with a wide 
range of stakeholders using new methods not previously tried before.  Proposals 
affecting staff were provided to the trade unions and consultation undertaken with 
staff included open door sessions and a staff suggestion scheme. The public were 
also consulted under the banner of ‘Your City Your Say’ and the use of the “You 
Choose” online budget calculator. 

On announcement of the CSR in October it was clear that reductions in grant would 
be at the upper end of the Council forecasts and work was intensified to ensure that 
the Council had in place savings that would close the anticipated £20M gap which 
included proposals for changes to staff terms and conditions.  The provisional Local 
Government Settlement was released on 13th December and as a result of the 
damping mechanism the 2011/12 position worsened by a further £5M bringing the 
total gap to £25M, making it essential that the proposed changes to terms and 
conditions were realised. 

The budget details were further refined after the settlement in conjunction with the 
Executive and the broad budget and council tax proposals of the Executive were 
shared with the Unions and Opposition Groups in December on a confidential basis to 
enable them to start developing their own alternative budgets. 

Work has been ongoing to refine the overall budget proposals and the purpose of this 
report is to: 

• Update this information and set out the latest estimated overall financial 
position on the General Fund Revenue Budget for 2011/12 and 

• Outline the main issues that need to be addressed in considering the 
Cabinets recommendations to Council on 16th February 2011. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 CABINET 

It is recommended that Cabinet: 

 (a) Note the position on the estimated outturn and revised budget for 
2010/11 as set out in paragraphs 5 to 11 

 (b) Approve that the Executive Director for Health & Adult Social Care 
enter into an agreement with NHS Southampton City (NHSSC) 
under section 256 of the National Health Act 2006 for a period of two 
years and three months.  Under the agreement NHSSC will transfer 
budget to the Council to spend on services that benefit health as 
directed within the Local Government Finance Settlement 
announced on 13th December 2010 and notification from Department 
of Health on 4th January in respect of 2010/11. 

The sums to be transferred by NHSSC and for inclusion within the 
Council’s budget are £776,200, £3.1M and £3.0M in 2010/11, 
2011/12 and 2012/13 respectively. 



 3

 (c) Note the position on the forecast roll forward budget for 2011/12 as 
set out in paragraphs 13 to 23. 

 (d) Note and approve the arrangements made by the Leader, in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 2000, for the Cabinet 
Member for Resources and Workforce Planning to have 
responsibility for financial management and budgetary policies and 
strategies, and that the Cabinet Member for Resources and 
Workforce Planning will, in accordance with the Budget & Policy 
Framework Rules as set out in the Council’s Constitution, be 
authorised accordingly to finalise the Executive’s proposals in 
respect of the Budget for 2011/12, in consultation with the Leader, 
for submission to Full Council on 16th February 2011. 

 (e) Recommends that Full Council 

 i) Notes the Consultation process that was followed as outlined in 
Appendix 1. 

 ii) Approves the revised estimate for 2010/11 as set out in Appendix 2. 

 iii) Approves the use of £0.5M of in year under spends to increase the 
Organisational Development Reserve in 2010/11 to ensure that 
adequate provision is made for the costs associated with the 
implementation of staff related savings. 

 iv) Notes the position on the forecast roll forward budget for 2011/12 
as set out in paragraphs 13 to 23. 

 v) Approves an additional draw from General Fund Balances of up to 
£0.5M in 2011/12 if required during the year. 

 vi) Approves the Invest to Save Bids set out in Appendix 3. 

 vii) Approves the revenue pressures and revenue developments as set 
out in Appendices 4 and 5. 

 viii) Approves the efficiencies, income and service reductions as set out 
in Appendix 6. 

 ix) Approves the changes to staff terms and conditions set out in 
Appendix 7. 

 x) Approves the dismissal and re-engagement of staff in order to 
implement the changes to terms and conditions in the event that a 
collective agreement cannot be reached with the Unions. 

 xi) Delegates authority to the Chief Executive as Head of Paid Service 
in consultation with the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the 
Solicitor to the Council to take any steps in connection with 
amendments to the Terms and Conditions changes, the negotiation 
of any potential changes with the Unions and any process 
associated with the implementation of these changes. 

 xii) Delegates authority to the CFO in consultation with the Solicitor to 
the Council to make changes to the budget for 2011/12 to reflect 
negotiated changes to the proposals or if a collective agreement 
cannot be reached with the Unions 



 4

 xiii) Notes that the Independent Remuneration Panel are currently being 
convened so that they may review and make recommendations on 
Members' Allowances to Standards and Governance Committee 
and thereafter Full Council before September 2011 as required by 
the law. 

 xiv) Approves the General Fund Revenue Budget as set out in 
Appendix 8, which assumes a council tax freeze. 

 xv) Delegates authority to the CFO to action all budget changes arising 
from the approved pressures, bids, efficiencies, income and service 
reductions and incorporate any other approved amendments into 
the General Fund estimates. 

 xvi) Notes that after taking these items into account, there is an 
estimated General Fund balance of £5.1M at the end of 2013/14 as 
detailed in paragraph 54. 

 xvii) Delegates authority to the CFO, in consultation with the Solicitor to 
the Council, to do anything necessary to give effect to the 
recommendations in this report. 

 xviii) Sets the Budget Requirement for 2011/12 at £190,688,500. 

 xix) Notes the estimates of precepts on the Council Tax collection fund 
for 2011/12 as set out in Appendix 10 

 xx) Notes the Medium Term Forecast as set out in Appendix 11. 

 xxi) Authorises the Chief Executive and Chief Officers to pursue the 
development of the options for efficiencies, income and service 
reductions as set out in Appendix 6 for the financial years 2012/13 
and 2013/14 and continue to develop options to close the remaining 
projected gaps in those years. 

 COUNCIL 

It is recommended that Council: 

 i) Notes the Consultation process that was followed as outlined in 
Appendix 1. 

 ii) Approves the revised estimate for 2010/11 as set out in Appendix 2. 

 iii) Approves the use of £0.5M of in year under spends to increase the 
Organisational Development Reserve in 2010/11 to ensure that 
adequate provision is made for the costs associated with the 
implementation of staff related savings. 

 iv) Notes the position on the forecast roll forward budget for 2011/12 
as set out in paragraphs 13 to 23. 

 v) Approves an additional draw from General Fund Balances of up to 
£0.5M in 2011/12 if required during the year. 

 vi) Approves the Invest to Save Bids set out in Appendix 3. 

 vii) Approves the revenue pressures and revenue developments as set 
out in Appendices 4 and 5. 



 5

 viii) Approves the efficiencies, income and service reductions as set out 
in Appendix 6. 

 ix) Approves the changes to staff terms and conditions set out in 
Appendix 7. 

 x) Approves the dismissal and re-engagement of staff in order to 
implement the changes to terms and conditions in the event that a 
collective agreement cannot be reached with the Unions. 

 xi) Delegates authority to the Chief Executive as Head of Paid Service 
in consultation with the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the 
Solicitor to the Council to take any steps in connection with 
amendments to the Terms and Conditions changes, the negotiation 
of any potential changes with the Unions and any process 
associated with the implementation of these changes. 

 xii) Delegates authority to the CFO in consultation with the Solicitor to 
the Council to make changes to the budget for 2011/12 to reflect 
negotiated changes to the proposals or if a collective agreement 
cannot be reached with the Unions 

 xiii) Notes that the Independent Remuneration Panel are currently being 
convened so that they may review and make recommendations on 
Members' Allowances to Standards and Governance Committee 
and thereafter Full Council before September 2011 as required by 
the law. 

 xiv) Approves the General Fund Revenue Budget as set out in 
Appendix 8, which assumes a council tax freeze. 

 xv) Delegates authority to the CFO to action all budget changes arising 
from the approved pressures, bids, efficiencies, income and service 
reductions and incorporate any other approved amendments into 
the General Fund estimates. 

 xvi) Notes that after taking these items into account, there is an 
estimated General Fund balance of £5.1M at the end of 2013/14 as 
detailed in paragraph 54. 

 xvii) Delegates authority to the CFO, in consultation with the Solicitor to 
the Council, to do anything necessary to give effect to the 
recommendations in this report. 

 xviii) Sets the Budget Requirement for 2011/12 at £190,688,500. 

 xix) Notes the estimates of precepts on the Council Tax collection fund 
for 2011/12 as set out in Appendix 10 

 xx) Notes the Medium Term Forecast as set out in Appendix 11. 

 xxi) Authorises the Chief Executive and Chief Officers to pursue the 
development of the options for efficiencies, income and service 
reductions as set out in Appendix 6 for the financial years 2012/13 
and 2013/14 and continue to develop options to close the remaining 
projected gaps in those years. 

   



 

 6

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. The Constitution requires the Executive to recommend to Council on the 16th 
February 2011 its budget proposals for the forthcoming year.  The 
recommendations contained in this report set out the various elements of the 
budget that need to be considered and addressed by the Cabinet in preparing 
the final papers that will be forwarded to Council. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

2. Alternative options for revenue spending form an integral part of the 
development of the overall Budget Strategy that will be considered at the 
budget setting meeting on 16th February 2011.  Alternative options may be 
drawn up by opposition groups and presented to the same meeting. 

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out) 

 CONSULTATION 

3. Between September 2010 and January 2011, the Council undertook to 
engage local residents and council staff in the process of defining priorities 
and developing the budgets for the coming year, via a range of consultation 
activities.  This consultation was in accordance with the duty to consult under 
Section 65 Local Government Finance Act 1992, and included opportunities 
to get involved in a number of ways, namely: 

• Online via the ‘You Choose’ budget calculator and online staff 
feedback forms.  

• Face to face via three consultation road shows held on market day in 
central shopping locations, a residents’ forum at the Civic Centre, and 
for staff, via open door sessions with the Leader of the Council.  

• By telephone via phone in slots on community radio stations.  

• In writing, via feedback forms and consultation postcards.  

Further insight regarding local priorities was also gathered from residents via 
the 2010 City Survey, which was undertaken during October and November. 

A breakfast briefing was held with the business community in October setting 
out the Council’s budget priorities and assessing the impact of the 
Comprehensive Spending Review on the 2011/12 budget. 

More detail is provided in Appendix 1 on the methods used to consult with 
staff and residents and the feedback received, which has been taken into 
account when developing the budget proposals. 

 

4. The Council is also required to produce Equality Impact Assessments (EIA’s) 
where appropriate where it is felt that proposed savings could have an 
adverse impact on a particular group or individuals.  EIA’s have been 
produced where appropriate for the savings proposals contained in Appendix 
6 and these have been made available in Group rooms.  An EIA in respect of 
the final proposals for Terms and Conditions changes is being prepared and 
will be made available to Members prior to Cabinet on 7th February. 

 ESTIMATED OUTTURN AND REVISED BUDGET 2010/11 

5. This report is concerned mainly with the revenue estimates for 2011/12.  



 7

However, there are elements of the 2010/11 estimated outturn that will have 
an impact on the overall financial position.  The planned draws from 
balances in the year have been reflected in the balances position shown in 
this report and take into account the overall financial position highlighted in 
the Corporate Monitoring report for the nine months ending December 2010. 

6. The original revenue estimates for 2010/11 assumed a general draw from 
balances of just under £3.5M.  After reflecting the revised forecast position 
from Month 9, this draw reduces by £1.1M to just under £2.4M as show in 
Appendix 2.  The table below summarises the main changes: 

 

 £M 

Increase in cost of Coroner’s Service    (0.060) 

Net Decrease in Interest Paid      1.200 

Contributions to Capital DRF Funding (2.354) 

Exceptional Expenditure & Income      2.354 

Other Expenditure & Income (0.085) 

Reduction in Draw From Balances      1.055 
 

7. Additional charges have been incurred from Hampshire County Council for 
the provision of the Coroner’s Service and it is estimated that the full year 
impact of this be an over spend of £59,500.  The Council bear a proportion of 
the cost of this service based on caseload statistics and this has increased 
above the estimated levels for 2010/11. 

8. Net interest payable is forecast to be below that originally estimated by 
£1.2M as a result of lower than anticipated borrowing costs.  This has been 
as a consequence of lower borrowing levels due to slippage in the Capital 
Programme and capital expenditure and also the fact that we have borrowed 
at lower rates than originally estimated.  Lower rates have been achieved 
through a conscious decision to switch to short term debt which is currently 
available at lower rates then long term debt due to the depressed market. 

9. As a result of two separate issues a favourable variance has arisen which it is 
anticipated will be used to fund additions to the capital programme.  The items 
are: 

• One off Receipt in Consideration of Purchase of One Guildhall Square 
(OGS) – As part of the contractual agreement to purchase OGS the 
Council has received a payment of which £0.9M is not required to fund 
any revenue implications of the purchase. 

• Reduced Street Lighting PFI Payments – During the early stages of the 
PFI contract the Council is to receive ‘service deductions’ in view of the 
fact that the contractor will need time to undertake work to install new 
columns.  These deductions are estimated to be £1.45M in 2010/11.  
These do not represent a failure on behalf of the contractor to deliver the 
investment programme they are technical accounting adjustments as a 
result of the way the contract was structured. 

Additions to the capital programme to the value of £2.35M are included in the 



 8

in the Capital Programme Update report which is to be approved by Council 
on 16th February 2011 to be funded from the above revenue source. 

10. Having managed the impact of the in year cuts announced by Government to 
ensure that the operating budget for 2010/11 remains in balance, portfolios 
continue to take remedial action to manage a number of the corporate and 
key issues highlighted in this report.  In addition, it has been corporately 
agreed to put in place a spend moratorium on non essential expenditure for 
the final quarter of the financial year.  This has been agreed in order to 
ensure that the support which can be given to the challenging financial 
position the Council faces for 2011/12 can be maximised. 

11. It is recommended that £0.5M is added to the Organisational Development 
Reserve in 2010/11 to ensure that adequate provision is made for the costs 
associated with the implementation of staff related savings.  This will serve to 
reduce the forecast addition to balances from £1.1M to £600,000 and this 
amount is reflected in the balances position shown in paragraph 54. 

 TRANSFER OF FUNDING 

12. As part of the Local Government finance settlement in December it was 
announced that an additional £648M in 2011/12 and £622M in 2012/13 had 
been made available nationally to Primary Care Trusts (PCT) for spending 
on social care services that also benefit the NHS.  Subsequently on 4th 
January it was announced by the Department of Health that a national 
allocation of a further £162M had been made available to PCT’s for 2010/11.  
This funding must be transferred to Local Authorities under section 256 of 
the National Health Service Act 2006 to be spent on services to improve the 
overall health gain.  NHS Southampton City, (NHSSC) have been allocated 
the sum of £776,200 for 2010/11, £3.1M for 2011/12 and just under £3.0M 
for 2012/13.  As required a spending plan totalling £776,200 has been 
agreed with colleagues within NHSSC and the Executive Director for Health 
and Adult Social Care and is already being enacted upon to maximise the 
benefit to Southampton clients in 2010/11.  A spending plan for the future 
year’s allocations is currently under way between colleagues within NHSSC 
and Southampton City Council.  The contractual arrangements to support the 
transfer are also in progress. 

 FORECAST ROLL FORWARD BUDGET 2011/12 

13. The report to Council in July identified a roll forward gap of £12.7M before 
any further revenue developments, pressures or savings were taken into 
account.  At that time savings proposals which would impact on the 2011/12 
budget by more than £4.2M were approved as part of the budget 
development.  However, the revised gap has now been amended to reflect 
changes in the overall position since this date, including the outcome of the 
provisional Local Government Finance Settlement and changes highlighted 
in the Consultation Report. 

14. The provisional Local Government Finance Settlement for 2011/12 was 
received on 13th December 2010.  The provisional settlement position after 
also allowing for the impact of grants transferring into formula grant was 
lower than anticipated in July but within the parameters used for planning 
purposes. 



 9

15. The Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) announcement in October 
2010 and then the provisional Local Government Finance Settlement in 
December have confirmed that spending reductions on the scale planned 
are necessary to meet the actual reductions in Government grant that have 
now been announced.  The grant settlement covers the two year period 
2011/12 and 2012/13 and the Council’s loss of formula grant is 10.1% and 
6.6% in the two years respectively.  Though the majority of the former 
specific and area based grants have been transferred into formula grant, the 
reduction in the remaining grants is in excess of 20% in 2011/12.   

16. Though the CSR covers the four year period to 2014/15, the Government 
proposes to carry out a review of grant distribution arrangements prior to 
2013/14; therefore the Government grant payable to the Council in 2013/14 
and 2014/15 is uncertain.  For the purposes of maintaining a three year 
planning horizon, a medium term financial plan covering the period beyond 
2013/14 is being developed based on a further year on year reduction in 
funding of 7% per annum. 

17. The final Local Government Finance Settlement has not been received prior 
to the publication of this report, but any changes resulting from the final 
settlement will be taken into account in a revised budget proposal for the 
Council meeting on 16th February.  In addition announcements in relation to 
a number of grant funding streams are also still awaited and Officers will 
continue to review the impact of any grant cuts with a view to passing on the 
reduction where the grant supports other organisations spending or reducing 
expenditure where the funding is used to provide City Council services.   

18. However, it is also prudent at this stage to assume that a draw on balances 
may be required to manage the overall position.  This report therefore 
requests approval to draw up to £0.5M from balances in 2011/12 if deemed 
necessary by the CFO.  This reduction in balances would need to be made 
good in future years if it took the Council below the minimum recommended 
level of £4.5M. 

19. The council tax base for 2011/12 has been set at 66,644, using delegated 
powers granted by Council on 17th January 2007, which has increased the 
tax base and leads to additional income of £598,400 over and above that 
previously assumed in the Summer. 

20. The estimated Collection Fund surplus at the end of 2010/11 was set at zero 
for the purposes of the original forecast for 2011/12.  Collection rates during 
the year have improved, the bad debt provision has been reduced and a one 
off prior year adjustment due to historic discrepancies which were noted 
during a final review of the 2009/10 accounts and which are now fully 
resolved has been made.  As a consequence of these factors, the latest 
estimate of the surplus has increased to £3.2M.  This funding was 
deliberately not counted in to previous forecasts due to the uncertainties 
around the CSR and grant settlement and is available now to offset some of 
the impacts of the grant reductions. 

21. The position published in July included allowances for a number of items 
such as revenue pressures and bids, which have been rigorously reviewed 
during the Summer, and as a result, a reduction of £1.1M has been achieved 



 10

in the budget provision required. 

22. The forecast position currently allows for a contribution to be made to 
balances of just over £1.25M which will be used in future years.  The table 
below shows these net changes in the overall forecast position: 

 

  £000’s 

Forecast Deficit in July Mini Budget Council Papers 
 

11,667.1 

Mini Budget Savings Proposals (4,229.0) 

Net Impact of Provisional Local Government Finance 
Settlement 

11,205.6 

Improved Council Tax Base (598.4) 

Collection Fund Surplus (3,244.7) 

Net Reduction in Requirement for Risk Fund, Bids, Pressures & 
Revenue Development Funding Built into July Forecast 

(654.0) 

Addition to Balances   1,268.1 

Revised Forecast Deficit 15,414.7 
 

23. This position shown in the table above represents the ‘base’ position from 
which all three political groups may develop their own budgets taking into 
account the proposals for new spending and savings options put forward by 
Officers.  The specific proposals in this report as set out in the appendices 
and outlined in the following paragraphs represent the Executive’s budget 
proposals for 2011/12. 

 INVEST TO SAVE 

24. During this year’s budget process, services have been asked to put forward 
efficiency savings, which assume that there will be a reduction in cost, 
without there being an overall impact on service provision and the Council’s 
performance.  For some of these proposals there is up front expenditure that 
needs to be incurred before the savings can be realised and these are being 
put forward as Invest to Save Bids. 

25. The Invest to Save Bids, listed in Appendix 3, total £25,000 in 2011/12. 

 REVENUE PRESSURES 

26. Part of the Budget process each year also looks at unavoidable pressures on 
services that will have a financial impact, many of which are outside of the 
control of the service itself.  Examples of these would be volume changes, 
which have a direct impact on costs (e.g. increase in waste levels), 
legislative changes such as new functions and standards, or areas where the 
current budget simply does not reflect the level of activity within the service. 

27. Pressures totalling £217,000 are being recommended for 2011/12 and are 
detailed in Appendix 4. 

 REVENUE DEVELOPMENTS AND REVENUE BIDS 

28. Each political group also has the opportunity to put forward new proposals 
for spending as part of the budget process which reflect their priorities for 
service provision.  Spending to fund revenue developments is detailed in 



 11

Appendix 5 and totals just under £2.25M in 2011/12.  Most of these 
developments reflect ongoing commitments that were approved as part of 
the budget in previous years. 

29. The majority of the revenue developments are complex and strategic 
projects around which there are uncertainties in relation to timing and speed 
of progress.  Consequently, the funding for revenue developments is placed 
into a Revenue Development Fund to enable the Council to retain flexibility 
in funding.  Approval to release this funding, making adjustments between 
schemes and in the timing as required, is delegated to the Executive Director 
of Resources following consultation with the Cabinet Member for Resources 
and Workforce Planning. 

30. Services are normally invited to put forward a series of bids in order to fund 
new spending initiatives but given the financial position this year no bids 
have been progressed for 2011/12. 

 EFFICIENCIES, INCOME AND SERVICE REDUCTIONS 

31. The 14th July 2010 Council report set out a forecast budget gap of just under 
£11.7M and at that point, proposals for efficiencies, income generation and 
service reductions were required to bridge a revised budget gap of just under 
£15.0M after further revenue developments, pressures or savings were 
taken into account.  The following actions are now reflected in the base 
position: 

 

• Mini budget savings proposals of £4.2M. 

• Impact of the Provisional Local Government Settlement £11.2M. 

• Increase in Council Tax Base which delivers additional revenue of 
£0.6M. 

• Reduction in allowance required for pressures, revenue developments 
and bids of £1.6M. 

• £3.2M Collection Fund surplus primarily from a one off adjustment 
reported in the 2009/10 accounts but also from the continued high 
levels of collection of the council tax over recent years. 

 

Taking the above factors into account, savings of £16.6M are therefore 
required to balance the draft budget for 2011/12 at an assumed council tax 
increase of zero.  This also allows for the receipt of central government grant 
funding to ‘reimburse’ the Council for the loss of 2.5% of additional council 
tax income forgone through freezing council tax. 

32. The Executives recommendations for efficiencies, income generation and 
service reductions now total over £17.9M, including £5.0M from Terms & 
Conditions changes and £0.8M from a reduction in management posts, and 
are set out in detail in Appendix 6.  This also allows an addition to balances 
of just under £1.3M which can be used in future years. 

33. The savings proposals inevitably have an impact on staffing within the City 
Council with 205.08 FTE posts affected of which 29.30 are currently vacant 
and 175.78 are in post.  A further reduction of 35 to 40 posts was also 
identified as part of a proposed 20% reduction in management posts 



 12

following the Chief Executive’s announcement in January on changes to the 
Directorate Structure of the Council.  Some of these posts will however 
overlap with the detailed proposals contained in Appendix 6. 

34. Those proposals in Appendix 6 approved when the Full Council sets its 
budget on 16th February will fall into the classification of ‘urgent, unplanned’ 
reductions in employee numbers.  Therefore, employees will be notified that 
they are being placed on the ‘Redeployment Register’ following Full Council 
decision on 16h February for a period of three-months.  This has resulted in 
some of the financial savings being reduced in order to take account of the 
part year costs of redeployment, and any extension to that period would 
undermine the Councils financial planning process as the balanced budget is 
based upon this redeployment approach.  The restructure process and timing 
for the management restructure has yet to be announced. 

 TERMS AND CONDITIONS CHANGES 

35. The scale of the reductions in local government funding has meant that the 
Council has been forced to look at radical options for reducing expenditure 
across services.  One of these options is to reduce the terms and conditions 
of staff to produce recurring savings.  A commitment has been given by this 
Executive that no further changes to terms and conditions will be sought for 
the purposes of budget savings. 

36. While it is recognised that the individual impact of such changes on staff 
would be difficult, this must be set against the alternative option which would 
have been to look at further cuts in services with the consequential loss of 
further jobs.  Given the impact of this alternative on those individuals who 
may have been made redundant and on the customers who rely on the 
services, it is felt that changing terms and conditions should feature as a 
proposal for the 2011/12 budget and beyond. 

37. A series of negotiation meetings were held with the Unions and various 
communications with staff were sent out to update them on changes to 
proposals and the Council / Union positions.  The Council also faced an 
added complication in respect of school support staff in Community and 
Voluntary Controlled Schools and sought legal advice on this matter, 
together with meetings with Head Teachers and Chairs of Governors.  It was 
therefore not until after Christmas that it was confirmed that school support 
staff would be included in the proposed changes to terms and conditions. 

38. However, in strict legal terms, although staff in these types of schools are 
employed by the City Council, it is the Governing Bodies that set their terms 
and conditions and the Council does not therefore have the power to impose 
these changes on school support staff.  Chairs of Governors were therefore 
asked to hold extraordinary meetings of their Governing Bodies to agree to 
implement any changes to terms and conditions approved by Full Council as 
part of the Budget in order to avoid any potential equal pay issues. 

39. At the time of writing this report only a few Governing Bodies had met and 
those that had were not agreeing to implement these changes.  However, 
this does not alter the Council’s requirement to implement any changes to 
pay on a consistent basis across its workforce and therefore the 
recommendations in this report will still apply to schools support staff albeit 



 13

that the Council does not have the power to enforce this.  It will however 
continue to urge Governing Bodies to agree to implement the changes. 

40. A final offer in respect of the changes to terms and conditions was made to 
the Unions on 26th January which reflected feedback given to the Council by 
staff throughout the negotiation process.  The offer is detailed in Appendix 7. 

41. The Unions are currently balloting their Members on the revised offer and at 
the time of writing this report the Council does not know if the 
recommendation of the Unions to their members is to accept or reject the 
proposals and the outcome of the ballot will not be known until after Full 
Council meets to set the budget and Council Tax. 

42. This report and financial appendices have been prepared on the basis that a 
collective agreement is reached with the Unions on the current proposals.  
This is not an attempt to pre-empt the decision, it is simply that the papers 
must be prepared on some basis and this was the one that was chosen. 

43. The recommendations in this report delegate authority to the Chief Executive 
as Head of Paid Service in consultation with the CFO and the Solicitor to the 
Council to take any steps in connection with amendments to the Terms and 
Conditions changes, the negotiation of any potential changes with the 
Unions and any process associated with the implementation of these 
changes.  If a collective agreement cannot be reached then the Council will 
need to dismiss and re-engage staff in order to enforce the changes to terms 
and conditions.  None of these changes including dismissal and re-
engagement can be applied to school based staff without the agreement of 
the Governing Bodies. 

44. In the event that changes are made to the proposals, this will have an impact 
on the budget position presented in this report as will the process of 
dismissing and re-engaging staff since a period of 90 days notice will be 
given.  The recommendations in this report therefore also delegate authority 
to the CFO in consultation with the Solicitor to the Council to make changes 
to the budget to take account of these implications.  In reality any loss of 
savings arising from either of these issues will be made up through a draw 
from balances on a one-off basis and the on going impact will then need to 
be addressed as part of setting the budget for 2012/13. 

 MANAGEMENT RESTRUCTURE 

45. The new Chief Executive started with the Council in November 2010 and 
since his appointment he has been considering the structure of the Council 
both in light of the financial position of the authority but also in response to 
the changing environment in which the Council must operate taking into 
account the changes in the NHS and school sector in particular. 

46. His original intention was to take stock of the organisation and seek views on 
future direction and structure and to put forward restructure proposal before 
the beginning of the new financial year.  However, the severe pressures on 
the budget together with the pace of change in Government Policy and the 
public sector generally have accelerated the need for organisational change.  
Therefore, a letter was sent out to all staff on 19th January setting out 
proposals for a new Directorate structure and the intention to reduce 
management posts by 20% across the organisation (which includes some 



 14

proposals already submitted for middle management posts and detailed in 
Appendix 6). 

47. Detailed proposals in respect of these reductions are still being drawn up 
and formal consultation will commence with staff in February.  At the moment 
therefore the savings in respect of these changes can only be forecast and 
provisional sums of £0.8M in 2011/12 and £1.5M in 2012/13 have been 
included in these budget proposals.  Any changes to these amounts will be 
reported separately once the final reductions are known. 

 PROPOSED BUDGET PACKAGE 

48. Summarised below is the proposed budget package put forward by the 
Executive for consideration.  The detailed analysis is reflected in the General 
Fund Revenue Account set out in Appendix 8 and shows the changes from 
the base position outlined in paragraphs 13 to 23.  The proposals are based 
on a Council Tax freeze and include a contribution to balances of just over 
£1.25M. 

 

  
£M 

Total roll forward spending (after addition to balances)   206,103.2 

Invest to Save Bids (Appendix 3)            25.0 

Pressures (Appendix 4)          217.0 

Revenue Developments (Appendices 5)       2,248.3 

Efficiencies, Income and Service Reductions (Appendix 6) (12,058.0) 

Corporate Savings – Terms & Conditions (5,047.0) 

Corporate Savings – Management Restructure (800.0) 

Budget requirement   190,688.5 
 

 COUNCIL TAX 

49. The Budget Requirement shown in Appendix 8 is used to calculate the level 
of council tax for 2011/12.  After taking into account Government Grants and 
an assumed surplus on the collection fund at the end of 2010/11 of just over 
£3.2M, the total amount to be met by council tax payers is £82,585.6M.  This 
is then divided by the council tax base set by the Executive Director for 
Resources following consultation with the Cabinet Member for Resources 
and Workforce Planning to give the basic amount of council tax for the year 
of £1,239.21, which is a zero increase.  The full calculation is set out in 
Appendix 9. 

50. The estimates of the payments from the Collection Fund in the form of 
precepts for 2011/12 are set out in Appendix 10.  This includes preliminary 
figures for the Police and Fire authorities, for whom proposed council tax 
increases of zero have been assumed.  The Appendix therefore shows that 
when these items are added to Southampton’s council tax, the overall 
increase remains at zero  These figures will not be confirmed until the budget 
setting day.  



 15

 GENERAL FUND BALANCES 

51. It is important for Cabinet and Council to consider the position on balances.  
Balances are used either to: 

• support revenue spending, 

• support the capital programme, or 

• provide a ‘working’ balance at a minimum level suggested by the 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) with any projected excess being 
available to fund any one-off expenditure pressures or to reduce the 
council tax on a one-off basis. 

The latter option is not recommended by the CFO. 

52. Several years ago, CIPFA issued guidance on a risk based approach to 
setting an appropriate level of reserves.  The CFO at the time produced a 
calculation for the City which took into account factors such as: 

• Exposure to pay and price inflation 

• Volatile areas of income generation 

• Demand led service expenditure 

• Exposure to interest rate variations 

• Contractual commitments 

• Achievement of budget savings 

• VAT partial exemption risk 

53. This calculation is updated periodically to reflect current levels of expenditure 
and income and treasury management operations and also new 
considerations such as partnership arrangements.  Based on this calculation, 
the minimum level of balances was increased from £4.0M to £4.5M in line 
with the good practice guidance several years ago.  This level was reviewed 
last year and despite new risks around government grant and interest rate 
exposure, other changes (such as risks around the Capita contract now that 
we are over three years in) have meant that the minimum level of balances 
remain at £4.5M.  It is also important to set this figure against the fact that 
since becoming a unitary authority in 1997 the Council has never had to use 
its minimum balances to address a financial problem. 

54. The table below shows the position for balances after taking into account the 
outturn for 2009/10, the estimated outturn for 2010/11, the budget proposals 
set out in this report and the current update of the capital programme. 

 



 16

 

 

 2010/11  2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 

 £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Estimated Opening Balance 19,849.5 13,315.9 11,111.4 7,301.2 

Net Draw  from / (to) Revenue  1,318.8 1,168.1 (1,340.0)  

Draw to Support Capital (2,787.0) (57.0)   

Draw for Strategic Schemes (5,065.4) (3,315.6) (2,470.2) (2,159.7) 

Closing Balance 13,315.9 11,111.4 7,301.2 5,141.5 

55. The above projection includes an addition to the to the Organisational 
Development Reserve of £0.5M in each of the years from 2011/12 to 
2013/14 in order to ensure that adequate ongoing provision is made for the 
costs associated with the implementation of staff related savings. 

56. Whilst the level of balances by 2013/14 remains above the minimum 
required amount of £4.5M, at this stage it is not intended to use this to 
support the revenue budget in 2012/13 because this forecast does not reflect 
the possible draw of up to £0.5M which may be needed in 2011/12 as 
outlined in paragraph 18 due to uncertainties in the budget. 

 MEDIUM TERM FORECAST 

57. A roll forward forecast has been estimated for 2012/13 and 2013/14 taking 
into account the future years effects of the proposed pressures and savings 
as set out in this report.  The forecast is included as Appendix 10.  The 
funding gap will be reviewed and addressed as part of the ongoing 
development of longer term financial planning and Members are being asked 
to authorise the Chief Officers Management Team to pursue the 
development of future years options highlighted in Appendix 6. 

58. The CSR announced in October was for a four year period but the 
provisional Local Government Settlement released in December was only for 
two years.  As no figures are available beyond 2012/13 it is difficult to move 
any further towards a more robust rolling three year financial plan.  This is 
exacerbated by the economic climate, uncertainty about Government 
spending plans in future years and possible changes to local authority 
funding.  The intention remains, however, to produce a high level plan 
containing longer term objectives that can be pursued outside of the annual 
budget process and the current forecasts assume a further reduction of 7.0% 
per annum in Government funding for 2013/14 and also 2014/15.  

59. Further work will be undertaken in the next few months to ensure that the 
assumptions built into the forecast for 2012/13 are robust and reflect the 
latest predications in relation to key variables such as inflation and interest 
rates.  The intention is that an updated forecast will be presented to Council 
in the Summer if appropriate.  

 

60. Appendix 11 also includes an increasing sum for future options for 
efficiencies, income and service reductions in later years that the Chief 



 17

Officers Management Team need authorisation to develop and progress. 

61. Future savings have also been included in the medium term forecast of 
£5.7M in 2012/13 rising to £10.4M in 2013/14.  These items are work in 
progress and will be further developed in the coming year. 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital  

62. The revenue implications of funding the capital programme through supported 
and unsupported borrowing are reflected in the 2011/12 estimates presented 
in Appendix 8. 

Revenue 

63. As set out in the report 

Property/Other 

64. None 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

65. The Executive has a legal responsibility to recommend a budget to the 
Council. 

 

Other Legal Implications:  

66. Appendix 12 sets out a detailed synopsis of the legal issues associated with 
budget setting within Local Government and Appendix 13 fulfils the Chief 
Financial Officers statutory duty under the LGA 2003 for reporting on the 
robustness of the budget proposals and the adequacy of reserves. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

67. This report sets out the Executive’s proposed budget to Council which is 
being developed in line with the constitution and forms an integral part of 
budget and policy framework. 

 

AUTHOR: Name:  Andrew Lowe Tel: 023 8083 2409 

 E-mail: Andrew.Lowe@southampton.gov.uk 

KEY DECISION?  YES 

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: ALL 

 



 18

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Non-confidential appendices are in the Members’ Rooms and can be accessed 
on-line 

Appendices  

1. Report on Budget Consultation Process and Outcomes 

2. Revised General Fund Revenue Budget 2010/11 

3. Summary of Invest to Save Bids 

4. Summary of Revenue Pressures 

5. Summary of Revenue Developments 

6. Summary of Efficiencies, Additional Income and Service Reductions 

7. Terms & Conditions Proposals 

8. 2011/12 General Fund Revenue Account  

9. 2011/12 Council Tax Calculation 

10. 2011/12 Collection Fund Estimates 

11. Medium Term Financial Forecast 

12. Statutory Power To Undertake Proposals In The Report 

13. Chief Financial Officers View On The Budget 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. Equality Impact Assessments 

Integrated Impact Assessment  

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Integrated Impact 
Assessment (IIA) to be carried out. 

Yes/No 

Other Background Documents 

Integrated Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for 
inspection at: 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if applicable) 

1. CHANGES TO EXISTING REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGETS – Cabinet 
5th July 2010 and Council 14th July 2010 

 

 



1 

 

 

‘YOUR CITY, YOUR SAY’ BUDGET CONSULTATION REPORT 
 
 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
The ‘Your City, Your Say’ Budget Consultation aimed to engage local residents in the 
process of developing council budgets and priorities and to help identify potential cost and 
efficiency savings that may enable the Council to offset reductions in government 
spending and grant funding.  Alongside this work, the Council also ran a ‘Your Council, 
Your Say’ consultation with its staff – giving them the opportunity to use their insight to 
identify solutions that may generate revenue or reduce inefficiency within the organisation.  
This report summarises the main findings of both consultations, which were undertaken 
between October 2010 and January 2011.  

 
1. THE CONSULTATIONS  
 

• Over 500 people used the online ‘You Choose’ budget calculator, of whom 334 
could be identified as living within Southampton. 

• 120 consultation postcards were completed by visitors to the market day 
consultation road shows in Bitterne, Shirley and the Town Centre.  In addition, the 
Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council spent 12 hours speaking with local 
residents and shoppers who dropped by. 

• 13 ‘harder to involve’ residents visited the civic centre for a ‘Your City, Your Say’ 
forum - which included a brief tour, presentation and discussion with the Leader 
and Deputy Leader of the Council.  

• 11 people submitted ‘Your City, Your Say’ feedback forms, available via the 
Council’s website, or as hard copy on request. 

• Local residents also shared their ideas with Councillors via one hour ‘phone in’ 
slots on Unity One and AWAAZ community radio stations. 

 
246 council staff submitted consultation forms, with a further 26 staff attending Open 
Door sessions with the Leader of the Council, and 6 staff submitting suggestions by 
email. 
 
In addition, this report considers aspects of the ‘Your City, Your Say’ survey, completed 
by 1,171 residents in Autumn 2010, which included questions on City priorities. 

 
2. KEY FINDINGS - RESIDENTS 
 

• No-one wants to see services lost or facilities closed.  Participants would much 
rather see services reduced than stopped altogether. 

• The Council should concentrate its provision on ‘must have’s’, rather than 
perceived ‘nice to have’s’. 

• In particular, participants valued services for vulnerable and older people, services 
that would encourage children and young people’s development and services that 
keep people safe.  They would also prioritise maintenance of roads and 
pavements, increasing employment, and locally accessible community services.  

• Many of the participants felt that local communities could be encouraged and 
enabled to take responsibility for aspects of their area.   

Appendix 1



2 

• Participants would broadly support opportunities to maximise the Council’s 
income, and felt that further efficiency savings could still be applied in a number of 
areas. 

 
3. KEY FINDINGS – STAFF 
 

In the light of the funding cuts and potential for reduced services over the next three 
years, staff responding to the consultation felt that the top priorities for the City Council 
should be to: 
 

1. Maintain and refocus on core, and essential front line, services. 
2. Support vulnerable people. 
3. Reduce staff turnover.  
4. Reduce crime and anti-social behaviour. 
5. Support children, young people and families. 
6. Encourage economic growth and job creation. 
7. Increase educational achievement, and training for young people. 

 
Respondents were keen that the Council should provide value for money services that 
met residents’ needs.  The consultation also generated almost 800 ideas and 
suggestions as to how the Council could work more efficiently – the majority of which 
can broadly be grouped into nine areas: 
 

Joint working Human Resources 
Terms and 
Conditions 

Outsourcing and 
Procurement 

Energy Saving 
Administrative 
Resources 

Revenue generation ICT Service Specific 

 
N.B.  A full list of suggestions can be reviewed internally, following the link on 
the front page of the Intranet. 

 
4. RESIDENTS’ VIEWS - SERVICE PRIORITIES 
 

Residents who visited the ‘Your City, Your Say’ Roadshows recognised and used a 
wide range of services provided by the Council.  They placed particular value on: 

 

• Community services: such as local libraries, community safety, SureStart centres 
and local contact points (e.g. housing offices, walk-in centres)  

• Services that support elderly and vulnerable residents.  

• Leisure facilities: including swimming pools, leisure centres, youth clubs and 
parks. 

• Waste and recycling. 

• Cultural facilities: such as museums, the art gallery and city events. 

• Maintenance of roads and pavements. 



3 

Residents who attended the Civic Centre Forum discussed a wide range of Council 
services.  They prioritised:  

 

• Quality of education 

• Maintenance of roads, pavements and cycle routes 

• Human contact - being able to approach the Council and receive support to 
resolve issues. 

• Support for vulnerable people. 

• Assisting communities in taking responsibility for their local area. 
 
 

The service areas where Southampton residents using the ‘You Choose’ budget 
calculator applied the lowest budget cuts (below 7%) were as follows: 

 

• Services for Adults With Mental Health Needs 

• Support for Children & Young People in Schools 

• Services for Children & Young People 

• Support for Children With Special Educational Needs 

• Services for Adults With Physical or Sensory Disabilities 

• Homelessness, Advice & Enforcement 

• Services for Adults With a Learning Disability 

• Children's Social Care Services 

• Services for Older People (Age 65+) 
 
 

The following challenges were identified by City Survey respondents as the most 
important priorities for Southampton, and also those most in need of improvement. 

 

Most Important Most Needs Improving 

1. Increasing job growth and 
employment 

1. Increasing job growth and 
employment 

2. Reducing crime and antisocial 
behaviour 

2. Reducing crime and antisocial 
behaviour 

3. Keeping children safe 3. Improving roads, pavements and 
street lighting 

4. Improving roads, pavements and 
street lighting  

4. Keeping children safe 

5. Supporting vulnerable people 5. Supporting vulnerable people 

 
1,171 respondents. Priorities chosen from a list of 18 challenges, plus an option to suggest their 
own. 

 
5. RESIDENTS’ SUGGESTIONS FOR CHANGE – ROADSHOWS, FEEDBACK FORMS 
AND FORUM. 

 
a) In General 

There was a broad recognition and acceptance amongst participants that the 
majority of savings would impact on universal services, as opposed to those used by 
fewer, but more vulnerable residents.  Road show participants also tended to 



4 

comment on the services they used directly.  Therefore, very few of the savings 
suggestions encompassed services provided by the Children’s Services and 
Learning, or Health and Adult Social Care directorates.   

The one key message that was clear across the consultation, was that no-one 
wanted to see services lost or facilities closed.  Participants would much rather see 
services reduced than stopped altogether.  They reasoned that people would adapt 
to (e.g.) shorter contact hours or slightly longer journeys, but feared that once a 
service had stopped, it would be very difficult for it to return.   

The Forum participants, in possession of more detailed information, were particularly 
keen that the required 2011/12 savings of 7%1 should be applied equally across the 
board.  They felt strongly that a small reduction in all services was preferable, and 
suggested that even statutory services could look to operate more efficiently.  

Generally, participants were also keen to preserve the opportunity for direct local 
contact with the Council.  Those who had used Gateway or community facilities such 
as housing offices found it reassuring to be able to speak directly with council staff 
when problems arose.  However, if value could be added or savings made through 
shared provision of non front facing services with other councils then they were 
happy for this to be considered.  

b) Service Reductions 

When deciding where the reduction should apply, participants asked that the 
Council concentrate its provision on ‘must have’s’, rather than perceived ‘nice to 
have’s’.  

For example, they would much rather that existing roads and pavements were 
properly maintained and repaired, than money spent on new traffic light junctions or 
gyratory systems.  Similarly, flower pots, community artwork and new museums 
were seen as desirable, but not essential in the current climate. 

Given the extent of the cuts required, most of the residents consulted were not 
adverse to alternate weekly collection of household waste.  However, they felt that 
should this be adopted, alternative provision should be made for families and 
residents in larger households – for example by providing them with larger bins.  
Participants also felt that the green waste collection service should be suspended 
during the winter months, arguing that the amount they generated dropped markedly 
at this time.  Some suggested that staff could be transferred to seasonal jobs of 
higher priority, such as road and pavement gritting. 

Street lighting was another key area where participants felt that savings could be 
made.  They were broadly in favour of street lights being dimmed or switched off at 
night – provided crime levels were taken into consideration and monitored. 

Libraries were an often mentioned area.  Although not always regular users, 
participants recognised the value of a local service, and would rather see opening 
hours reduced by one day a week than branches close.  To maintain the service, 
they also suggested that the libraries could be better utilised – incorporating more 
community groups or book clubs; or that some services – for example reading 
groups or even internet usage - could attract a fee. I f branches were to close, some 
proposed using a mobile library to maintain the service. 

Council tenants who took part in the consultation suggested that the Council should 
use good quality fittings that will last longer when fitting out council properties, rather 

                                                
1
 This was the extent of the know savings requirements at the time. 



5 

than making false economies.  They noted that more could also be done to 
encourage tenants to look after their properties.   

Whilst participants understood the value of City View Magazine, some did question 
whether savings could still be made – perhaps via less regular publication, by 
investigating online publication options, or through increased advertising revenue. 

c) Community Involvement 

Many of the participants felt that local communities could also be encouraged and 
enabled to take responsibility for aspects of their area.  Where services had to be 
cut, rather than losing them altogether they would prefer that the Council provide 
support to help local residents and volunteers maintain provision. With the 
consultation being undertaken during the winter months, gritting was often used as 
an example – wherein residents noted they would be happy to undertake the 
spreading on local roads and pavements, if only grit bins were made available to 
them.  Others suggested maintenance of local play parks and outdoor space, litter 
picking and organising local activities could be undertaken by the local community.  

Some people also suggested that means testing should be applied more widely to 
council services, so that people who could afford to contribute would do so. 

d) Staffing 

Participants sympathised with staff facing wage cuts, but accepted that this was 
required.  However, there was some feeling that the highest paid senior managers 
should face larger reductions. 

Some also perceived that the Council was overstaffed and could become a leaner 
organisation.  However, whilst a small number mentioned staff cuts, more felt that 
the amount of Councillors could be reduced.  They queried why, if the Council could 
become more efficient, its political representatives could not do likewise. A reduction 
to two Councillors per ward was regularly suggested, and participants were in favour 
of the currently proposed reduction in expenses.  

 
6. RESIDENTS’ VIEWS - THE ‘YOU CHOOSE’ BUDGET CALCULATOR  
 

334 Southampton residents completed the ‘You Choose’ online budget calculator.  
Respondents were asked to set a budget from a range of service, income and savings 
options in order to limit the local Council Tax increase to less than 3%.  The table below 
shows the average reductions in service budgets applied, and the proportion of 
residents who applied a decrease, rather than an increase, to each service area 
budget. 



6 

Service Area Average 
reduction 

£ 

Reduction 
% 

Current 
Service 
Budget 

New 
Budget if 
Reduction 
Applied 

Respondents 
Applying a 
Decrease  

% 

Art Gallery & Museums 286,971 15.0 1,916,354 1,629,383 94 

Legal and Democratic Services 623,371 14.6 4,276,300 3,652,929 98 

Sports & Recreation 460,077 14.4 3,195,554 2,735,477 94 

Customer Services, 
Communication and Public 
Information 

419,152 13.5 3,099,400 2,680,248 98 

Libraries 393,010 13.5 2,911,592 2,518,582 93 

Parks & Open Spaces 481,992 12.8 3,759,300 3,277,308 92 

Economic & Community 
Development and Support to 
Voluntary Groups 

487,378 11.5 4,250,200 3,762,822 90 

Land and Buildings 875,506 11.4 7,702,500 6,826,994 94 

Support Services  2,563,175 10.9 23,468,900 20,905,725 97 

Highways and Parking 549,671 10.3 5,331,200 4,781,529 88 

Payments and Benefits 222,831 10.1 2,212,900 1,990,069 94 

Community Safety 162,151 9.9 1,636,600 1,474,449 88 

Planning and Building Control 695,267 9.5 7,344,400 6,649,133 88 

Protecting the Environment 66,005 9.3 709,200 643,195 89 

Environmental Health and 
Consumer Protection 

218,137 9.3 2,355,500 2,137,363 86 

Refuse and Recycling 1,040,084 8.6 12,057,700 11,017,616 88 

New Affordable Homes 47,485 8.3 568,900 521,415 84 

Street Cleansing and Enforcement 98,350 7.8 1,260,700 1,162,350 88 

Services for Adults With Mental 
Health Needs 

345,756 6.4 5,400,750 5,054,994 87 

Support for Children & Young 
People in Schools 

315,835 6.2 5,074,601 4,758,766 84 

Services for Children & Young 
People 

57,245 6.1 937,801 880,556 83 

Support for Children With Special 
Educational Needs 

75,381 5.8 1,292,048 1,216,667 82 

Services for Adults With Physical 
or Sensory Disabilities 

321,250 5.7 5,602,110 5,280,860 86 

Homelessness, Advice & 
Enforcement 

66,968 5.7 1,174,300 1,107,332 84 

Services for Adults With a 
Learning Disability 

777,839 5.5 14,065,250 13,287,411 88 

Children's Social Care Services 838,007 3.8 21,958,050 21,120,043 81 

Services for Older People (Age 
65+) 

147,970 0.5 27,665,790 27,517,820 87 

Total Budget Reduction 12,636,864       



7 

7. ‘YOU CHOOSE’ INCOME OPTIONS 
 

The table below shows the proportion of respondents who felt that the Council should 
be maximising the proposed income options in the ‘You Choose’ budget calculator.  

 
Income Option 

(Base: 334 Southampton Respondents) 
% 

Maximise Income from Property Portfolio 68 

Refuse Collection Charges and Fines 52 

Increase Fees & Charges  52 

Increase Adult Social Care Client Income  38 

 
8. ‘YOU CHOOSE’ SAVINGS OPTIONS 
 

The table below shows the proportion of respondents who felt that the Council should 
apply each of the proposed savings options in the ‘You Choose’ budget calculator.  

 
Savings Option (Base: 334 Southampton Respondents) % 

Reduction in Councillors’ Allowances 86 

Improve Property and Asset Management 81 

Better Purchasing & Outsourcing 76 

Increased Electronic Service Delivery 74 

Reduction in the Staff Car Mileage Allowance and Restructure of 
Essential User Car Allowance 

69 

No Progression Along Pay Scale for All Staff and Senior 
Managers for Two Years 

52 

Changes to Staff Terms and Conditions Including a Reduction in 
the Working Week by Two Hours 

32 

 
Overall, 41% of Southampton residents that completed ‘You Choose’ set a budget that 
would see Council Tax increase by 1%-3%, a quarter set a budget that would have no 
impact on Council Tax, and a third set a budget that would see a decrease in Council 
tax with the shortfall made up through additional expenditure cuts.   

 
9. STAFF SUGGESTIONS FOR EFFICIENCY SAVINGS AND REVENUE GENERATION 
 
Joint Working (112 comments): Both internal and external joint working were 
encompassed in the wide range of comments received.  Respondents felt that the 
Council should consider integrating specialist services with neighbouring local 
authorities, as well as closer working with partner agencies.  Externally, the concept of 
shared services was felt to be particularly relevant with regards to procurement, public 
health, recruitment, communications, housing support, sustainable transport and also 
venue space.  Responding staff were also keen to work more closely with third sector 
organisations and voluntary groups – in order to enhance service provision where 
council resources were limited - and to encourage community responsibility.   

 



8 

Internally, respondents feel that the Council should adopt a more ‘interdepartmental’ 
approach to maximise resource, and avoid duplication and inefficiencies caused by silo 
working.  
Human Resources (156 comments): Respondents felt strongly that the Council’s 
staffing structure had developed too many layers.  They favoured streamlining, so that 
the number of managers was proportionate to the amount of staff delivering services, in 
order to help reduce bureaucracy and enable more time to be spent on front line 
service provision.  

Many also argued that non-managerial staff should be better empowered to share their 
experiences and ideas to improve service delivery.  They noted that those working 
directly with service users could provide a different perspective on how efficiencies 
should be made – a resource currently felt to be underused, or worse, overlooked at 
the cost of hiring expensive consultants.  

Some respondents questioned whether the number of Councillors in each ward could 
be cut from three to two, rationalising that efficiency savings should be made across the 
board. 

Terms and Conditions (123 comments): Respondents were particularly anxious to 
avoid redundancies.  Instead they suggested a range of alternative options that would 
spread the impact, including universal reductions in contracted hours or salaries, a 
review of overtime, sickness, travel and expense policies, pay rise suspension, 
increments subject to strict appraisal, and reductions in executive pay.  Concerns were 
also raised regarding the impact of pay cuts on the lowest paid staff. 

Outsourcing and Procurement (83 comments): A notable number of respondents 
felt frustrated by the current outsourcing and procurement arrangements that the 
Council had negotiated, and were unclear on how these were able to save the Council 
money.  In the light of changed economic climate, they advocated a review of external 
suppliers and contracts, to ensure that these are efficient, offer the best possible value 
for money, meet local needs, and can be monitored effectively and held to account for 
under achievement.  

Energy Saving (41 comments): Initiatives to save energy were felt to be a common 
sense and simple way to save money.  Respondents gave a number of examples of 
wasteful lighting and heating of council buildings, as well as equipment being left on 
when not in use.  Provision of bottled water was also seen as a luxury, rather than a 
necessity.  

Administrative Resources (51 comments): Suggestions here encompassed a range 
of simple measures that, implemented across the Council, could generate a larger cost 
saving.  These included restricting use of first class post and colour printing, 
encouraging reuse of internal post envelopes and recycling of equipment across 
divisions.  Respondents also felt that savings could be made through the use of 
corporate credit cards, and by ending internal recharges, and the associated paperwork 
and administration. 

Opportunities for revenue generation (33 comments): The comments in this section 
can broadly be grouped into four areas.  Firstly, greater commercial exploitation of 
council services; secondly, realising the value of council assets (in particular the 
underused art collection); thirdly, proactively pursuing external funding and income; and 
finally enabling generated income to be used across the Council, rather than being ring 
fenced in certain areas.  

ICT (42 comments): Respondents felt that many aspects of the Council’s ICT system 
prevented them working efficiently.  Strong concerns were raised about the significant 
amount of time wasted and stress caused due to unreliability, and it was suggested that 



9 

staff using new systems should be consulted prior to purchase to ensure service needs 
were met.  Some respondents wondered replacing computers less regularly would save 
the Council money, whilst others felt the Council should be more open to embracing 
mobile technologies and online, open source, software. 

 
10. SERVICE SPECIFIC SUGGESTIONS (160 COMMENTS) 
 

Communications: Respondents felt that the distribution of City View Magazine to staff 
was wasteful.  It was suggested that the magazine should instead be available via the 
intranet, as could the In-View staff publication.  In terms of more general resource, 
there was concern about money being wasted on ineffective and duplicate internal and 
external communication. 

Environment: Although recognised as not being politically popular, respondents still felt 
strongly that alternate weekly bin collections should be trialled in Southampton.  
Charges for garden waste collection, bin delivery and bulk collection were also 
suggested.  In terms of transport, respondents suggested reviewing the quality and 
efficiency of road repairs and fleet transport. 

H&ASC: The key saving here was to reduce over assessment of clients and repetition 
of referrals.  Respondents also felt that a number of key processes in the directorate, 
such as safeguarding, Putting People First, RAS system, and processing of invoices, 
could be streamlined, making them more efficient. 

Children’s Services: Respondents recognised the importance of services in this area, 
so to make savings, were keen that initiatives should concentrate on core provision, at 
the expense of aspects like provision of laptops for school children, events, taxis for 
transport to/from school and even new capital programmes.  

Neighbourhoods: Many comments in this area related to developing volunteering, 
encouraging community empowerment and improving cross directorate working as 
specified in earlier sections.  Other comments encompassed scaling back large scale 
events, better use of unoccupied land for council housing, transferring management of 
council housing stock to an external provider, development of joint community facilities 
(e.g. libraries and housing offices), and reducing expenditure on the Sea City Museum. 

 
11. ABOUT THE YOUR CITY, YOUR SAY BUDGET CONSULTATION 
 

The ‘Your City, Your Say’ Budget Consultation was undertaken between October 2010 
and January 2011.  In accordance with the Council’s statutory duty, its primary aim was 
to consult local residents about local priorities, prior to the finalisation of the 2011/12 
budget.  

The consultation was qualitative in nature – its objective being to provide people with 
the opportunity to express their views, to explore concepts and to generate ideas, 
rather than collate statistics.  That said, it was important that as many residents as 
possible were given the opportunity to participate, should they choose to do so. 

A series of wide ranging communications and media channels were therefore used, to 
extend the invitation. These included: 

• Local and Community Radio Stations – a one hour ‘phone in’ slot on Unity 101 
and AWAZZ stations, and news bulletins on Radio Solent.  

• Written Press - articles in the Southern Daily Echo and press releases made 
available to all local media. 



10 

• Lead article on the Southampton City Council website homepage throughout the 
duration of the consultation period. Further information on the website’s 
consultation pages. 

• Consultation Roadshows in Bitterne, Shirley and Town Centre high streets on 
market day. 

 
Further direct promotion of the consultation was also made via the following channels: 

• 1,800 groups and organisations were contacted directly via the Communities 
database, and asked to encourage their members / contacts to take part in the 
consultation. 

• 300 ‘harder to involve2’ residents were directly invited by phone / post to attend 
the forum. 

• Messages were ‘tweeted’ regularly to 1,637 Twitter followers and ‘posted’ on 
Facebook (111 friends). 

• Council staff were notified of the consultation via the Weekly Bulletin, and asked to 
spread the word. 

 
In addition, 3,600 residents were randomly selected from the LLPG to receive the City 
Survey, which asked respondents to prioritise the city’s key challenges. 

Residents were able to submit their ideas and suggestions in hard copy, online or by 
phone.  

 
12. ABOUT THE ‘YOUR COUNCIL, YOUR SAY’ STAFF BUDGET CONSULTATION 
 

The consultation employed an exploratory approach that enabled all staff to use their 
considerable professional insight and expertise, to highlight novel solutions.  An online 
feedback form was emailed to staff, and sent in hard copy to those without online 
access, asking for written responses to a short set of ‘open’ questions, which were 
framed to meet the objectives and scope of the campaign.  Forms were accompanied 
by a covering letter from the Leader of the Council, and time was also made available 
for staff to meet directly with the Leader at two ‘open door’ sessions. The consultation 
was undertaken during October and November 2010. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                
2
 Identified via analysis of the 2008 Place Survey – residents who are least likely to feel informed about decision making 
or how their council tax is spent, that they can influence decision making, or that the council provides value for money. 

For further information, please contact Communications Research Manager, Communications 
Division, by telephone on 02380 834893, or email yourcity.yoursay@southampton.gov.uk 



APPENDIX 2

Working

Budget

Revised

Budget
Variance

£000's £000's £000's

Portfolios (Net Controllable Spend) 169,724 169,724 0

Non-Controllable Portfolio Costs 21,639 21,639 0

Portfolio Total 191,363 191,363 0

.

Levies & Contributions

Southern Seas Fisheries Levy 44 44 0

Flood Defence Levy 44 44 0

Coroners Service 441 500 60 A

529 588 60 A

Capital Asset Management

Capital Financing Charges 11,800 10,600 1,200 F

Capital Asset Management Account (23,652) (23,652) 0

(11,852) (13,052) 1,200 F

Other Expenditure & Income

Direct Revenue Financing of Capital 443 443 0

Net Housing Benefit Payments (882) (1,000) 118 F

Revenue Development Fund 4,575 4,125 450 F

Contributions to Capital DRF Funding 0 2,354 2,354 A

Exceptional Expenditure & Income 0 (2,354) 2,354 F

Open Spaces and HRA 536 536 0

Risk Fund 3,283 3,936 653 A

Contingencies 211 211 0

(Surplus) / Deficit on Trading Areas 20 20 0

8,186 8,271 85 A

NET GF SPENDING 188,225 187,170 1,055 F

Draw from Balances:

To fund the Capital Programme (443) (443) 0

Draw from Strategic Reserve (Pensions/Reds) (1,082) (1,082) 0

Draw from Balances (General) (3,431) (2,375) 1,055 F

(4,956) (3,900) 1,055 F

BUDGET REQUIREMENT 183,270 183,270 0

GENERAL FUND 2010/11 - REVISED BUDGET

Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
3

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

R
e

c
u

rr
in

g

o
r

O
n

e
O

ff

(R
o

r
O

)

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

L
o

c
a

l
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
&

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

L
S

C
S

1
T

re
e

s
,

A
llo

tm
e

n
ts

&

P
a

rk
s

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

D
e

v
e

lo
p

th
e

A
llo

tm
e

n
ts

S
e

rv
ic

e
to

b
e

e
n

ti
re

ly
s
e

lf
-

fu
n

d
in

g
b

y
2

0
1

3
/1

4
.

R
e

m
o

v
e

s
u

b
s
id

y
o

n
d

ir
e

c
t

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re

to
b

re
a

k
e

v
e

n

C
o

n
v
e

rs
io

n
o

f
e

x
is

ti
n

g
s
it
e

s
in

W
e

s
to

n
,

S
o

u
th

w
e

lls
F

a
rm

,
O

a
k
le

y

ro
a

d
s
o

u
th

a
n

d
A

th
e

ls
ta

n
R

o
a

d
in

to
m

o
re

a
llo

tm
e

n
ts

w
it
h

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

w
a

te
r

s
u

p
p

ly
e

tc
.

N
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
to

d
e

liv
e

r
s
a

v
in

g
s

th
a

t
to

ta
l
£

7
7

K

b
y

2
0

1
3

/1
4

to
m

a
k
e

a
llo

tm
e

n
ts

s
e

lf
fu

n
d

in
g

.
S

e
p

a
ra

te
s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

p
a

p
e

r
a

v
a

ila
b

le
.

O
2

5
J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e

L
S

C
S

2
T

re
e

s
,

A
llo

tm
e

n
ts

&

P
a

rk
s

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

D
e

v
e

lo
p

th
e

A
llo

tm
e

n
ts

S
e

rv
ic

e
to

b
e

e
n

ti
re

ly
s
e

lf
-

fu
n

d
in

g
b

y
2

0
1

3
/1

4
.

R
e

m
o

v
e

s
u

b
s
id

y
o

n
d

ir
e

c
t

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re

to
b

re
a

k
e

v
e

n

T
o

p
ro

v
id

e
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
to

a
llo

tm
e

n
t

s
it
e

s
to

e
n

a
b

le
a

llo
tm

e
n

t

h
o

ld
e

rs
to

c
a

rr
y

o
u

t
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

w
o

rk
,

fa
c
ili

ta
ti
n

g
a

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
in

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
in

c
u

rr
e

d
b

y
th

e
C

o
u

n
c
il.

N
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
to

d
e

liv
e

r
s
a

v
in

g
s

th
a

t
to

ta
l
£

7
7

K
b

y
2

0
1

3
/1

4
to

m
a

k
e

a
llo

tm
e

n
ts

s
e

lf
fu

n
d

in
g

.

S
e

p
a

ra
te

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

p
a

p
e

r
a

v
a

ila
b

le
.

O
3

2
J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e

L
o

c
a

l
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
&

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l

2
5

3
2

0

G
R

A
N

D
T

O
T

A
L

2
5

3
2

0

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
IN

V
E

S
T

T
O

S
A

V
E

B
ID

S
Appendix 3



This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
4

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e
f

S
e
rv

ic
e

A
c
ti

v
it

y
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e
m

Im
p

a
c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

R
e
c
u

rr
in

g

o
r

O
n

e
O

ff

(R
o

r
O

)

2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
2
/1

3
2
0
1
3
/1

4

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

&
L

e
a
rn

in
g

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

C
S

L
1

T
ie

r
3

a
n
d

4
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

tio
n

o
f

T
ie

r
3

a
n
d

4

S
tr

a
te

g
y

T
o

re
c
ru

it
th

re
e

a
d
d
iti

o
n
a
ls

e
n
io

r
p
ra

c
tit

io
n
e
rs

to
h
e
lp

su
p
p
o
rt

te
a
m

s

p
ro

vi
d
in

g
so

c
ia

lc
a
re

to
c
h
ild

re
n

a
n
d

yo
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

R
1
3
7

1
3
7

1
3
7

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l

1
3
7

1
3
7

1
3
7

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t
&

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

E
&

T
1

S
u
st

a
in

a
b
ili

ty
D

ra
in

a
g
e

E
xp

e
rt

T
h
e

F
lo

o
d

a
n
d

W
a
te

r
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
A

c
t
g
a
in

e
d

R
o
ya

lA
ss

e
n
t
in

A
p
ri
l

2
0
1
0

a
n
d

th
e

F
lo

o
d

R
is

k
R

e
g
u
la

tio
n
s

c
a
m

e
in

to
fo

rc
e

in
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0
9
.
T

h
is

le
g
is

la
tio

n
d
e
te

rm
in

e
s

n
e
w

ro
le

s
a
n
d

re
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

tie
s

fo
r

a
ll

lo
c
a
la

u
th

o
ri
tie

s
a
n
d

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
s

si
g
n
if
ic

a
n
t
lia

b
ili

tie
s

w
ith

re
sp

e
c
t
to

th
e

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
a
n
d

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
o
f

lo
c
a
lf

lo
o
d

ri
sk

.
L
o
c
a
lf

lo
o
d

ri
sk

is
su

e
s

a
re

c
ro

ss
-c

u
tt
in

g
a
n
d

c
ro

ss
-b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

in
n
a
tu

re
.
A

s
a

re
su

lt
it

w
ill

re
q
u
ir
e

a
u
th

o
ri
tie

s
to

m
a
n
a
g
e

th
e
ir

c
a
p
a
c
ity

a
n
d

p
ro

c
e
ss

e
s

a
c
ro

ss
a

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

e
xi

st
in

g
a
c
tiv

iti
e
s

in
c
lu

d
in

g
sp

a
tia

l

p
la

n
n
in

g
,
e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y

p
la

n
n
in

g
,
d
ra

in
a
g
e

e
n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g

a
n
d

a
d
a
p
ta

tio
n

to
c
lim

a
te

c
h
a
n
g
e
.
In

a
re

a
s

w
h
e
re

th
e
re

is
si

g
n
if
ic

a
n
t
ri
sk

it
w

ill
b
e

c
ri
tic

a
lt

o
d
e
ve

lo
p

a
w

o
rk

in
g

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
o
f

th
e

lo
c
a
lh

a
z
a
rd

s
a
n
d

c
o
n
se

q
u
e
n
c
e
s.

R
8
0

8
0

8
0

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t
&

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l

8
0

8
0

8
0

G
R

A
N

D
T

O
T

A
L

2
1
7

2
1
7

2
1
7

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

P
R

E
S

S
U

R
E

S
Appendix 4



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
4

H
e
a
d

o
f

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
e
lic

ity

B
u
d
g
e
n

P
a
u
l

N
ic

h
o
ls



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
5

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
&

L
e

a
rn

in
g

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

C
S

L
1

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
a

n
d

C
a

p
it
a

l
P

ri
m

a
ry

R
e

v
ie

w
P

h
a

s
e

2

F
u

n
d

in
g

to
e

n
a

b
le

b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
to

im
p

le
m

e
n

t
P

ri
m

a
ry

R
e

v
ie

w
P

h
a

s
e

2

a
n

d
a

d
d

a
n

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l
3

,0
0

0
p

la
c
e

s
in

P
ri

m
a

ry
s
c
h

o
o

ls
o

v
e

r
th

e
n

e
x
t

8

y
e

a
rs

.
T

h
is

w
ill

e
n

a
b

le
to

C
o

u
n

c
il

to
m

e
e

t
it
s

s
ta

tu
to

ry
o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
to

p
ro

v
id

e
s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t
s
c
h

o
o

l
p

la
c
e

s
th

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t
th

e
c
it
y

9
5

0
9

5
0

K
a

rl

L
im

b
e

rt

C
S

L
2

C
h

ild
re

n
in

C
a

re
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

C
h

ild
re

n

A
re

v
ie

w
o

f
th

e
s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
w

it
h

in
th

e
C

it
y

h
a

s

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
th

e
n

e
e

d
fo

r
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l
fu

n
d

in
g

to
s
u

p
p

o
rt

th
e

c
o

s
ts

o
f

e
m

p
lo

y
in

g
m

o
re

e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

d
s
o

c
ia

l
w

o
rk

e
rs

a
n

d
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
a

g
e

n
c
y

s
ta

ff
to

c
o

v
e

r
v
a

c
a

n
t

p
o

s
ts

2
2

8
2

2
8

2
2

8
F

e
lic

it
y

B
u

d
g

e
n

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
T

o
ta

l
2

2
8

1
,1

7
8

1
,1

7
8

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

&
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

E
&

T
1

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l
H

ig
h

w
a

y
s

fu
n

d
in

g
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l
fu

n
d

in
g

to
in

c
re

a
s
e

y
e

a
r

o
n

y
e

a
r

th
e

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

8
0

0
1

,6
0

0
2

,4
0

0
M

ic
k

B
is

h
o

p

E
&

T
2

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t
F

u
n

d
in

g
to

p
u

rs
u

e
a

n
e

x
te

rn
a

l
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
1

5
0

M
ic

k

B
is

h
o

p

E
&

T
3

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

&
P

o
rt

fo
lio

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

T
o

w
n

D
e

p
o

t
P

ro
je

c
t

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

T
h

is
fu

n
d

in
g

is
to

a
d

d
a

T
o

w
n

D
e

p
o

t
p

ro
je

c
t

m
a

n
a

g
e

r
to

th
e

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t.
7

0
F

ra
n

c
e

s

M
a

rt
in

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

&
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l

1
,0

2
0

1
,6

0
0

2
,4

0
0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

C
O

R
P

1
C

o
u

n
c
il

T
a

x
D

is
c
o

u
n

t
L

o
c
a

l
C

o
u

n
c
il

T
a

x
D

is
c
o

u
n

t
P

ro
v
is

io
n

fo
r

th
e

lo
c
a

l
c
o

u
n

c
il

ta
x

d
is

c
o

u
n

ts
fo

r
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s

c
o

n
ta

in
in

g

p
e

rs
o

n
s

o
v
e

r
6

5
y
e

a
rs

o
f

a
g

e
(1

0
%

)
a

n
d

fo
r

s
p

e
c
ia

l
c
o

n
s
ta

b
le

s
(1

0
0

%
)

1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

T
o

ta
l

1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

G
R

A
N

D
T

O
T

A
L

2
,2

4
8

3
,7

7
8

4
,5

7
8

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
S

Appendix 5



This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c

ie
s

In
c

o
m

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s

T
o

ta
l

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

A
d

u
lt

S
o

c
ia

l
C

a
re

&
H

e
a

lt
h

(1
,8

7
9

)
(1

4
5

)
(1

,1
8

7
)

(3
,2

1
1

)

C
h

ild
re

n
s

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

&
L

e
a

rn
in

g
(3

8
0

)
(1

7
5

)
(2

,1
5

4
)

(2
,7

0
9

)

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t
&

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

(7
9

9
)

(1
7

0
)

(6
8

2
)

(1
,6

5
1

)

H
o

u
s
in

g
(4

0
)

(2
5

)
(1

7
3

)
(2

3
8

)

L
e

a
d

e
r'
s

P
o

rt
fo

lio
(4

8
2

)
0

(2
2

0
)

(7
0

2
)

L
e

is
u

re
C

u
lt
u

re
&

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

(6
2

4
)

(3
0

)
(6

3
)

(7
1

7
)

L
o

c
a

l
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
&

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

(2
9

4
)

(2
0

)
(7

7
8

)
(1

,0
9

2
)

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

&
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
P

la
n

n
in

g
(1

,0
1

0
)

(1
5

0
)

(5
7

8
)

(1
,7

3
8

)

T
o

ta
l

(5
,5

0
8

)
(7

1
5

)
(5

,8
3

5
)

(1
2

,0
5

8
)

C
o

rp
ro

a
te

S
a

v
in

g
s

(S
e

e
O

v
e

rl
e

a
f)

(5
,8

4
7

)

G
ra

n
d

T
o

ta
l

(1
7

,9
0

5
)

A
d

u
lt

S
o

c
ia

l
C

a
re

&
H

e
a

lt
h

6
.6

0
4

.0
0

1
0

.6
0

C
h

ild
re

n
s

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

&
L

e
a

rn
in

g
8

7
.3

8
3

.0
0

9
0

.3
8

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t
&

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

2
8

.0
0

3
.5

0
3

1
.5

0

H
o

u
s
in

g
6

.0
0

0
.5

0
6

.5
0

L
e

a
d

e
r'
s

P
o

rt
fo

lio
2

.0
0

4
.0

0
6

.0
0

L
e

is
u

re
C

u
lt
u

re
&

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

1
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
1

0
.0

0

L
o

c
a

l
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
&

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

1
0

.5
0

6
.3

0
1

6
.8

0

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

&
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
P

la
n

n
in

g
2

5
.3

0
8

.0
0

3
3

.3
0

T
o

ta
l

1
7

5
.7

8
2

9
.3

0
2

0
5

.0
8

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E

2
0

1
1

/1
2

IM
P

A
C

T
O

F
P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

O
N

S
T

A
F

F
IN

G

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E
V

a
c

a
n

t
F

T
E

T
o

ta
l

Appendix 6



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

2
0

1
4

/1
5

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

T
e

rm
s

&
C

o
n

d
it
io

n
s

C
a

r
A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

s
(5

0
0

)
(5

0
0

)
(5

0
0

)
(5

0
0

)

N
o

in
c
re

m
e

n
ts

(1
,5

0
0

)
(3

,0
0

0
)

(3
,0

0
0

)
(3

,0
0

0
)

P
a

y
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
P

a
c
k
a

g
e

A
ll

G
ra

d
e

s
(3

,0
0

0
)

(3
,0

0
0

)
(3

,0
0

0
)

(3
,0

0
0

)

L
e

a
s
e

d
C

a
rs

(7
0

)
(7

0
)

(7
0

)

M
a

rk
e

t
S

u
p

p
le

m
e

n
ts

(4
7

)
(4

7
)

(4
7

)
(4

7
)

S
u

b
to

ta
l

(5
,0

4
7

)
(6

,6
1

7
)

(6
,6

1
7

)
(6

,6
1

7
)

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t
P

o
s
ts

(8
0

0
)

(1
,5

0
0

)
(1

,5
0

0
)

(1
,5

0
0

)

S
u

b
to

ta
l

(8
0

0
)

(1
,5

0
0

)
(1

,5
0

0
)

(1
,5

0
0

)

T
o

ta
l

(5
,8

4
7

)
(8

,1
1

7
)

(8
,1

1
7

)
(8

,1
1

7
)

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
S

A
V

IN
G

S



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

A
d

u
lt

S
o

c
ia

l
C

a
re

&
H

e
a

lt
h

-
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s

A
S

C
H

1
A

c
ro

s
s

P
o

rt
fo

lio
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s

S
a

v
in

g
to

b
e

m
a

d
e

th
ro

u
g

h
b

u
ild

in
g

in
a

n
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y

ta
rg

e
t

w
it
h

in

th
e

1
1

/1
2

in
fl
a

ti
o

n
in

c
re

a
s
e

to
a

ll
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

o
f

b
o

th
c
a

re
a

n
d

a
d

v
ic

e

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

D
e

p
e

n
d

a
n

t
o

n
th

e
c
a

re
ty

p
e

th
e

le
v
e

l
o

f
s
a

v
in

g
c
o

u
ld

b
e

b
e

tw
e

e
n

1
%

a
n

d
2

.5
%

.
T

h
is

a
ls

o
in

c
lu

d
e

s
s
a

v
in

g
s

fr
o

m
th

e
L

D

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t

fo
r

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
c
a

re
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
fr

o
m

th
e

2
0

1
0

/1
1

ta
rg

e
t.

(5
6

5
)

(5
6

5
)

(5
6

5
)

S
te

p
h

a
n

ie

R
a

m
s
e

y

A
S

C
H

2
A

d
u

lt
D

is
a

b
ili

ty
C

a
re

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

S
e

t
u

p
a

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
h

e
a

lt
h

a
n

d

s
o

c
ia

l
c
a

re
p

ro
v
is

io
n

,
(V

ir
tu

a
l
W

a
rd

)

to
p

ro
v
id

e
c
ri

s
is

s
u

p
p

o
rt

to
p

e
o

p
le

w
h

o
w

o
u

ld
o

th
e

rw
is

e
re

q
u

ir
e

h
o

s
p

it
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
.

It
is

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
th

a
t

th
e

re
w

ill
b

e
a

s
p

e
c
tr

u
m

fr
o

m
c
o

s
t

n
e

u
tr

a
l
to

a
s

m
u

c
h

a
s

2
%

a
ft

e
r

a
3

y
e

a
r

c
y
c
le

o
f

c
lie

n
t

tu
rn

o
v
e

r
if

it
is

fo
u

n
d

th
a

t

s
u

c
h

a
n

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

re
d

u
c
e

s
th

e
n

e
e

d
fo

r
lo

n
g

te
rm

c
a

re
.

A
n

y

s
a

v
in

g
is

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t
o

n
N

H
S

p
a

rt
n

e
r

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s

a
n

d
th

e
b

e
s
t

p
o

s
it
io

n
is

th
a

t
w

e
w

ill
s
h

a
re

s
a

v
in

g
s

th
a

t
re

s
u

lt
.

(1
0

0
)

(1
5

0
)

(2
0

0
)

J
a

n
e

B
re

n
to

r

A
S

C
H

3
C

it
y

C
a

re

C
h

a
n

g
e

In
H

o
u

s
e

d
o

m
ic

ili
a

ry

p
ro

v
is

io
n

to
c
re

a
te

s
h

o
rt

te
rm

e
n

a
b

lin
g

a
n

d
c
ri

s
is

s
u

p
p

o
rt

T
ra

n
s
fe

r
a

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
o

f
c
u

rr
e

n
t

in
h

o
u

s
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

to
th

e

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t

s
e

c
to

r
a

t
le

s
s

c
o

s
t,

p
lu

s
fu

rt
h

e
r

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s

in
c
lie

n
ts

lo
n

g
te

rm
c
a

re
n

e
e

d
s

fr
o

m
p

ro
v
id

in
g

in
it
ia

l
e

n
a

b
lin

g
s
u

p
p

o
rt

.
T

h
is

re
fl
e

c
ts

th
e

in
c
re

a
s
e

fr
o

m
a

s
a

v
in

g
a

g
re

e
d

in
a

p
re

v
io

u
s

b
u

d
g

e
t

s
e

tt
in

g
p

ro
c
e

s
s
.

(1
1

4
)

(2
2

9
)

(2
2

9
)

J
a

n
e

B
re

n
to

r

A
S

C
H

4

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

&

P
o

rt
fo

lio

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

R
e

v
ie

w
o

f
b

u
s
in

e
s
s

s
u

p
p

o
rt

fo
r

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

s
u

p
p

o
rt

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
s

In
c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
w

it
h

a
re

v
ie

w
o

f
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
P

o
lic

y
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
s

a
n

d
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

o
f

S
C

C
/S

C
P

C
T

re
c
o

n
fi
g

u
ra

ti
o

n
,

s
e

e
k

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
in

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

o
f

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

s
u

p
p

o
rt

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
s
.

(5
0

)
(5

0
)

(5
0

)
2

.0
0

P
e

n
n

y

F
u

rn
e

s
s
-

S
m

it
h

A
S

C
H

5
U

n
it
s

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
re

v
ie

w

F
u

ll
y
e

a
r

s
a

v
in

g
o

f
p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

a
g

re
e

d
h

o
m

e
c
lo

s
u

re
s
.

T
h

is
re

fl
e

c
ts

th
e

in
c
re

a
s
e

fr
o

m
a

s
a

v
in

g
a

g
re

e
d

in
a

p
re

v
io

u
s

b
u

d
g

e
t

s
e

tt
in

g

p
ro

c
e

s
s
.

(1
0

0
)

(1
0

0
)

(1
0

0
)

J
a

n
e

B
re

n
to

r

A
S

C
H

6

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
&

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry

C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

R
e

v
ie

w
o

f
c
o

n
tr

a
c
te

d
D

a
y

C
a

re

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

A
re

v
ie

w
o

f
q

u
a

n
ti
ty

o
f

D
a

y
C

a
re

c
o

n
tr

a
c
te

d
to

re
fl
e

c
t

F
a

ir
A

c
c
e

s
s

to
C

a
re

a
c
ti
v
it
y

a
n

d
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
ta

k
e

u
p

o
f

S
e

lf
D

ir
e

c
te

d
S

u
p

p
o

rt
.

(4
0

0
)

(4
0

0
)

(4
0

0
)

S
te

p
h

a
n

ie

R
a

m
s
e

y

A
S

C
H

7
B

u
s
in

e
s
s

P
o

lic
y

S
ta

ff
in

g

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

P
o

lic
y

&
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

te
a

m
.

C
u

t
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
a

n
d

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
to

A
d

u
lt
s

w
h

ils
t

m
a

in
ta

in
in

g
s
h

a
re

d
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
s
y
s
te

m
.

(5
0

)
(5

0
)

(5
0

)
2

.0
0

P
e

n
n

y

F
u

rn
e

s
s
-

S
m

it
h

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

A
S

C
H

8

A
d

u
lt

S
o

c
ia

l
C

a
re

L
e

a
rn

in
g

a
n

d

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

R
e

m
o

v
e

th
e

h
is

to
ri

c
a

l
u

n
d

e
r

s
p

e
n

d

fr
o

m
th

e
A

d
u

lt
S

o
c
ia

l
C

a
re

tr
a

in
in

g

b
u

d
g

e
t.

A
re

v
ie

w
o

f
th

e
tr

a
in

in
g

b
u

d
g

e
t

is
to

b
e

c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
d

u
ri

n
g

1
1

/1
2

.

W
h

ils
t

th
is

re
v
ie

w
is

o
n

g
o

in
g

it
is

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
th

a
t

th
e

s
a

v
in

g

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
in

1
0

/1
1

w
ill

re
c
u

r.
U

p
o

n
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
re

v
ie

w
th

e

le
v
e

l
o

f
fu

tu
re

s
a

v
in

g
s

w
ill

b
e

s
c
o

p
e

d
.

(1
0

0
)

P
e

n
n

y

F
u

rn
e

s
s
-

S
m

it
h

A
S

C
H

9
P

re
s
e

rv
e

d
R

ig
h

ts

S
C

C
m

a
y

g
e

t
a

la
rg

e
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

o
f

th
e

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l
to

ta
l
o

f
g

ra
n

t
fo

r

P
re

s
e

rv
e

d
R

ig
h

ts

A
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t

o
u

tl
in

in
g

tw
o

m
e

th
o

d
s

o
f

c
a

lc
u

la
ti
o

n
fo

r

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
n

g
th

e
g

ra
n

t
b

o
th

p
ro

p
o

s
e

a
n

in
c
re

a
s
e

o
f

£
4

0
0

,0
0

0
fo

r

S
C

C
.

N
o

th
in

g
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

re
a

c
tu

a
l
a

m
o

u
n

ts
.

(4
0

0
)

(4
0

0
)

(4
0

0
)

P
e

n
n

y

F
u

rn
e

s
s
-

S
m

it
h

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(1

,8
7

9
)

(1
,9

4
4

)
(1

,9
9

4
)

0
.0

0
4

.0
0

A
d

u
lt

S
o

c
ia

l
C

a
re

&
H

e
a

lt
h

-
In

c
o

m
e

A
S

C
H

1
0

M
e

a
ls

o
n

W
h

e
e

ls
R

e
v
ie

w
o

f
M

e
a

ls
o

n
W

h
e

e
ls

s
e

rv
ic

e
.

R
e

v
ie

w
o

p
ti
o

n
s

fo
r

th
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

m
e

a
ls

s
e

rv
ic

e
in

c
lu

d
in

g
m

a
k
in

g

th
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

s
e

lf
fu

n
d

in
g

a
n

d
/o

r
tr

a
n

s
fe

r
to

C
it
y

C
a

te
ri

n
g

.
T

h
e

re
w

ill

b
e

a
n

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
th

e
c
h

a
rg

e
p

e
r

m
e

a
l.

T
h

e
re

a
re

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y

6
0

0

s
e

rv
ic

e
u

s
e

rs
th

is
w

ill
a

ff
e

c
t.

(4
5

)
(4

5
)

(4
5

)
J
a

n
e

B
re

n
to

r

A
S

C
H

1
1

C
lie

n
t

In
c
o

m
e

In
c
re

a
s
e

in
in

c
o

m
e

fr
o

m
c
lie

n
ts

d
u

e

to
in

c
re

a
s
e

in
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

.

T
h

is
is

n
o

t
a

n
in

c
re

a
s
e

in
c
h

a
rg

e
s
.

T
h

is
in

c
o

m
e

is
b

a
s
e

d
o

n
a

n

a
s
s
u

m
e

d
in

c
re

a
s
e

in
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

o
f

1
%

.
T

h
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
in

c
re

a
s
e

in

in
c
o

m
e

is
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
th

ro
u

g
h

th
e

n
a

tu
ra

l
in

c
re

a
s
e

in
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

w
h

ic
h

o
c
c
u

rs
a

n
n

u
a

lly
a

n
d

d
o

e
s

n
o

t
re

p
re

s
e

n
t

a
s
h

if
t

in
th

e
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
o

f

c
h

a
rg

in
g

c
ri

te
ri

a
.

P
le

a
s
e

n
o

te
m

o
b

ili
ty

e
le

m
e

n
t

o
f

D
L

A
w

h
ic

h
h

a
s

ju
s
t

b
e

e
n

w
it
h

d
ra

w
n

fo
r

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
c
lie

n
ts

h
a

s
n

e
v
e

r
b

e
e

n
a

c
h

a
rg

e
a

b
le

b
e

n
e

fi
t

a
n

d
s
o

d
o

e
s

n
o

t
re

p
re

s
e

n
t

a
lo

s
s

o
f

in
c
o

m
e

.

(1
0

0
)

(1
0

0
)

(1
0

0
)

P
e

n
n

y

F
u

rn
e

s
s
-

S
m

it
h

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(1

4
5

)
(1

4
5

)
(1

4
5

)
0

.0
0

0
.0

0



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

A
d

u
lt

S
o

c
ia

l
C

a
re

&
H

e
a

lt
h

-
S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s

A
S

C
H

1
2

A
c
ro

s
s

P
o

rt
fo

lio

R
e

v
ie

w
th

e
le

v
e

l
o

f
fu

n
d

in
g

fo
r

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s

w
h

e
re

s
e

rv
ic

e
is

n
o

n
s
ta

tu
to

ry
.

A
ll

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

s
e

c
to

r
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

w
h

ic
h

a
re

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
a

s
p

ro
v
id

in
g

n
o

n

s
ta

tu
to

ry
p

re
v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

a
re

in
c
lu

d
e

d
a

n
d

w
ill

b
e

e
n

d
e

d
.

T
h

e

lo
s
s

o
f

th
e

s
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

w
ill

im
p

a
c
t

o
n

la
te

r
c
o

s
ts

w
h

e
re

e
a

rl
y

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
w

o
u

ld
h

a
v
e

re
d

u
c
e

d
s
e

rv
ic

e
n

e
e

d
.

S
u

c
h

c
u

ts
m

a
y

re
s
u

lt
in

s
o

m
e

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s

b
e

c
o

m
in

g
u

n
v
ia

b
le

w
h

ic
h

w
ill

im
p

a
c
t

o
n

th
e

ir
u

s
e

b
y

o
th

e
r

a
re

a
s

o
f

th
e

C
o

u
n

c
il

a
n

d
p

a
rt

n
e

r

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
.

(7
7

6
)

(7
7

6
)

(7
7

6
)

S
te

p
h

a
n

ie

R
a

m
s
e

y

A
S

C
H

1
3

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
e

a
s
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

L
a

te
r

Y
e

a
rs

S
e

rv
ic

e
a

n
d

s
u

p
p

o
rt

to
L

a
te

r
Y

e
a

rs

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

T
h

e
re

is
n

o
s
ta

tu
to

ry
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t

fo
r

th
is

w
o

rk
.

T
h

is
s
a

v
in

g
w

ill

im
p

a
c
t

1
0

0
%

o
n

th
e

C
o

u
n

c
ils

L
a

te
r

Y
e

a
rs

te
a

m
a

n
d

th
e

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l

s
u

p
p

o
rt

p
ro

v
id

e
d

to
th

e
T

h
ir

d
A

g
e

C
e

n
tr

e
in

c
lu

d
in

g
th

e
S

u
h

a
n

a

P
ro

je
c
t.

(2
3

9
)

(2
3

9
)

(2
3

9
)

5
.0

0

P
e

n
n

y

F
u

rn
e

s
s
-

S
m

it
h

A
S

C
H

1
4

H
e

a
lt
h

&
W

e
ll-

B
e

in
g

5
0

%
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

th
e

H
e

a
lt
h

y

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
T

e
a

m

T
h

is
te

a
m

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y

p
ro

v
id

e
s

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

b
a

s
e

d
h

e
a

lt
h

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
.

C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y

th
e

re
is

n
o

s
ta

tu
to

ry
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t

fo
r

th
is

w
o

rk
.

T
h

is
w

ill
le

a
d

to
re

d
u

n
d

a
n

c
ie

s
.

T
h

e
re

m
a

in
in

g
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
w

ill
b

e
re

v
ie

w
e

d
in

lig
h

t
o

f
th

e
P

u
b

lic
H

e
a

lt
h

re
v
ie

w
a

n
d

th
e

W
h

it
e

P
a

p
e

r.

(1
1

0
)

(1
1

0
)

(1
1

0
)

1
.6

0

P
e

n
n

y

F
u

rn
e

s
s
-

S
m

it
h

A
S

C
H

1
5

A
c
ro

s
s

P
o

rt
fo

lio

8
%

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

a
c
ti
v
it
y

fo
r

a
re

a
s

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

fu
n

d
e

d
b

y
g

ra
n

t,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
C

a
re

rs
g

ra
n

t,
L

e
a

rn
in

g

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

F
u

n
d

a
n

d

M
e

n
ta

l
C

a
p

a
c
it
y

A
c
t.

In
p

a
rt

th
is

le
v
e

l
o

f
s
a

v
in

g
is

c
o

m
m

e
n

s
u

ra
te

w
it
h

th
e

u
n

d
e

r
s
p

e
n

d

fo
re

c
a

s
t

fo
r

1
0

/1
1

,
a

n
d

in
p

a
rt

th
e

a
c
ti
v
it
y

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
to

a
c
h

ie
v
e

th
is

s
a

v
in

g
in

1
1

/1
2

h
a

s
a

lr
e

a
d

y
b

e
e

n
p

la
n

n
e

d
.

(6
2

)
(6

2
)

(6
2

)

P
e

n
n

y

F
u

rn
e

s
s
-

S
m

it
h

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(1

,1
8

7
)

(1
,1

8
7

)
(1

,1
8

7
)

6
.6

0
0

.0
0

A
d

u
lt

S
o

c
ia

l
C

a
re

&
H

e
a

lt
h

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l

(3
,2

1
1

)
(3

,2
7

6
)

(3
,3

2
6

)
6

.6
0

4
.0

0



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

C
h

il
d

re
n

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

&
L

e
a

rn
in

g
-

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c

ie
s

C
S

L
1

B
u

s
in

e
s
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

B
u

s
in

e
s
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

C
h

ild
re

n
's

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

&
L

e
a

rn
in

g

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

R
e

d
u

c
in

g
le

v
e

l
o

f
B

u
s
in

e
s
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
lin

e
w

it
h

s
e

rv
ic

e
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
.

T
h

e
re

s
h

o
u

ld
b

e
n

o
im

p
a

c
t

o
n

s
e

rv
ic

e
d

e
liv

e
ry

(7
5

)
(1

5
0

)
(1

5
0

)
6

.0
0

A
lis

o
n

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r

C
S

L
2

P
la

n
n

in
g

&

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

D
a

ta
a

n
d

IC
T

te
a

m
s

R
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
a

n
d

m
e

rg
e

r
o

f
th

e
ro

le
s

a
n

d
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
w

it
h

in
th

e

te
a

m
s

w
h

ic
h

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

d
a

ta
a

n
a

ly
s
is

a
n

d
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

a
n

d
IC

T
s
u

p
p

o
rt

to
a

lig
n

w
it
h

th
e

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l
w

it
h

d
ra

w
a

l
o

f

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

re
p

o
rt

in
g

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
.

T
h

e
re

s
h

o
u

ld
b

e
n

o
im

p
a

c
t

o
n

s
e

rv
ic

e

(5
0

)
(1

0
0

)
(1

0
0

)
3

.0
0

A
lis

o
n

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r

C
S

L
3

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

S
ta

ff
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

c
o

s
ts

S
a

v
in

g
s

th
ro

u
g

h
s
tr

ic
te

r
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

s
ta

ff
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

p
o

lic
y

a
n

d
th

ro
u

g
h

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s

in
s
ta

ff
a

c
ro

s
s

th
e

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

le
a

d
in

g
to

fe
w

e
r

c
la

im
s

b
e

in
g

m
a

d
e

(3
5

)
(3

5
)

(3
5

)
A

lis
o

n

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r

C
S

L
4

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
u

p
p

lie
s

a
n

d
s
e

rv
ic

e
s

b
u

d
g

e
ts

S
a

v
in

g
s

th
ro

u
g

h
a

ra
ti
o

n
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
in

s
u

p
p

lie
s

&
s
e

rv
ic

e
s

b
u

d
g

e
ts

(3
5

)
(3

5
)

(5
5

)
A

lis
o

n

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r

C
S

L
5

C
h

ild
re

n
's

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

E
s
ta

te

R
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
o

f
In

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re

D
iv

is
io

n

A
m

a
lg

a
m

a
ti
o

n
o

f
fo

u
r

te
a

m
s

w
it
h

in
th

e
In

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
D

iv
is

io
n

to

c
re

a
te

a
n

e
w

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
to

b
e

s
t

s
u

p
p

o
rt

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

o
f

th
e

C
h

ild
re

n
's

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

e
s
ta

te
,

in
th

e
lig

h
t

o
f

th
e

c
a

n
c
e

lla
ti
o

n
o

f
B

S
F

a
n

d
th

e
s
c
h

o
o

l
e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
re

q
u

ir
e

d
d

u
e

to
th

e
in

c
re

a
s
e

in
s
c
h

o
o

l

a
g

e
d

c
h

ild
re

n
fo

re
c
a

s
t

o
v
e

r
th

e
n

e
x
t

te
n

y
e

a
rs

(1
5

0
)

(1
5

0
)

(1
5

0
)

2
.2

0
1

.0
0

K
a

rl

L
im

b
e

rt

C
S

L
6

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
&

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
in

s
e

rv
ic

e
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

in
lin

e
w

it
h

m
o

v
e

to
tw

o
fr

o
m

th
re

e

lo
c
a

lit
ie

s

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
to

tw
o

lo
c
a

lit
y

te
a

m
s

in
s
te

a
d

o
f

th
re

e
w

it
h

c
o

rr
e

s
p

o
n

d
in

g

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s

in
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
a

n
d

o
v
e

rh
e

a
d

s
.

(3
5

)
(3

5
)

(3
5

)
1

.0
0

A
lis

o
n

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(3

8
0

)
(5

0
5

)
(5

2
5

)
1

2
.2

0
1

.0
0

C
h

il
d

re
n

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

&
L

e
a

rn
in

g
-

In
c

o
m

e

C
S

L
7

B
e

h
a

v
io

u
r

S
u

p
p

o
rt

S
c
h

o
o

l
p

u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r

s
u

p
p

o
rt

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

S
c
h

o
o

l
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r

S
u

p
p

o
rt

T
e

a
m

to
b

e
fu

n
d

e
d

fr
o

m
c
h

a
rg

e
s

fo
r

w
o

rk
d

o
n

e
w

it
h

c
h

ild
re

n
o

n
s
c
h

o
o

ls
'b

e
h

a
lf
.

S
c
h

o
o

ls
w

ill
h

a
v
e

a

c
h

o
ic

e
a

b
o

u
t

w
h

e
th

e
r

to
b

u
y

th
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
.

L
o

w
ta

k
e

u
p

w
o

u
ld

re
s
u

lt

in
re

d
u

n
d

a
n

c
ie

s
in

th
e

te
a

m
.

(1
7

5
)

(3
5

0
)

(3
5

0
)

1
1

.1
9

A
lis

o
n

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(1

7
5

)
(3

5
0

)
(3

5
0

)
1

1
.1

9
0

.0
0



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

C
h

il
d

re
n

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

&
L

e
a

rn
in

g
-

S
e

rv
ic

e
R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s

C
S

L
8

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

te
a

m
a

n
d

s
ta

ff
tr

a
in

in
g

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s

in
c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

s
a

n
d

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l
tr

a
in

in
g

in
lin

e
w

it
h

a
g

re
e

d
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
a

n
d

in
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

to
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

h
e

a
d

c
o

u
n

t.
(4

0
)

(8
0

)
(8

0
)

A
lis

o
n

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r

C
S

L
9

Y
o

u
th

S
u

p
p

o
rt

S
e

rv
ic

e
Y

o
u

th
S

u
p

p
o

rt

D
a

ta
a

n
d

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

-l
e

d
ta

rg
e

ti
n

g
o

f
y
o

u
th

re
s
o

u
rc

e
to

a
llo

w
a

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
o

f
2

5
%

in
th

e
n

u
m

b
e

rs
o

f
P

e
rs

o
n

a
l
A

d
v
is

o
rs

a
n

d
Y

o
u

th

S
u

p
p

o
rt

W
o

rk
e

rs
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y

p
ro

v
id

in
g

in
fo

rm
a

l
y
o

u
th

w
o

rk
,

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
,

a
d

v
ic

e
a

n
d

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

,
a

n
d

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
o

f
s
e

rv
ic

e
w

h
e

re

u
n

d
e

ru
s
e

d
o

r
u

n
u

s
e

d
.

(5
3

0
)

(5
3

0
)

(5
3

0
)

1
7

.0
0

A
lis

o
n

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r

C
S

L
1

0
P

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
&

In
c
lu

s
io

n

R
e

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
o

f
s
e

rv
ic

e
s

to

c
h

ild
re

n
,

y
o

u
n

g
p

e
o

p
le

a
n

d
fa

m
ili

e
s

fr
o

m
a

c
ro

s
s

th
e

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
a

n
d

re
a

lig
n

m
e

n
t

in
th

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
lo

c
a

lit
y

te
a

m
s

fr
o

m

th
re

e
to

tw
o

p
lu

s
o

th
e

r
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

T
h

is
w

ill
m

in
im

is
e

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

o
v
e

rh
e

a
d

s
a

n
d

a
d

m
in

a
s

a
re

s
u

lt
o

f
m

o
v
in

g
fr

o
m

th
re

e
to

tw
o

lo
c
a

lit
ie

s
a

n
d

m
e

rg
in

g
o

th
e

r
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
s

s
u

c
h

a
s

tr
a

in
in

g
w

it
h

th
e

b
ro

a
d

e
r

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

b
u

d
g

e
t.

A
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

r
p

o
s
ts

in
c
lu

d
in

g
Y

o
u

th
S

u
p

p
o

rt
W

o
rk

e
rs

,
F

a
m

ily
S

u
p

p
o

rt
W

o
rk

e
rs

,

P
e

rs
o

n
a

l
A

d
v
is

o
rs

a
n

d
S

p
e

c
ia

lis
t

S
u

p
p

o
rt

w
o

rk
e

rs
.

(7
0

3
)

(1
,7

8
5

)
(2

,1
3

5
)

3
4

.4
0

1
.0

0
A

lis
o

n

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r

C
S

L
1

1
C

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

P
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
s
e

rv
ic

e
s

p
ro

v
id

e
d

b
y

th
e

th
ir

d
a

n
d

p
ri

v
a

te
s
e

c
to

r

R
e

a
lig

n
s
e

rv
ic

e
p

ro
v
is

io
n

in
to

tw
o

m
u

lt
i-

d
is

c
ip

lin
a

ry
lo

c
a

lit
y

te
a

m
s

a
s

o
p

p
o

s
e

d
to

th
re

e
,

m
in

im
is

in
g

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

a
n

d

s
u

p
p

lie
s
,

a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
a

n
d

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

In
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l

th
e

re
w

ill
b

e
a

m
in

im
a

l
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

r
p

o
s
ts

in
c
lu

d
in

g

Y
o

u
th

S
u

p
p

o
rt

W
o

rk
e

rs
,

F
a

m
ily

S
u

p
p

o
rt

W
o

rk
e

rs
,

S
p

e
c
ia

lis
t

S
u

p
p

o
rt

w
o

rk
e

rs
a

n
d

In
c
lu

s
io

n
w

o
rk

e
rs

.

(6
0

0
)

(1
,2

0
0

)
(1

,2
0

0
)

A
lis

o
n

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r

C
S

L
1

2
M

u
s
ic

S
e

rv
ic

e

R
e

v
is

io
n

o
f

fu
n

d
in

g
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts

fo
r

c
it
y

o
rc

h
e

s
tr

a
s
,

c
h

o
ir

s
a

n
d

b
a

n
d

s
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y

ru
n

b
y

th
e

M
u

s
ic

S
e

rv
ic

e

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

s
ta

ff
in

g
a

n
d

in
s
e

rv
ic

e
s

a
n

d
s
u

p
p

lie
s
.

T
h

e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t
o

f
a

S
o

u
th

a
m

p
to

n
M

u
s
ic

T
ru

s
t

le
d

b
y

a
n

e
x
te

rn
a

l

p
a

rt
n

e
r

is
a

ls
o

b
e

in
g

e
x
p

lo
re

d
in

d
e

ta
il.

(1
6

0
)

(2
8

2
)

(2
8

2
)

4
.3

4
1

.0
0

P
a

u
l

N
u

g
e

n
t

C
S

L
1

3
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

fo
r

s
c
h

o
o

ls
fr

o
m

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
D

iv
is

io
n

W
it
h

d
ra

w
a

l
o

f
fr

e
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

to
s
c
h

o
o

ls
fo

r
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t,

s
in

g
le

is
s
u

e

s
ta

ff
.

D
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s

w
ill

ta
k
e

p
la

c
e

w
it
h

S
c
h

o
o

ls
F

o
ru

m
o

n
p

o
s
s
ib

le

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

s
h

o
u

ld
s
c
h

o
o

ls
w

is
h

th
e

s
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

to

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

(6
5

)
(1

3
0

)
(1

3
0

)
4

.6
5

P
a

u
l

N
u

g
e

n
t



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

C
S

L
1

4
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
in

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
te

a
m

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
te

a
m

in
lin

e
w

it
h

s
tr

e
a

m
lin

in
g

o
f

b
u

s
in

e
s
s

n
e

e
d

(5
6

)
(1

1
2

)
(1

1
2

)
3

.6
0

A
lis

o
n

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(2

,1
5

4
)

(4
,1

1
9

)
(4

,4
6

9
)

6
3

.9
9

2
.0

0

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
&

L
e

a
rn

in
g

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l

(2
,7

0
9

)
(4

,9
7

4
)

(5
,3

4
4

)
8

7
.3

8
3

.0
0



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

&
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

-
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s

E
&

T
1

B
e

re
a

v
e

m
e

n
t

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

M
o

re
e

ff
ic

ie
n

t
u

s
e

o
f

g
a

s
in

th
e

c
re

m
a

to
ri

u
m

th
ro

u
g

h
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
in

th
e

o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
re

g
im

e
a

n
d

n
e

w

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

in
fu

tu
re

y
e

a
rs

C
h

a
n

g
in

g
w

o
rk

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
w

ill
d

e
liv

e
r

s
a

v
in

g
s
.

(3
0

)
(3

0
)

(3
0

)
L

iz
M

a
rs

h

E
&

T
2

E
&

T
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

&

P
o

rt
fo

lio

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

c
e

n
tr

a
l
c
o

s
ts

b
y

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
s
ta

ff
ti
m

e
s
p

e
n

t
o

n

p
ro

je
c
ts

.

M
o

v
in

g
to

w
a

rd
s

s
ta

ff
s
e

lf
fu

n
d

in
g

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

b
y

s
e

lli
n

g
s
e

rv
ic

e
s

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

a
n

d
re

d
u

c
in

g
s
p

e
n

d
in

g
o

n
e

x
te

rn
a

l

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
ts

/s
u

p
p

o
rt

.
L

e
s
s

re
s
o

u
rc

e
a

v
a

ila
b

le
to

d
e

a
l
w

it
h

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

m
a

tt
e

rs
.

(2
0

)
(4

0
)

(6
0

)
F

ra
n

c
e

s

M
a

rt
in

E
&

T
3

E
&

T
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

&

P
o

rt
fo

lio

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

th
e

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

u
s
e

o
f

n
a

tu
ra

l
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

(e
n

e
rg

y
/w

a
s
te

/t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

)

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
o

f
n

e
w

p
o

lic
e

s
a

n
d

te
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
to

re
d

u
c
e

e
n

e
rg

y
u

s
a

g
e

a
n

d
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
to

w
a

rd
s

th
e

c
o

u
n

c
il'

s
c
a

rb
o

n
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
ta

rg
e

t.

S
m

a
rt

e
r

u
s
e

o
f

w
a

te
r

a
n

d
m

a
te

ri
a

ls
,

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
re

c
y
c
lin

g
w

it
h

lo
w

e
r

q
u

a
n

ti
ti
e

s
o

f
w

a
s
te

s
e

n
t

fo
r

d
is

p
o

s
a

l.
M

o
re

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t

u
s
e

o
f

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

p
lu

s
im

p
ro

v
e

d
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
o

f
fu

e
l.

(1
4

0
)

(3
5

0
)

(3
5

0
)

F
ra

n
c
e

s

M
a

rt
in

E
&

T
4

E
&

T
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

&

P
o

rt
fo

lio

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

S
ta

ff
o

p
ti
n

g
fo

r
re

d
u

c
e

d
w

o
rk

in
g

h
o

u
rs

w
it
h

c
o

rr
e

s
p

o
n

d
in

g

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s

in
c
o

s
ts

.

(4
0

)
(7

5
)

(7
5

)
F

ra
n

c
e

s

M
a

rt
in

E
&

T
5

E
&

T
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

&

P
o

rt
fo

lio

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

th
e

d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
u

p
p

lie
s

a
n

d
s
e

rv
ic

e
s

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
.

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
le

a
rn

in
g

a
n

d
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
fo

r
s
ta

ff
a

n
d

th
e

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
o

f
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
ts

(1
3

0
)

(1
3

0
)

(1
1

0
)

F
ra

n
c
e

s

M
a

rt
in

E
&

T
6

F
le

e
t

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

o
f

a
fl
e

e
t

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

R
e

d
u

c
e

o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
c
o

s
ts

,
in

c
re

a
s
e

in
c
o

m
e

a
n

d
fl
e

x
ib

ili
ty

(1
0

)
(1

0
)

(1
0

)
A

n
d

re
w

T
ra

y
e

r

E
&

T
7

It
c
h

e
n

B
ri

d
g

e

A
u

to
m

a
ti
o

n
o

f
to

ll
c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

to
re

d
u

c
e

o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g

c
o

s
ts

.

R
e

q
u

ir
e

s
th

e
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
o

f
a

s
tu

d
y
,

s
e

le
c
ti
o

n
o

f
te

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
,

a
n

d

s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
th

e
c
a

p
it
a

l
fu

n
d

in
g

fo
r

th
e

a
u

to
m

a
ti
c

to
ll

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s
.

(7
0

)
(2

3
8

)
(2

3
8

)
1

2
.0

0
M

ic
k

B
is

h
o

p

E
&

T
8

O
ff

S
tr

e
e

t
C

a
r

P
a

rk
in

g

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
d

e
ri

v
e

d
fr

o
m

th
e

m
o

d
e

rn
is

a
ti
o

n
o

f
P

a
rk

in
g

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
s
e

rv
ic

e
re

v
ie

w
a

n
d

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
o

f
s
e

rv
ic

e

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

,
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
o

f
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l
in

c
o

m
e

a
n

d
re

a
lis

in
g

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
th

ro
u

g
h

th
e

in
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
o

f
n

e
w

te
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
.

(1
4

0
)

(3
7

0
)

(3
7

0
)

8
.0

0
M

ic
k

B
is

h
o

p



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

E
&

T
9

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

S
tr

a
te

g
y

&

R
o

a
d

S
a

fe
ty

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

th
e

b
u

d
g

e
t

to
a

lig
n

w
it
h

le
v
e

l
o

f
fi
lle

d
c
ro

s
s
in

g
p

a
tr

o
l

p
o

s
ts

T
h

is
s
e

rv
ic

e
h

a
s

a
h

ig
h

v
a

c
a

n
c
y

ra
te

a
n

d
h

ig
h

tu
rn

o
v
e

r
w

h
ic

h
c
a

n

b
e

m
o

re
a

c
c
u

ra
te

ly
re

fl
e

c
te

d
in

th
e

fu
tu

re
b

u
d

g
e

t
a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
,

w
it
h

o
u

t
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t
im

p
a

c
t

o
n

s
e

rv
ic

e
d

e
liv

e
ry

.

(2
5

)
(2

5
)

(2
5

)
P

a
u

l

N
ic

h
o

ls

E
&

T
1

0
W

a
s
te

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
in

n
o

n
c
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l

o
v
e

rt
im

e
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

to
w

o
rk

in
g

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
a

c
ro

s
s

a
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
re

fu
s
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

(1
5

)
(1

5
)

(1
5

)
A

n
d

re
w

T
ra

y
e

r

E
&

T
1

1
W

a
s
te

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
R

e
d

u
c
e

d
re

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t

o
f

re
fu

s
e

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
c
o

n
ta

in
e

rs

L
o

w
e

r
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

re
g

im
e

re
q

u
ir

in
g

a
n

a
c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

o
f

th
e

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
u

s
e

o
f

s
lig

h
tl
y

d
a

m
a

g
e

d
b

u
lk

b
in

s
(1

0
)

(1
0

)
(1

0
)

A
n

d
re

w

T
ra

y
e

r

E
&

T
1

2
W

a
s
te

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
in

th
e

a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

fu
e

l

u
s
e

d
b

y
re

fu
s
e

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
v
e

h
ic

le
s

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
u

s
e

o
f

m
o

d
e

rn
fu

e
l
s
a

v
in

g
te

c
h

n
o

lo
g

ie
s

a
n

d
o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
,

re
d

u
c
e

d
c
a

rb
o

n
fo

o
tp

ri
n

t.
(1

2
)

(2
5

)
(2

5
)

A
n

d
re

w

T
ra

y
e

r

E
&

T
1

3
W

a
s
te

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s

in
s
ic

k
n

e
s
s

a
b

s
e

n
c
e

R
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t

to
fu

rt
h

e
r

im
p

ro
v
e

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
a

n
d

re
tu

rn
to

w
o

rk
in

te
rv

ie
w

s
(1

5
)

(1
5

)
(1

5
)

A
n

d
re

w

T
ra

y
e

r

E
&

T
1

4
W

a
s
te

D
is

p
o

s
a

l

R
e

d
u

c
e

w
a

s
te

to
la

n
d

fi
ll

fr
o

m
th

e

C
iv

ic
A

m
e

n
it
y

S
it
e

th
ro

u
g

h
b

e
tt

e
r

s
e

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
in

to
re

u
s
e

a
n

d
re

c
y
c
lin

g

s
tr

e
a

m
s
.

R
e

q
u

ir
e

s
th

e
in

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
o

f
n

e
w

re
c
y
c
lin

g
a

n
d

re
u

s
e

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s

a
lo

n
g

w
it
h

s
e

e
k
in

g
c
h

e
a

p
e

r
d

is
p

o
s
a

l
o

p
ti
o

n
s

fo
r

m
a

te
ri

a
ls

w
h

ic
h

c
a

n
't

b
e

s
e

p
a

ra
te

d
fo

r
re

c
y
c
lin

g
o

r
re

u
s
e

.

(1
0

0
)

(1
0

0
)

(1
0

0
)

A
n

d
re

w

T
ra

y
e

r

E
&

T
1

5
W

a
s
te

D
is

p
o

s
a

l

J
o

in
t

w
o

rk
in

g
w

it
h

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

to
re

d
u

c
e

th
e

to
n

n
a

g
e

in
w

a
s
te

c
o

lle
c
te

d
b

y
th

e
H

o
u

s
in

g
W

a
s
te

R
e

m
o

v
a

ls
T

e
a

m
fr

o
m

c
o

u
n

c
il

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
fo

r
d

is
p

o
s
a

l

R
e

q
u

ir
e

s
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
a

n
d

th
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
fo

r

re
s
id

e
n

ts
(1

5
)

(1
5

)
(1

5
)

A
n

d
re

w

T
ra

y
e

r

E
&

T
1

6
W

a
s
te

D
is

p
o

s
a

l
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s

in
th

e
W

a
s
te

D
is

p
o

s
a

l

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t

C
o

s
ts

N
o

n
e

(2
7

)
(1

0
7

)
(1

0
7

)
A

n
d

re
w

T
ra

y
e

r

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(7

9
9

)
(1

,5
5

5
)

(1
,5

5
5

)
2

0
.0

0
0

.0
0



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

&
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

-
In

c
o

m
e

E
&

T
1

7
B

e
re

a
v
e

m
e

n
t

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
b

u
ri

a
l
fe

e
s

In
c
re

a
s
e

o
f

6
.6

%
in

b
u

ri
a

l
fe

e
s

w
ill

in
c
re

a
s
e

th
e

c
o

s
t

a
b

o
v
e

th
e

a
v
e

ra
g

e
.

(4
5

)
(4

5
)

(4
5

)
L

iz
M

a
rs

h

E
&

T
1

8
B

e
re

a
v
e

m
e

n
t

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

S
e

lli
n

g
a

g
re

a
te

r
ra

n
g

e
o

f

m
e

m
o

ri
a

ls

D
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t
u

p
o

n
ti
m

e
ly

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

a
n

d
m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

(5
0

)
(7

5
)

(1
0

0
)

L
iz

M
a

rs
h

E
&

T
1

9
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l

H
e

a
lt
h

P
o

rt
H

e
a

lt
h

-
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l
in

c
o

m
e

fl
o

w
in

g
fr

o
m

n
e

w
d

u
ti
e

s

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
in

to
e

x
is

ti
n

g
im

p
o

rt

c
o

n
tr

o
l
s
y
s
te

m
s

(1
0

)
(1

0
)

(1
0

)
L

iz
M

a
rs

h

E
&

T
2

0
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l

H
e

a
lt
h

O
u

t
o

f
H

o
u

rs
S

e
rv

ic
e

-

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

w
it
h

W
in

c
h

e
s
te

r
C

it
y

C
o

u
n

c
il

to
c
a

rr
y

o
u

t
s
h

a
re

d
o

u
t

o
f

h
o

u
rs

s
tr

a
y

d
o

g
s
e

rv
ic

e
.

(1
0

)
(1

0
)

(1
0

)
L

iz
M

a
rs

h

E
&

T
2

1
F

le
e

t
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

In
c
re

a
s
e

ra
n

g
e

o
f

th
ir

d
p

a
rt

y
w

o
rk

,
(1

0
)

(2
0

)
(2

0
)

A
n

d
re

w

T
ra

y
e

r

E
&

T
2

2
W

a
s
te

D
is

p
o

s
a

l
In

c
re

a
s
e

d
c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l
w

a
s
te

re
b

a
te

(4
5

)
(4

5
)

(4
5

)
A

n
d

re
w

T
ra

y
e

r

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(1

7
0

)
(2

0
5

)
(2

3
0

)
0

.0
0

0
.0

0



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

&
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

-
S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s

E
&

T
2

3
B

e
re

a
v
e

m
e

n
t

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

D
e

le
ti
o

n
o

f
c
e

m
e

te
ry

g
a

te
k
e

e
p

e
r

p
o

s
t

T
h

e
lo

s
s

o
f

th
e

g
a

te
k
e

e
p

e
r

c
o

u
ld

le
a

d
to

c
o

m
p

la
in

t
fr

o
m

c
e

m
e

te
ry

u
s
e

rs
if

th
e

re
is

in
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

te
p

a
rk

in
g

.
(1

5
)

(1
5

)
(1

5
)

1
.0

0
L

iz
M

a
rs

h

E
&

T
2

4

E
&

T
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

&

P
o

rt
fo

lio

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

th
e

a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

o
v
e

rt
im

e
w

o
rk

e
d

D
e

la
y
s

to
th

e
d

e
liv

e
ry

o
f

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

a
n

d
th

e
le

v
e

l
o

f
s
e

rv
ic

e
p

ro
v
is

io
n

o
u

ts
id

e
n

o
rm

a
l
w

o
rk

in
g

h
o

u
rs

(4
0

)
(4

0
)

(4
0

)
F

ra
n

c
e

s

M
a

rt
in

E
&

T
2

5
T

ra
v
e

l
a

n
d

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

b
u

s
s
u

b
s
id

ie
s

a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g

th
e

8
/8

A
s
e

rv
ic

e
,

d
ia

l-
a

-r
id

e
,

n
ig

h
t

b
u

s
m

a
rs

h
a

ls
,

th
e

n
o

5
S

u
n

d
a

y

s
e

rv
ic

e
,

s
o

m
e

c
it
y

n
ig

h
t

b
u

s
e

s
a

n
d

th
e

n
o

7
A

s
e

rv
ic

e

S
o

m
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

c
o

u
ld

b
e

w
it
h

d
ra

w
n

b
y

th
e

b
u

s
o

p
e

ra
to

rs
if

th
e

y
w

ill

n
o

t
o

p
e

ra
te

th
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

w
it
h

o
u

t
a

s
u

b
s
id

y
.

T
h

e
c
a

p
a

c
it
y

o
f

d
ia

l-
a

ri
d

e
is

re
d

u
c
e

d
,

fo
llo

w
in

g
re

c
e

n
t

d
e

c
lin

e
s

in
p

a
tr

o
n

a
g

e
.

(9
0

)
(1

2
0

)
(1

7
0

)
P

a
u

l

N
ic

h
o

ls

E
&

T
2

6
T

ra
v
e

l
a

n
d

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

W
it
h

d
ra

w
th

e
s
u

b
s
id

y
to

th
e

n
o

1
4

b
u

s
s
e

rv
ic

e

T
h

e
n

o
1

4
s
e

rv
ic

e
c
a

rr
ie

s
3

7
,0

0
0

p
a

s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

p
a

.
A

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

a
re

o
ft

e
n

a
v
a

ila
b

le
,

w
h

ic
h

m
a

y
b

e
le

s
s

d
ir

e
c
t.

(6
0

)
(6

0
)

(6
0

)
P

a
u

l

N
ic

h
o

ls

E
&

T
2

7
P

la
n

n
in

g
a

n
d

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty

O
ff

e
r

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
c
y

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

to
o

th
e

r
lo

c
a

l
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s

E
n

a
b

le
s

th
e

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

to
re

ta
in

th
e

ir
s
k
ill

s
in

h
o

u
s
e

,
w

h
ils

t

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
a

n
o

rd
e

r
b

o
o

k
w

it
h

o
th

e
r

lo
c
a

l
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
to

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te

to
s
ta

ff
c
o

s
ts

.

(2
0

)
(5

5
)

(7
5

)
P

a
u

l

N
ic

h
o

ls

E
&

T
2

8
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l

H
e

a
lt
h

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

w
o

rk
o

n
th

e
A

ir
Q

u
a

lit
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y

D
e

le
te

p
o

s
t

(c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y

v
a

c
a

n
t)

.
R

e
d

u
c
e

s
th

e
C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
a

b
ili

ty
to

s
u

p
p

o
rt

s
ta

tu
to

ry
a

ir
q

u
a

lit
y

w
o

rk
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
w

o
rk

re
la

ti
n

g
to

A
ir

Q
u

a
lit

y
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
A

re
a

s
.

(1
0

)
(1

0
)

(1
0

)
0

.5
0

L
iz

M
a

rs
h

E
&

T
2

9
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l

H
e

a
lt
h

F
o

o
d

S
a

fe
ty

a
n

d
H

e
a

lt
h

a
n

d
S

a
fe

ty

s
ta

ff
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
.

R
e

d
u

c
e

s
th

e
h

e
a

lt
h

&
s
a

fe
ty

a
n

d
fo

o
d

s
a

fe
ty

e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t
w

o
rk

b
e

lo
w

th
e

le
v
e

l
o

u
tl
in

e
d

in
th

e
a

g
re

e
d

F
o

o
d

a
n

d
H

e
a

lt
h

&
S

a
fe

ty

S
e

rv
ic

e
P

la
n

.

(3
0

)
(3

0
)

(3
0

)
1

.0
0

L
iz

M
a

rs
h

E
&

T
3

0
It

c
h

e
n

B
ri

d
g

e

R
e

m
o

v
a

l
o

f
c
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
s

fo
r

d
is

a
b

le
d

d
ri

v
e

rs
u

s
in

g
th

e
It

c
h

e
n

B
ri

d
g

e

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e

s
a

o
n

e
to

ll
fo

r
a

ll
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

(2
5

)
(2

5
)

(2
5

)
M

ic
k

B
is

h
o

p



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

E
&

T
3

1
O

ff
S

tr
e

e
t

C
a

r

P
a

rk
in

g
R

e
d

u
c
e

th
e

C
it
y

P
a

tr
o

l
s
e

rv
ic

e
R

e
d

u
c
e

d
w

o
rk

o
n

e
n

v
ir

o
c
ri

m
e

a
n

d
fl
y

ti
p

p
in

g
(2

5
)

(2
5

)
(2

5
)

1
.0

0
M

ic
k

B
is

h
o

p

E
&

T
3

2
P

la
n

n
in

g
a

n
d

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
R

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
te

a
m

.
C

o
rr

e
s
p

o
n

d
in

g
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

w
o

rk
re

la
ti
n

g
to

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
m

a
tt

e
rs

.
(4

0
)

(4
0

)
(4

0
)

1
.0

0
P

a
u

l

N
ic

h
o

ls

E
&

T
3

3
W

a
s
te

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

c
u

s
to

m
e

r

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

n
d

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s

w
o

rk
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
s
u

p
p

o
rt

fo
r

re
s
id

e
n

ts
,

s
c
h

o
o

ls
a

n
d

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
.

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
p

ro
v
is

io
n

o
f

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
to

re
s
id

e
n

ts
o

n
c
o

n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o

n
o

f

re
c
y
c
lin

g
b

in
s
,

s
u

p
p

o
rt

fo
r

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
in

re
c
y
c
lin

g
a

n
d

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

to
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

e
v
e

n
ts

o
r

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l
c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
s
.

(6
7

)
(6

7
)

(6
7

)
2

.0
0

A
n

d
re

w

T
ra

y
e

r

E
&

T
3

4
W

a
s
te

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
C

h
a

rg
in

g
fo

r
g

re
e

n
w

a
s
te

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n

s
e

rv
ic

e

P
ro

b
a

b
le

a
d

v
e

rs
e

c
u

s
to

m
e

r
re

a
c
ti
o

n
to

c
h

a
rg

e
s

w
it
h

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s

in

th
e

u
s
e

o
f

th
e

n
e

w
s
e

rv
ic

e
.

R
e

c
y
c
lin

g
ra

te
c
o

u
ld

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

a
n

d

g
re

e
n

w
a

s
te

c
o

u
ld

e
n

d
u

p
in

re
s
id

u
a

l
w

a
s
te

s
tr

e
a

m
.

(3
0

)
(2

2
0

)
(2

2
0

)
A

n
d

re
w

T
ra

y
e

r

E
&

T
3

5
W

a
s
te

D
is

p
o

s
a

l

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

th
e

a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

D
IY

w
a

s
te

th
a

t
is

a
llo

w
e

d
to

b
e

d
is

p
o

s
e

d

o
ff

a
t

th
e

C
iv

ic
A

m
e

n
it
y

s
it
e

.

C
a

o
p

o
n

th
e

a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

D
IY

w
a

s
te

th
a

t
c
a

n
b

e
d

is
p

o
s
e

d
o

f
a

t
th

e

C
iv

ic
A

m
e

n
it
y

s
it
e

.
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
w

it
h

la
rg

e
a

m
o

u
n

ts
o

f
D

IY
w

a
s
te

fo
r

d
is

p
o

s
a

l
w

ill
b

e
h

e
lp

e
d

w
it
h

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
o

n
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

m
e

th
o

d
s

o
f

d
is

p
o

s
a

l.
P

o
s
s
ib

le
a

d
v
e

rs
e

p
u

b
lic

it
y

a
n

d
in

c
re

a
s
e

s
in

fl
y

ti
p

p
in

g

(1
0

)
(1

0
)

(1
0

)
A

n
d

re
w

T
ra

y
e

r

E
&

T
3

6
A

c
ro

s
s

P
o

rt
fo

lio
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
P

o
s
ts

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

p
o

s
ts

(2
2

0
)

(2
2

0
)

(2
2

0
)

4
.0

0
1

.0
0

F
ra

n
c
e

s

M
a

rt
in

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(6

8
2

)
(9

3
7

)
(1

,0
0

7
)

8
.0

0
3

.5
0

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

&
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l

(1
,6

5
1

)
(2

,6
9

7
)

(2
,7

9
2

)
2

8
.0

0
3

.5
0



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

H
o

u
s

in
g

-
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s

H
O

U
1

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

&

P
o

rt
fo

lio
M

g
m

t

R
e

d
u

c
e

c
e

n
tr

a
l
s
u

p
p

o
rt

/
re

c
h

a
rg

e
s

fr
o

m
D

ir
e

c
to

rs
O

ff
ic

e

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

s
u

p
p

o
rt

c
a

p
a

c
it
y
.

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t
re

v
is

e
d

s
ta

ff
in

g

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
fr

o
m

A
p

ri
l
2

0
1

1
w

it
h

p
a

rt
y
e

a
r

s
a

v
in

g
in

2
0

1
1

/1
2

(1
5

)
(2

0
)

(2
0

)
1

.0
0

J
o

n

W
a

lla
c
e

H
O

U
2

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s

R
e

v
ie

w
s
c
o

p
e

a
n

d
d

e
liv

e
ry

o
f

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s

S
e

rv
ic

e
b

a
s
e

d
o

n

s
ta

tu
to

ry
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s

D
C

L
G

h
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s

g
ra

n
t

in
c
lu

d
e

d
in

A
B

G
fr

o
m

2
0

1
0

/1
1

G
v
t

s
ta

te
d

in
C

S
R

s
u

p
p

o
rt

p
ro

v
id

e
d

to
fu

n
d

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

to
p

re
v
e

n
t

h
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s

e
.g

.
o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

a
n

d
s
tr

e
e

t
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

R
e

v
ie

w
a

n
d

a
c
h

ie
v
e

b
e

tt
e

r
v
a

lu
e

fo
r

m
o

n
e

y
fr

o
m

th
e

s
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

(2
5

)
(2

5
)

(2
5

)
B

a
rb

a
ra

C
o

m
p

to
n

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(4

0
)

(4
5

)
(4

5
)

1
.0

0
0

.0
0

H
o

u
s

in
g

-
In

c
o

m
e

H
O

U
3

A
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
s

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
o

f
c
h

a
rg

e
s

to
H

o
u

s
in

g

A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
s

fo
r

H
o

u
s
in

g
R

e
g

is
te

r
/

n
o

m
in

a
ti
o

n
s

A
im

to
fu

lly
re

c
o

v
e

r
c
o

s
ts

fr
o

m
H

o
u

s
in

g
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
s
.

P
ro

p
o

s
a

l

a
ls

o
to

b
e

d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
o

n
a

P
U

S
H

w
id

e
b

a
s
is

(2
5

)
(5

0
)

(5
0

)
B

a
rb

a
ra

C
o

m
p

to
n

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(2

5
)

(5
0

)
(5

0
)

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

H
o

u
s

in
g

-
S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s

H
O

U
4

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

tr
a

te
g

y

R
e

d
u

c
e

H
o

u
s
in

g
P

o
lic

y
w

o
rk

a
n

d

ra
ti
o

n
a

lis
e

/
re

d
u

c
e

b
u

s
in

e
s
s

s
u

p
p

o
rt

a
c
ti
v
it
y

T
h

is
s
e

rv
ic

e
c
o

v
e

rs
h

o
u

s
in

g
s
tr

a
te

g
y

w
o

rk
,

p
o

lic
y

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

a
n

d

b
u

s
in

e
s
s

s
u

p
p

o
rt

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

S
p

e
c
if
ic

p
o

s
t

d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
to

P
o

lic
y

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

w
o

rk
to

c
e

a
s
e

(1
.0

F
T

E
)

w
it
h

0
.5

F
T

E
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

b
u

s
in

e
s
s

s
u

p
p

o
rt

c
a

p
a

c
it
y
.

(4
4

)
(6

7
)

(6
7

)
1

.0
0

0
.5

0
B

a
rb

a
ra

C
o

m
p

to
n

H
O

U
5

P
ri

v
a

te
S

e
c
to

r

H
o

u
s
in

g
-

H
o

u
s
in

g

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

T
e

a
m

s

.

R
e

v
ie

w
s
c
o

p
e

a
n

d
d

e
liv

e
ry

o
f

P
ri

v
a

te
S

e
c
to

r
H

o
u

s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

b
a

s
e

d
o

n
s
ta

tu
to

ry
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s

R
e

m
o

v
in

g
a

ll
n

o
n

s
ta

tu
to

ry
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
s
.

(5
4

)
(6

9
)

(6
9

)
2

.0
0

B
a

rb
a

ra

C
o

m
p

to
n

H
O

U
6

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

&

P
o

rt
fo

lio
M

g
m

t
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
P

o
s
ts

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

p
o

s
ts

(3
0

)
(3

0
)

(3
0

)
1

.0
0

J
o

n

W
a

lla
c
e

H
O

U
7

H
o

u
s
in

g
G

e
n

e
ra

l

F
u

n
d

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

P
o

s
ts

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

p
o

s
ts

(4
5

)
(4

5
)

(4
5

)
1

.0
0

B
a

rb
a

ra

C
o

m
p

to
n

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(1

7
3

)
(2

1
1

)
(2

1
1

)
5

.0
0

0
.5

0

H
o

u
s

in
g

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l

(2
3

8
)

(3
0

6
)

(3
0

6
)

6
.0

0
0

.5
0



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

L
e

a
d

e
rs

-
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s

L
E

A
D

1
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
P

o
lic

y
&

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

R
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
o

f
s
u

p
p

o
rt

to
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

o
f

th
e

C
o

u
n

c
il

D
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s

a
re

ta
k
in

g
p

la
c
e

to
e

n
s
u

re
th

e
n

e
w

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

a
n

d

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

a
re

fi
t

fo
r

p
u

rp
o

s
e

a
n

d
c
a

n
d

ri
v
e

n
e

w

w
a

y
s

o
f

w
o

rk
in

g
,

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
a

n
d

s
h

a
re

d
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

(3
8

2
)

(3
8

2
)

(3
8

2
)

T
B

C
T

B
C

D
a

w
n

B
a

x
e

n
d

a
le

L
E

A
D

2

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
&

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

R
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
o

f
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

to
m

e
rg

e
M

e
m

b
e

rs
’
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
,

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

a
n

d
th

e

M
a

y
o

r'
s

O
ff

ic
e

R
e

m
o

v
a

l
o

f
a

d
m

in
p

o
s
ts

a
n

d
s
e

n
io

r
d

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

s
u

p
p

o
rt

o
ff

ic
e

r.

Im
p

a
c
t

o
n

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

p
p

e
a

ls
,

W
e

b
p

u
b

lis
h

in
g

a
n

d
M

e
m

b
e

rs

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

T
a

s
k
s

w
ill

n
e

e
d

to
b

e
s
h

a
re

d
a

c
ro

s
s

a
ll

a
re

a
s

a
n

d
a

ls
o

s
o

m
e

lo
s
s

o
f

s
u

p
p

o
rt

to
M

e
m

b
e

rs
a

n
d

th
e

M
a

y
o

r
w

it
h

re
d

u
c
e

d

c
a

p
a

c
it
y

to
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
s
/e

v
e

n
ts

.

(8
0

)
(8

0
)

(8
0

)
1

.0
0

2
.0

0
M

a
rk

H
e

a
th

L
E

A
D

3
R

e
g

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
o

f

E
le

c
to

rs

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

w
it
h

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

in
2

0
1

0
N

o
im

p
a

c
t

a
s

re
v
ie

w
is

c
o

m
p

le
te

(2
0

)
(2

0
)

(2
0

)
M

a
rk

H
e

a
th

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(4

8
2

)
(4

8
2

)
(4

8
2

)
1

.0
0

2
.0

0

L
e

a
d

e
rs

-
S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s

L
E

A
D

4

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
&

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

C
u

t
in

M
e

m
b

e
rs

'A
llo

w
a

n
c
e

s
D

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t

o
n

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t

R
e

m
u

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
P

a
n

e
l.

In
it
ia

l
in

d
ic

a
ti
o

n
s

o
f

s
a

v
in

g
s

p
ro

v
id

e
d

w
h

ic
h

w
ill

n
e

e
d

to
b

e
re

v
ie

w
e

d
(2

0
)

(2
0

)
(2

0
)

M
a

rk
H

e
a

th

L
E

A
D

5
L

e
g

a
l
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
R

e
m

o
v
a

l
o

f
p

o
s
ts

fr
o

m
L

e
g

a
l

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

A
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

s
ta

ff
w

ill
re

q
u

ir
e

L
e

g
a

l
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
to

s
tr

ic
tl
y

p
ri

o
ri

ti
s
e

w
o

rk
in

a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

w
it
h

th
e

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
's

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
.

(1
0

0
)

(1
0

0
)

(1
0

0
)

1
.0

0
2

.0
0

M
a

rk
H

e
a

th

L
E

A
D

6

S
u

b
s

to
E

X
T

b
o

d
ie

s

&
P

o
rt

fo
lio

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

R
e

v
ie

w
o

f
s
u

b
s
c
ri

p
ti
o

n
s

S
u

b
s
c
ri

p
ti
o

n
s

p
a

id
to

th
ir

d
p

a
rt

ie
s

fr
o

m
o

th
e

r
P

o
rt

fo
lio

b
u

d
g

e
ts

to

b
e

re
v
ie

w
e

d
a

n
d

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
.

(1
0

0
)

(1
0

0
)

(1
0

0
)

S
u

k
i

S
it
a

ra
m

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(2

2
0

)
(2

2
0

)
(2

2
0

)
1

.0
0

2
.0

0

L
e

a
d

e
rs

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l

(7
0

2
)

(7
0

2
)

(7
0

2
)

2
.0

0
4

.0
0



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

L
e

is
u

re
,

C
u

lt
u

re
&

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

-
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s

L
C

H
1

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

&

P
o

rt
fo

lio

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

R
e

d
u

c
e

c
e

n
tr

a
l
s
u

p
p

o
rt

/
re

c
h

a
rg

e
s

fr
o

m
D

ir
e

c
to

rs
O

ff
ic

e

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

s
u

p
p

o
rt

c
a

p
a

c
it
y

-
p

a
rt

ly
a

ri
s
in

g
fr

o
m

le
s
s

s
u

p
p

o
rt

n
e

e
d

e
d

to
fo

rm
e

r
S

&
R

s
e

rv
ic

e
.

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t
re

v
is

e
d

s
ta

ff
in

g

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
fr

o
m

A
p

ri
l
2

0
1

1
w

it
h

p
a

rt
y
e

a
r

s
a

v
in

g
in

2
0

1
1

/1
2

(1
5

)
(2

0
)

(2
0

)
1

.0
0

J
o

n

W
a

lla
c
e

L
C

H
2

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

&

P
o

rt
fo

lio

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

S
e

n
io

r
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re

A
s

re
s
u

lt
o

f
th

e
s
e

rv
ic

e
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s

/
p

ro
je

c
t

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
a

n
d

n
e

w

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

/
g

ro
w

in
g

e
n

a
b

lin
g

ro
le

it
is

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
to

re
v
ie

w
/

re
v
is

e
th

e
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l
S

e
n

io
r

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

s
tr

u
c
tu

re

(4
2

)
(5

0
)

(5
0

)
1

.0
0

M
ik

e
H

a
rr

is

L
C

H
3

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
o

f
3

y
e

a
r

lib
ra

ry

s
tr

a
te

g
y
.

R
a

n
g

e
o

f
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
to

re
d

u
c
e

ti
m

e
s
p

e
n

t
o

n
n

o
n

c
u

s
to

m
e

r
fa

c
in

g
w

o
rk

.
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

in
m

e
th

o
d

s
o

f
w

o
rk

in
g

w
ill

b
e

d
e

p
lo

y
e

d
.

(2
4

6
)

(2
4

6
)

(2
4

6
)

7
.0

0
M

ik
e

H
a

rr
is

L
C

H
4

S
p

o
rt

&
R

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
fr

o
m

S
p

o
rt

s
&

R
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l
s
a

v
in

g
s

th
ro

u
g

h
re

a
lis

a
ti
o

n
o

f
a

fu
ll

y
e

a
r

a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
o

f

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
.

S
ta

ff
tr

a
n

s
fe

rr
e

d
u

n
d

e
r

T
U

P
E

s
o

n
o

F
T

E
im

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
.

(2
9

6
)

(4
6

3
)

(5
2

3
)

M
ik

e
H

a
rr

is

L
C

H
5

E
x
te

rn
a

lis
e

d

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

&
C

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

th
e

b
u

d
g

e
t

fo
r

le
g

a
l

c
o

s
ts

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

w
it
h

th
e

re
n

e
w

a
l
o

f

th
e

G
u

ild
h

a
ll

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t

a
n

d

c
e

n
tr

a
lis

a
ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
e

x
te

rn
a

lis
e

d

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

c
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
y

fu
n

d
s

(2
5

)
(2

5
)

(2
5

)
M

ik
e

H
a

rr
is

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(6

2
4

)
(8

0
4

)
(8

6
4

)
9

.0
0

0
.0

0



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

L
e

is
u

re
,

C
u

lt
u

re
&

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

-
In

c
o

m
e

L
C

H
6

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
S

p
o

n
s
o

rs
h

ip

In
c
o

m
e

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l
in

c
o

m
e

to
b

e
g

e
n

e
ra

te
d

(3
0

)
(3

0
)

(3
0

)
B

e
n

W
h

it
e

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(3

0
)

(3
0

)
(3

0
)

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

L
e

is
u

re
,

C
u

lt
u

re
&

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

-
S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s

L
C

H
7

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

R
e

d
u

c
e

p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o

n
o

f
C

it
y

V
ie

w
to

o
n

c
e

a
q

u
a

rt
e

r

T
h

is
w

ill
e

n
a

b
le

th
e

C
o

u
n

c
il

to
m

a
in

ta
in

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n

a
n

d
th

e
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l
to

s
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

t
th

is
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n

c
h

a
n

n
e

ls
w

ill
b

e
in

v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

d
.

(1
8

)
(1

8
)

(1
8

)
B

e
n

W
h

it
e

L
C

H
8

A
c
ro

s
s

P
o

rt
fo

lio
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
P

o
s
ts

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

p
o

s
ts

(4
5

)
(4

5
)

(4
5

)
1

.0
0

M
ik

e
H

a
rr

is

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(6

3
)

(6
3

)
(6

3
)

1
.0

0
0

.0
0

L
e

is
u

re
,

C
u

lt
u

re
&

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l

(7
1

7
)

(8
9

7
)

(9
5

7
)

1
0

.0
0

0
.0

0



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

L
o

c
a

l
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
&

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

-
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s

L
S

C
S

1

N
a

tu
ra

l
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t,

C
o

m
m

o
n

&

H
a

w
th

o
rn

s

(R
e

p
la

c
e

s
p

re
v
io

u
s

tw
o

s
a

v
in

g
ro

w
s
)

R
e

v
ie

w
,

ra
ti
o

n
a

lis
e

a
n

d
re

-o
rg

a
n

is
e

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
p

ro
v
id

e
d

b
y

th
e

N
a

tu
ra

l

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

s
e

rv
ic

e
a

n
d

e
x
p

lo
re

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
a

n
e

x
te

rn
a

l
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip

/
tr

u
s
t

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
t

C
o

s
t

/
b

e
n

e
fi
t

a
n

a
ly

s
is

re
q

u
ir

e
d

o
f

th
e

ra
n

g
e

o
f

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
b

y
th

e
in

-h
o

u
s
e

n
a

tu
ra

l
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

s
e

rv
ic

e
,

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
n

g
s
c
o

p
e

fo
r

in
te

rn
a

l
s
a

v
in

g
s
,

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
a

n
d

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l

in
c
o

m
e

a
g

a
in

s
t

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
c
o

s
t

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s

/
in

c
o

m
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
a

c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

th
ro

u
g

h
o

r
e

x
te

rn
a

l
p

a
rt

n
e

ri
n

g

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

.

(1
0

)
(4

5
)

(9
0

)
J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e

L
S

C
S

2
P

a
rk

s
&

S
tr

e
e

t

C
le

a
n

s
in

g

R
e

v
ie

w
a

n
d

re
-o

rg
a

n
is

e
th

e
p

a
rk

s
&

s
tr

e
e

t
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,

te
c
h

n
ic

a
l
&

s
u

p
p

o
rt

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
a

n
d

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

a
n

o
p

ti
o

n
s

a
p

p
ra

is
a

l
fo

r

th
e

fu
tu

re
d

e
liv

e
ry

o
f

th
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
.

T
h

e
p

a
rk

s
&

s
tr

e
e

t
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,
te

c
h

n
ic

a
l
&

s
u

p
p

o
rt

te
a

m
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
s

w
o

u
ld

s
e

e
a

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
in

s
ta

ff
c
o

s
ts

o
f

a
t

le
a

s
t

2
5

%
.

T
h

e
p

ro
p

o
s
a

l
a

ls
o

e
n

c
o

m
p

a
s
s
e

s
w

o
rk

in
g

w
it
h

B
e

re
a

v
e

m
e

n
t

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

to
in

te
g

ra
te

th
e

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

a
n

d
d

e
liv

e
ry

o
f

th
e

C
e

m
e

te
ri

e
s

S
e

rv
ic

e
to

a
c
h

ie
v
e

s
h

a
re

d
s
a

v
in

g
s

fo
r

b
o

th
th

e

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
a

n
d

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

D
iv

is
io

n
s
,

h
o

w
e

v
e

r
it

is

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
th

a
t

th
is

s
a

v
in

g
is

in
a

d
d

it
io

n
to

th
e

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

s
a

v
in

g
.

T
h

e
fu

ll
s
ta

ff
in

g
im

p
a

c
t

o
f

th
e

c
o

m
p

le
te

re
v
ie

w
is

n
o

t

k
n

o
w

n
a

t
th

is
ti
m

e
a

n
d

th
e

s
ta

ff
in

g
n

u
m

b
e

rs
q

u
o

te
d

re
la

te
to

2
0

1
1

/1
2

o
n

ly
.

(7
2

)
(1

1
5

)
(2

1
1

)
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e

L
S

C
S

3
P

a
rk

s
&

S
tr

e
e

t

C
le

a
n

s
in

g

R
e

v
ie

w
a

n
d

re
-s

tr
u

c
tu

re
p

a
rk

s
&

s
tr

e
e

t
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
‘o

u
t

o
f

h
o

u
rs

’

s
e

rv
ic

e
d

e
liv

e
ry

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

a
n

d

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

a
n

o
p

ti
o

n
s

a
p

p
ra

is
a

l
fo

r

th
e

fu
tu

re
d

e
liv

e
ry

o
f

th
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
.

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

le
v
e

ls
o

f
s
ta

ff
o

v
e

rt
im

e
w

o
rk

in
g

w
it
h

c
a

re
fu

lly
ta

rg
e

te
d

s
c
h

e
d

u
le

s
a

n
d

re
s
o

u
rc

e
a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
s

to
fo

c
u

s
o

n
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

c
u

rr
e

n
t

le
v
e

ls
o

f
c
a

re
a

n
d

c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s

in
h

ig
h

-d
e

m
a

n
d

a
re

a
s

s
u

c
h

a
s

th
e

c
it
y

c
e

n
tr

e
a

n
d

c
e

n
tr

a
l
p

a
rk

s
,

a
n

d
d

is
tr

ic
t

c
e

n
tr

e
s

a
n

d
d

is
tr

ic
t

p
a

rk
s
.

(5
0

)
(5

0
)

(5
0

)
J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e

L
S

C
S

4
P

a
rk

s
&

S
tr

e
e

t

C
le

a
n

s
in

g

R
e

-o
rg

a
n

is
e

th
e

p
a

rk
s

&
s
tr

e
e

t

c
le

a
n

s
in

g
D

is
tr

ic
t

&
C

it
y
w

id
e

T
e

a
m

s

a
n

d
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

a
n

o
p

ti
o

n
s

a
p

p
ra

is
a

l

fo
r

th
e

fu
tu

re
d

e
liv

e
ry

o
f

th
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
.

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s

h
a

v
e

b
e

e
n

p
it
c
h

e
d

a
t

a
le

v
e

l
(5

%
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

e
x
is

ti
n

g

fr
o

n
t-

lin
e

c
a

p
a

c
it
y
)

th
a

t
w

o
u

ld
n

o
t

re
q

u
ir

e
a

s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l
re

-s
h

a
p

in
g

o
f

c
u

rr
e

n
t

‘S
e

rv
ic

e
P

ro
m

is
e

s
’
o

r
im

p
a

c
t

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y

o
n

le
v
e

ls
o

f

c
u

s
to

m
e

r
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
o

r
k
e

y
P

I’
s

u
n

d
e

r
n

o
rm

a
l
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
.

T
h

e
fu

ll

s
ta

ff
in

g
im

p
a

c
t

o
f

th
e

c
o

m
p

le
te

re
v
ie

w
is

n
o

t
k
n

o
w

n
a

t
th

is
ti
m

e
a

n
d

th
e

s
ta

ff
in

g
n

u
m

b
e

rs
q

u
o

te
d

re
la

te
to

2
0

1
1

/1
2

o
n

ly
.

(1
2

6
)

(2
1

3
)

(2
1

3
)

3
.0

0
3

.0
0

J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e

L
S

C
S

5
C

C
T

V

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

a
m

a
jo

r
c
ro

s
s

c
o

u
n

c
il

re
v
ie

w
o

f
C

C
T

V
to

d
e

liv
e

r

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
a

n
d

re
d

u
c
e

c
o

s
ts

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

a
m

a
jo

r
s
e

rv
ic

e
re

v
ie

w
to

d
e

v
e

lo
p

o
p

ti
o

n
s

fo
r

a
p

p
ra

is
a

l

in
te

rm
s

o
f

th
e

c
u

rr
e

n
t

C
C

T
V

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

n
d

re
la

te
d

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

T
h

e

fu
ll

s
ta

ff
in

g
im

p
a

c
t

o
f

th
e

c
o

m
p

le
te

re
v
ie

w
is

n
o

t
k
n

o
w

n
a

t
th

is
ti
m

e

a
n

d
th

e
s
ta

ff
in

g
n

u
m

b
e

rs
q

u
o

te
d

re
la

te
to

2
0

1
1

/1
2

o
n

ly
.

(3
6

)
(1

7
5

)
(1

7
5

)
1

.0
0

J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(2

9
4

)
(5

9
8

)
(7

3
9

)
4

.0
0

5
.0

0



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

L
o

c
a

l
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
&

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

-
In

c
o

m
e

L
S

C
S

6
P

a
rk

s
&

S
tr

e
e

t

C
le

a
n

s
in

g

Id
e

n
ti
fy

s
p

o
n

s
o

rs
h

ip
fo

r
a

ll
s
e

a
s
o

n
a

l

b
a

rr
ie

r
b

a
s
k
e

t
/

h
a

n
g

in
g

b
a

s
k
e

t

p
ro

v
is

io
n

in
a

re
a

s
w

h
e

re
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y

e
n

ti
re

ly
fu

n
d

e
d

b
y

c
it
y

c
o

u
n

c
il

o
r

c
e

a
s
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

.

F
lo

ra
l
d

is
p

la
y
s

a
re

s
p

o
n

s
o

re
d

b
y

lo
c
a

l
tr

a
d

e
rs

/
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s

a
lr

e
a

d
y

in
s
o

m
e

a
re

a
s

(B
it
te

rn
e

,
O

ld
N

o
rt

h
a

m
)

b
u

t
p

ro
v
id

e
d

b
y

th
e

c
it
y

c
o

u
n

c
il

w
it
h

in
th

e
c
it
y

c
e

n
tr

e
.

T
h

e
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

o
f

fu
rt

h
e

r

e
x
te

rn
a

l
fu

n
d

in
g

/
s
p

o
n

s
o

rs
h

ip
m

a
y

m
it
ig

a
te

im
p

a
c
t

to
s
o

m
e

d
e

g
re

e
b

u
t

th
e

c
u

rr
e

n
t

m
a

rk
e

t
fo

r
fu

rt
h

e
r

s
u

p
p

o
rt

fr
o

m
c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l

s
p

o
n

s
o

rs
h

ip
is

lik
e

ly
to

re
s
u

lt
in

re
d

u
c
e

d
d

is
p

la
y
s
.

(2
0

)
(2

0
)

(2
0

)
M

ik
e

H
a

rr
is

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(2

0
)

(2
0

)
(2

0
)

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

L
o

c
a

l
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
&

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

-
S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s

L
S

C
S

7
P

a
rk

s
&

S
tr

e
e

t

C
le

a
n

s
in

g

W
o

rk
w

it
h

th
e

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

to

m
a

n
a

g
e

W
e

s
to

n
S

h
o

re
P

it
c
h

&
P

u
tt

c
o

u
rs

e
.

E
x
p

lo
re

th
e

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
to

w
o

rk
w

it
h

lo
c
a

l
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

g
ro

u
p

o
r

p
ri

v
a

te

s
e

c
to

r
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
to

m
a

n
a

g
e

W
e

s
to

n
S

h
o

re
P

it
c
h

&
P

u
tt

(2
0

)
(2

0
)

(2
0

)
J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e

L
S

C
S

8
P

u
b

lic
T

o
ile

ts

C
lo

s
e

th
e

B
a

rg
a

te
,

K
in

g
s
la

n
d

a
n

d

W
o

o
ls

to
n

p
u

b
lic

to
ile

ts
.

S
e

c
u

re

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l
s
p

o
n

s
o

rs
h

ip
to

p
ro

v
id

e
a

n
e

w
a

u
to

m
a

ti
c

p
u

b
lic

to
ile

t
to

re
p

la
c
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

in
B

it
te

rn
e

&

P
o

rt
s
w

o
o

d

T
h

e
re

a
re

a
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

p
u

b
lic

to
ile

t
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

in
th

e
c
it
y

c
e

n
tr

e
.

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
o

f
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

s
a

n
d

c
lo

s
u

re
n

o
ti
c
e

s
w

ill
b

e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

,
a

n
d

w
o

rk
w

ill
b

e
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
w

it
h

p
ri

v
a

te
s
e

c
to

r
p

a
rt

n
e

rs

to
d

e
v
e

lo
p

a
n

e
w

c
o

s
t

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t

a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

w
it
h

in
th

e

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

e
n

tr
e

s

(6
0

)
(8

5
)

(8
5

)
J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e

L
S

C
S

9
T

re
e

s
,

A
llo

tm
e

n
ts

&

P
a

rk
s

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

D
e

v
e

lo
p

th
e

A
llo

tm
e

n
ts

S
e

rv
ic

e
to

b
e

e
n

ti
re

ly
s
e

lf
-f

u
n

d
in

g
b

y
2

0
1

3
/1

4
.

R
e

m
o

v
e

s
u

b
s
id

y
o

n
d

ir
e

c
t

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
to

b
re

a
k

e
v
e

n
.

R
e

q
u

ir
e

s
£

5
7

K
o

n
e

-o
ff

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t

to
d

e
liv

e
r.

E
x
te

n
s
iv

e
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s

w
ill

b
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

w
it
h

a
llo

tm
e

n
t

s
it
e

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
a

n
d

te
n

a
n

ts
to

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
th

e
m

o
s
t

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

w
a

y
o

f

o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
th

e
s
e

rv
ic

e
in

to
th

e
fu

tu
re

,
h

o
w

e
v
e

r
it

is
a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
th

a
t

th
is

w
ill

in
c
lu

d
e

e
le

m
e

n
ts

o
f

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
s
e

lf
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,
re

d
u

c
e

d

c
o

s
ts

a
n

d
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t
fe

e
in

c
re

a
s
e

s
to

c
re

a
te

a
n

il
c
o

s
t

s
e

rv
ic

e
th

a
t

h
a

s
a

ri
n

g
fe

n
c
e

d
fu

tu
re

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

b
u

d
g

e
t

b
u

ilt
in

to
th

e
fe

e

c
h

a
rg

e
s
.

(1
0

)
(3

7
)

(7
7

)
J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

L
S

C
S

1
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

a
c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
re

v
ie

w

o
f

c
u

rr
e

n
t

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

s
a

fe
ty

a
c
ti
v
it
y

a
n

d
re

la
te

d
b

u
d

g
e

ts
.

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

a
m

a
jo

r
s
e

rv
ic

e
re

v
ie

w
to

d
e

v
e

lo
p

o
p

ti
o

n
s

fo
r

a
p

p
ra

is
a

l

in
te

rm
s

o
f

fu
tu

re
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts

in
c
lu

d
in

g
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l
fu

rt
h

e
r

jo
in

t
w

o
rk

in
g

w
it
h

k
e

y
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
in

c
lu

d
in

g

th
e

P
o

lic
e

,
H

a
m

p
s
h

ir
e

P
ro

b
a

ti
o

n
,

o
th

e
r

S
C

C
te

a
m

s
a

n
d

th
e

F
ir

e

a
n

d
R

e
s
c
u

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

.

(1
0

0
)

(1
0

0
)

(1
0

0
)

2
.0

0
J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e

L
S

C
S

1
1

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
T

e
a

m

R
e

v
ie

w
o

f
th

e
re

m
a

in
in

g

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
s
e

rv
ic

e
a

n
d

c
o

n
s
o

lid
a

ti
o

n
w

it
h

o
th

e
r

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
e

rv
ic

e
s

c
o

m
b

in
e

d

w
it
h

a
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t
s
c
a

lin
g

b
a

c
k

o
f

s
e

rv
ic

e
.

R
e

d
ir

e
c
ti
o

n
/

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
in

th
e

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s

a
n

d
s
u

p
p

o
rt

a
v
a

ila
b

le
to

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

s
e

c
to

r
g

ro
u

p
s
,

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

o
f

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

c
e

n
tr

e
s
,

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

c
o

h
e

s
io

n
/

e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
w

o
rk

a
n

d
re

d
u

c
e

d
s
u

p
p

o
rt

fo
r

re
s
id

e
n

t
a

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
s

a
n

d
lo

c
a

l
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

g
ro

u
p

s
.

(9
8

)
(1

1
8

)
(1

1
8

)
3

.5
0

1
.3

0
J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e

L
S

C
S

1
2

G
ra

n
ts

to
v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

th
e

a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

g
ra

n
t

p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
v
a

ila
b

le
.

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s

ta
rg

e
te

d
a

t
th

e
N

e
w

P
ro

je
c
ts

e
le

m
e

n
t

o
f

th
e

g
ra

n
ts

a
n

d

w
h

e
re

fu
n

d
in

g
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s

a
re

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
to

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

fu
n

d
e

d

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
a

n
d

w
h

e
re

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

n
o

ti
c
e

p
e

ri
o

d
s

w
ill

b
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

.

(4
5

0
)

(4
5

0
)

(4
5

0
)

J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e

L
S

C
S

1
3

A
c
ro

s
s

P
o

rt
fo

lio
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
P

o
s
ts

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

p
o

s
ts

(4
0

)
(4

0
)

(4
0

)
1

.0
0

J
o

n
D

y
e

r-

S
la

d
e

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(7

7
8

)
(8

5
0

)
(8

9
0

)
6

.5
0

1
.3

0

L
o

c
a

l
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
&

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

T
o

ta
l

(1
,0

9
2

)
(1

,4
6

8
)

(1
,6

4
9

)
1

0
.5

0
6

.3
0



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

&
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
P

la
n

n
in

g
-

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c

ie
s

R
E

S
1

A
d

m
in

B
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
C

iv
ic

B
u

ild
in

g
s

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
(2

1
)

(2
1

)
(2

1
)

1
.0

0
J
o

h
n

S
p

ie
rs

R
E

S
2

A
d

m
in

B
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

v
ie

w
o

f
T

o
w

n
S

e
rg

e
a

n
ts

R
e

v
ie

w
o

f
T

o
w

n
S

e
rg

e
a

n
ts

b
u

ild
in

g
s
e

c
u

ri
ty

c
o

v
e

ra
g

e
,

re
v
ie

w
o

f

n
ig

h
t

s
e

c
u

ri
ty

a
n

d
d

e
liv

e
ry

o
f

c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l
w

a
s
te

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s
a

v
in

g
s
.

(2
8

)
(2

8
)

(2
8

)
3

.0
0

1
.0

0
J
o

h
n

S
p

ie
rs

R
E

S
3

A
u

d
it

&
R

is
k

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

A
u

d
it

fe
e

s
O

n
c
e

e
n

d
o

f
C

A
A

a
n

d
im

p
a

c
t

o
n

fe
e

s
c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

th
is

c
a

n
b

e
s
a

v
e

d

d
u

e
to

re
d

u
c
e

d
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
re

g
im

e
(5

0
)

(5
0

)
(5

0
)

N
e

il
P

it
m

a
n

R
E

S
4

A
u

d
it

&
R

is
k

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

S
h

a
re

d
H

e
a

d
o

f
In

te
rn

a
l
A

u
d

it

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
w

it
h

H
C

C
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y

g
e

n
e

ra
te

d
fo

r
b

o
th

A
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
th

ro
u

g
h

s
h

a
re

d
re

s
o

u
rc

e
.

(4
5

)
(4

5
)

(4
5

)
N

e
il

P
it
m

a
n

R
E

S
5

B
u

ild
in

g
C

le
a

n
in

g
R

a
ti
o

n
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
o

f
c
le

a
n

in
g

fu
n

c
ti
o

n

D
e

c
e

n
tr

a
lis

a
ti
o

n
o

f
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

fo
r

n
o

n
-a

d
m

in
b

u
ild

in
g

s
c
le

a
n

in
g

to
re

le
v
a

n
t

b
u

ild
in

g
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

a
n

d
c
h

a
n

g
e

o
f

c
le

a
n

in
g

h
o

u
rs

to

o
ff

ic
e

h
o

u
rs

o
n

ly
.

(1
6

)
(3

3
)

(3
3

)
2

.0
0

J
o

h
n

S
p

ie
rs

R
E

S
6

C
a

p
it
a

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

C
o

s
ts

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
in

te
re

s
t

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
P

a
rt

o
f

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
(1

0
0

)
(1

0
0

)
(2

0
0

)
P

a
u

l

M
e

d
la

n
d

R
E

S
7

F
in

a
n

c
e

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
u

rt
h

e
r

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
in

F
in

a
n

c
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
th

ro
u

g
h

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

is
a

ti
o

n
a

n
d

a
u

to
m

a
ti
o

n
a

n
d

s
to

p
p

in
g

n
o

n
a

d
d

e
d

v
a

lu
e

w
o

rk

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t
s
e

c
o

n
d

p
h

a
s
e

o
f

re
c
e

n
t

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
a

n
d

lo
o

k
a

t
o

th
e

r

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
fr

o
m

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
in

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
1

/1
2

(1
2

5
)

(2
5

0
)

(2
5

0
)

3
.0

0
4

.0
0

A
n

d
y

L
o

w
e

R
E

S
8

H
R

C
lie

n
t

U
p

d
a

te
p

ro
c
e

s
s

o
f

E
F

Q
M

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n

R
e

d
u

c
e

b
u

re
a

u
c
ra

ti
c

e
le

m
e

n
ts

o
f

th
e

p
ro

c
e

s
s

b
u

t
m

a
in

ta
in

th
e

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s

in
th

e
b

u
s
in

e
s
s

p
la

n
n

in
g

p
ro

c
e

s
s
.

(2
5

)
(2

5
)

(2
5

)
S

a
ra

h

D
e

n
n

is

R
E

S
9

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
R

e
d

u
c
e

b
a

d
d

e
b

t
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
M

a
in

ta
in

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

w
it
h

re
g

a
rd

to
d

e
b

t
c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
(1

0
0

)
(1

0
0

)
(1

0
0

)
J
o

h
n

S
p

ie
rs

R
E

S
1

0
In

s
u

ra
n

c
e

s
F

u
rt

h
e

r
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s

A
c
tu

a
ri

a
l
re

v
ie

w
a

n
d

p
o

s
s
ib

le
in

c
re

a
s
e

in
s
e

lf
a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

(2
5

0
)

(2
5

0
)

(2
5

0
)

N
e

il
P

it
m

a
n

R
E

S
1

1
P

e
n

s
io

n
s

&

R
e

d
u

n
d

a
n

c
ie

s

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
c
o

s
ts

d
u

e
to

re
v
is

e
d

p
o

lic
ie

s

S
a

v
in

g
in

re
c
u

rr
in

g
b

u
d

g
e

t
d

u
e

to
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
to

p
o

lic
ie

s

in
p

re
v
io

u
s

y
e

a
rs

a
n

d
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ro
le

o
f

E
A

P
(2

5
0

)
(2

5
0

)
(2

5
0

)
R

o
b

C
a

rr

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(1

,0
1

0
)

(1
,1

5
2

)
(1

,2
5

2
)

9
.0

0
5

.0
0



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
6

b

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

R
e

f
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
c

ti
v
it

y
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

o
f

It
e

m
Im

p
a

c
t

/
Is

s
u

e
s

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

F
T

E
In

P
o

s
t

F
T

E

V
a

c
a

n
t

H
e

a
d

o
f

S
e

rv
ic

e

£
0

0
0

's
£

0
0

0
's

£
0

0
0

's

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
O

F
E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

IE
S

,
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

A
N

D
S

E
R

V
IC

E
R

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

&
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
P

la
n

n
in

g
-

In
c

o
m

e

R
E

S
1

2
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
In

c
re

a
s
e

in
c
o

m
e

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
m

a
n

a
g

e
P

o
rt

fo
lio

a
s

p
a

rt
o

f
"b

u
s
in

e
s
s

a
s

u
s
u

a
l"

(1
5

0
)

(1
5

0
)

(1
5

0
)

J
o

h
n

S
p

ie
rs

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(1

5
0

)
(1

5
0

)
(1

5
0

)
0

.0
0

0
.0

0

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

&
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
P

la
n

n
in

g
-

S
e

rv
ic

e
R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s

R
E

S
1

3
H

R
C

lie
n

t
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
o

f
tr

a
in

in
g

b
u

d
g

e
ts

a
c
ro

s
s

a
ll

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s

R
e

v
ie

w
o

f
tr

a
in

in
g

to
b

e
d

e
liv

e
re

d
w

it
h

a
v
a

ila
b

le
b

u
d

g
e

t
re

q
u

ir
e

d
.

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
A

c
a

d
e

m
y

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
w

ill
e

n
a

b
le

m
o

re

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

le
d

tr
a

in
in

g
to

b
e

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

(5
0

)
(5

0
)

(5
0

)
S

a
ra

h

D
e

n
n

is

R
E

S
1

4
A

d
m

in
B

u
ild

in
g

s
R

e
v
ie

w
o

f
T

o
w

n
S

e
rg

e
a

n
ts

P
h

a
s
e

d
re

m
o

v
a

l
o

f
T

S
re

c
e

p
ti
o

n
d

u
ti
e

s
fr

o
m

F
ro

b
is

h
e

r
a

n
d

S
o

u
th

b
ro

o
k
.

(2
1

)
(3

1
)

(3
1

)
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
J
o

h
n

S
p

ie
rs

R
E

S
1

5
B

u
ild

in
g

C
le

a
n

in
g

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

C
le

a
n

in
g

S
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
in

m
in

im
u

m
c
le

a
n

in
g

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
fo

r
o

ff
ic

e
s

fr
o

m

w
e

e
k
ly

to
fo

rt
n

ig
h

tl
y

c
le

a
n

in
g

,
to

g
e

th
e

r
w

it
h

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
in

fr
e

q
u

e
n

c
y

o
f

c
le

a
n

in
g

fo
r

o
u

ts
id

e
a

re
a

s
a

n
d

o
th

e
r

s
ta

ff
a

re
a

s
.

(8
0

)
(8

0
)

(8
0

)
3

.3
0

2
.0

0
J
o

h
n

S
p

ie
rs

R
E

S
1

6
C

e
n

tr
a

l
C

lie
n

t

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

C
lie

n
t

T
e

a
m

/
R

e
ta

in
e

d
S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re

R
a

ti
o

n
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
c
lie

n
t

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
a

n
d

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
in

th
e

ro
le

th
a

t

is
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
to

fo
c
u

s
o

n
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

a
n

d
c
o

re

re
ta

in
e

d
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
s

in
c
lu

d
in

g
s
tr

a
te

g
y

a
n

d
p

o
lic

y
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

S
a

v
in

g
s

to
b

e
d

e
liv

e
re

d
th

ro
u

g
h

a
s
in

g
le

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
in

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
1

.

(4
0

)
(1

3
0

)
(1

3
0

)
T

B
C

T
B

C
R

o
b

C
a

rr

R
E

S
1

7
F

in
a

n
c
e

S
e

rv
ic

e

S
e

rv
ic

e
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s

in
F

in
a

n
c
e

a
ro

u
n

d
re

d
u

c
e

d
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
,

le
s
s

in
p

u
t

to
p

ro
je

c
ts

,
le

s
s

v
is

it
s

to

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs

W
o

u
ld

n
e

e
d

to
a

g
re

e
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
fo

r
s
e

rv
ic

e
p

ro
v
is

io
n

w
it
h

D
ir

e
c
to

rs

a
n

d
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
re

q
u

ir
e

d
b

y
C

F
O

.
C

e
n

tr
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
F

in
a

n
c
e

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
,

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
in

F
in

a
n

c
e

M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
a

n
d

m
in

im
a

l
s
e

rv
ic

e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

to
C

F
O

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
in

2
0

1
3

/1
4

(2
3

7
)

(4
0

0
)

(6
5

0
)

1
0

.0
0

A
n

d
y

L
o

w
e

R
E

S
1

8
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
C

lie
n

t
R

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re

R
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
o

f
th

e
c
lie

n
t

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
.

T
h

e
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
fo

r
th

e
te

a
m

w
ill

n
e

e
d

to
b

e
c
le

a
rl

y
m

a
p

p
e

d
to

th
e

a
v
a

ila
b

le
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

a
n

d
th

e
la

c
k

o
f

c
a

p
a

c
it
y

to
d

ri
v
e

s
tr

a
te

g
y

w
ill

n
e

e
d

to
b

e
re

c
o

g
n

is
e

d
.

(5
0

)
(8

0
)

(8
0

)
2

.0
0

J
o

h
n

S
p

ie
rs

R
E

S
1

9
P

ro
p

e
rt

y

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

R
e

d
u

c
e

C
a

p
it
a

v
a

ri
a

b
le

w
o

rk
R

e
v
ie

w
w

o
rk

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
(1

0
0

)
(1

0
0

)
(1

0
0

)
J
o

h
n

S
p

ie
rs

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
(5

7
8

)
(8

7
1

)
(1

,1
2

1
)

1
6

.3
0

3
.0

0

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

&
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
P

la
n

n
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
T

o
ta

l
(1

,7
3

8
)

(2
,1

7
3

)
(2

,5
2

3
)

2
5

.3
0

8
.0

0

G
R

A
N

D
T

O
T

A
L

(1
2

,0
5

8
)

(1
6

,4
9

3
)

(1
7

,5
9

9
)

1
7

5
.7

8
2

9
.3

0



 
 
 

Terms and Conditions – Final Offer 26th January 2011 

This final offer applies to all Council staff (including support staff employed in 
schools) with the exception of those subject to provisions of the Education Acts, the 
School Teachers’ Pay and Conditions Acts and the regulations made by the Secretary of 
State for Education and Employment. 

1. Proposals to reduce pay : 

The reductions to pay will be based on salary as at the 31st March 2011; the new salary 
payable will be the salary at 31st March minus the pay reduction outlined below:  

• No pay reduction for employees earning less than a full time equivalent basic salary 
of £17,500 at 31st March 2011 

• A 2% pay reduction for employees earning a full time equivalent basic salary 
between £17,501 and £22,000 at 31st March 2011 

• A 4.50% pay reduction for employees earning a full time equivalent basic salary 
between £22,001 and £35,000 at 31st March 2011  

• A 5% pay reduction for employees earning a full time equivalent basic salary 
between £35,001 and £65,000 as at 31st March 2011 

• A 5.5% pay reduction for employees earning a full time equivalent basic salary in 
excess of £65,000 as at 31st March 2011 

 

2. The Council will pay the £250 pay increase recommended by the government to 
all employees earning less than £21,000 with effect from 1st April 2011 regardless 
of whether it is agreed within the national pay settlement. 

Current assumption is no cost of living pay award for all other employees for two years.  

3. No pay increments for all employees for two years (2011/12 and 2012/13); 

4. An additional 5 days leave entitlement (or pro-rata for part time workers) for 
anyone on a full time equivalent basic salary in excess of £22,000 (to 
compensate for part of the higher percentage pay reduction which employees 
earning in excess of £22,000 will receive). We plan to introduce office closures 
where appropriate over the Christmas period 

5. Revise the policy for managing absence at work and work with the Unions to 
reduce sickness absence.  Will review the position after one year. 

6. Restructure essential and contractual car user entitlements; 

The Council is proposing to remove all essential and contractual user lump sums from 
1st April 2011 and replace with the Southampton Car Allowance (SCA) of £20 per 
month. 

A re-assessment will be carried out to determine who is eligible for the SCA based on 
whether or not it is considered they need their car to do the job asked of them. 

Future increases in the rate to be agreed by negotiation. 

7. Reduce mileage rates to HMRC approved rate of 40p per mile; 

This rate will apply to all mileage claimed from 1st April 2011. Future increases will be 
tied in to the HMRC approved Mileage Allowance Payment rate. 

Appendix 7



 
 

In making this final offer, the Administration has also agreed as part of a complete package 
to:- 

• Not implement any further terms and conditions changes as part of budget savings during 
this Administration (this does not include changes to terms and conditions arising from 
non-budgetary matters, e.g. to reflect legislative requirements) 

• Withdraw the proposal for a reduction in the working week 

• Withdraw the proposals to cut sick pay of any sort 

• Withdraw the proposal for all staff to move back one pay point 

• Withdraw the proposal for staff to take 5 days unpaid leave  

• Guarantee no further compulsory redundancies below Chief Officer grades in respect of 
2011/12 budget savings over and above those staff savings already notified (this does not 
include changes to terms and conditions arising from non-budgetary matters, e.g. to 
reflect legislative requirements)  

• Offer an enhanced rate of voluntary redundancy that applies a two times multiplier rather 
than the current 1.6 multiplier for any voluntary redundancies agreed for the 2011/12 
financial year as part of the current budget process 

It should be noted that the above offer is made as part of a complete package which it 
is hoped will be agreed by staff through the collective negotiation process.  However if 
the proposals are rejected then there is no guarantee that any of the concessions that 
have been made will remain on the table. 

 

In addition to, and not conditional upon the above package, the Administration will 
implement the following as part of its approach to implementing its 2011/12 savings:  

• Commit to keep compulsory redundancies to an absolute minimum 

• Offer a voluntary ‘bumped’ redundancy scheme, whereby a person is allowed to go on 
voluntary redundancy if there is a person that can be redeployed into their post who would 
otherwise be made compulsorily redundant. 

• Pay any redundancies (voluntary or compulsory) where notice is given between 1st April 
2011 and 31st March 2012 based on the salary that was payable on 31st March 2011 (i.e. 
before any salary reductions due to the terms and conditions savings).   

• Not pursue any extension in the length of the Capita contract at the current time 

8. Removal of all market supplements; 

Market analysis has already been carried out for those posts that currently receive 
market supplements and shows that there is no evidence that a market supplement is 
necessary. All supplements will be removed from 1st April 2011 irrespective of current 
notice period. 

9. Removal of the leased car scheme. 

Leased cars will be withdrawn from a specified date (to be agreed) to allow time for 
cars to be purchased where required and to allow the maximum number of leases to 
expire. The current compensation arrangements will be applied in terms of lump sum 
payment. A car loan would be available in accordance with the existing car loan policy. 



APPENDIX 8

Portfolios
2011/12

Forecast

Invest to

Save Bids

Revenue

Pressures

Revenue

Bids

Savings &

Income

2011/12

Budget
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Adult Social Care & Health 77,238.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 (3,219.2) 74,019.0

Childrens Services 68,285.5 0.0 137.0 0.0 (2,725.5) 65,697.0

Environment & Transport 35,840.3 0.0 80.0 0.0 (1,635.7) 34,284.6

Housing 3,447.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 (239.9) 3,208.0

Leader's Portfolio 8,517.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 (690.2) 7,827.1

Leisure Culture & Heritage 13,345.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 (734.3) 12,610.7

Local Services & Community Safety 10,232.2 25.0 0.0 0.0 (1,092.8) 9,164.4

Resources & Workforce Planning 13,300.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 (1,700.4) 11,600.4

Sub-total for Portfolios 230,207.2 25.0 217.0 0.0 (12,038.0) 218,411.2

Levies & Contributions

Southern Seas Fisheries Levy 48.5 48.5

Flood Defence Levy 44.5 44.5

Coroners Service 500.0 500.0

593.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 593.0

Capital Asset Management

Capital Financing Charges 12,826.6 12,826.6

Capital Asset Management Account (24,041.1) (24,041.1)

(11,214.5) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 (11,214.5)

Other Expenditure & Income

Direct Revenue Financing of Capital 57.0 57.0

Trading Areas (Surplus) / Deficit 0.0 (20.0) (20.0)

Net Housing Benefit Payments (881.9) (881.9)

Revenue Development Fund 0.0 2,248.3 2,248.3

Corporate Savings 0.0 (5,847.0) (5,847.0)

Non-Specific Government Grants (18,688.7) (18,688.7)

Open Spaces and HRA 535.7 535.7

Risk Fund 6,100.0 6,100.0

Contingencies 250.0 250.0

Council Tax Freeze Grant (2,065.7) (2,065.7)

(14,693.6) 0.0 0.0 2,248.3 (5,867.0) (18,312.3)

NET GF SPENDING 204,892.1 25.0 217.0 2,248.3 (17,905.0) 189,477.4

Draw from Balances:

Addition to Balances (General) 1,268.1 1,268.1

To Fund the Capital Programme (57.0) (57.0)

1,211.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1,211.1

Net Gap in Budget 15,414.7 25.0 217.0 2,248.3 (17,905.0) 0.0

BUDGET REQUIREMENT 190,688.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 190,688.5

2011/12 GENERAL FUND REVENUE ACCOUNT
Appendix 8



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 9

2010/11 2011/12 Change Change

£000's £000's £000's %

Budget Requirement (a) 183,269.6 190,688.5 7,418.9 4.05%

Less NDR (87,436.7) (80,130.6)

Less RSG (12,696.6) (24,727.6)

Aggregate External Finance (100,133.3) (104,858.2) (4,724.9) 4.72%

Deficit / (Surplus) on collection fund (1,141.8) (3,244.7) (2,102.9) 184.17%

Net Grant Income (b) (101,275.1) (108,102.9) (6,827.8) 6.74%

Amount to be met from Council Tax (a - b) 81,994.5 82,585.6 591.1 0.72%

Tax base 66,167.0 66,644.0 477.0 0.72%

Basic amount of Council Tax (Band D) 1,239.21 1,239.21 0.00 0.00%

Last years Council Tax 1,239.21

Increase (Cash) 0.00

Increase (Cash per Week) 0.00

Increase (%) 0.00%

COUNCIL TAX CALCULATION - 2011/12
Appendix 9



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 10

2010/11 2011/12 Change Change

£000's £000's £000's %

Southampton City Council Precept 81,994.5 82,585.6 591.1 0.72%

Hampshire Police Precept 9,676.9 9,746.7 69.8 0.72%

Fire and Rescue Services Precept 4,061.3 4,090.6 29.3 0.72%

Income due from Council Tax Payers 95,732.8 96,422.9 690.1 0.72%

Tax Base for Area 66,167.0 66,644.0 477.0 0.72%

Basic Amount of Tax for Band D Property 1,446.84 1,446.84 0.00 0.00%

COLLECTION FUND ESTIMATES 2011/12
Appendix 10



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 11

Portfolios
2011/12

Forecast

Base

Changes

2012/13

Forecast

Base

Changes

2013/14

Forecast

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Adult Social Care & Health 74,019.0 74,019.0 74,019.0

Childrens Services 65,697.0 65,697.0 65,697.0

Environment & Transport 34,284.6 34,284.6 34,284.6

Housing 3,208.0 3,208.0 3,208.0

Leader's Portfolio 7,827.1 7,827.1 7,827.1

Leisure Culture & Heritage 12,610.7 12,610.7 12,610.7

Local Services & Community Safety 9,164.4 9,164.4 9,164.4

Resources & Workforce Planning 11,600.4 11,600.4 11,600.4

Base Changes & Inflation 5,814.0 5,814.0 8,255.0 14,069.0

Sub-total for Portfolios 218,411.2 5,814.0 224,225.2 8,255.0 232,480.2

Levies & Contributions

Southern Seas Fisheries Levy 48.5 48.5 48.5

Flood Defence Levy 44.5 44.5 44.5

Coroners Service 500.0 500.0 500.0

593.0 0.0 593.0 0.0 593.0

Capital Asset Management

Capital Financing Charges 12,826.6 700.0 13,526.6 700.0 14,226.6

Capital Asset Management Account (24,041.1) (24,041.1) (24,041.1)

(11,214.5) 700.0 (10,514.5) 700.0 (9,814.5)

Other Expenditure & Income

Direct Revenue Financing of Capital 57.0 (57.0) 0.0 0.0

Trading Areas (Surplus)/Deficit (20.0) (20.0) (20.0)

Net Housing Benefit Payments (881.9) (881.9) (881.9)

Revenue Development Fund 2,248.3 1,530.0 3,778.3 800.0 4,578.3

Corporate Savings (5,847.0) 5,847.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Non-Specific Government Grants (18,688.7) (18,688.7) (18,688.7)

Open Spaces and HRA 535.7 535.7 535.7

Risk Fund 6,100.0 600.0 6,700.0 (700.0) 6,000.0

Contingencies 250.0 250.0 250.0

Council Tax Freeze Grant (2,065.7) (2,065.7) (2,065.7)

(18,312.3) 7,920.0 (10,392.3) 100.0 (10,292.3)

NET GF SPENDING 189,477.4 14,434.0 203,911.4 9,055.0 212,966.4

Draw from Balances:

Addition to / Draw From Balances (General) 1,268.1 (2,608.1) (1,340.0) 1,340.0 0.0

To fund the Capital Programme (57.0) 57.0 0.0 0.0

NET GAP IN BUDGET 1,211.1 (2,551.1) (1,340.0) 1,340.0 0.0

Budget requirement 190,688.5 11,882.9 202,571.4 10,395.0 212,966.4

Capping Limit 190,688.5 (8,295.1) 182,393.4 (4,694.5) 177,698.9

Roll Forward Gap 0.0 20,178.0 20,178.0 15,089.5 35,267.5

Add Pressures - Future Years (Known) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Add Pressures - Future Years (Unknown) 1,000.0 1,000.0 1,000.0 2,000.0

Add Invest to Save Bids - Future Years (Known) 7.0 7.0 (32.0) (25.0)

Less Savings - Future Years (Known) (4,435.0) (4,435.0) (1,106.0) (5,541.0)

Less Savings - Future Years (Work In Progress) (5,674.0) (5,674.0) (4,677.0) (10,351.0)

Revised Gap 0.0 11,076.0 11,076.0 10,274.5 21,350.5

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL FORECAST
Appendix 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

STATUTORY POWER TO UNDERTAKE PROPOSALS IN THE REPORT 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 

It is important that Members are fully aware of the full legal implications of the 
entire budget and Council Tax making process, when they consider any 
aspect of setting the Council’s Budget.  Formal and full advice to all Members 
of the Council protects Members, both in their official and personal capacity, 
as well as the Council.  If Members have received the appropriate 
professional legal and financial advice and act reasonably, generally the 
courts will not interfere in their decisions. 
 
 

2. GENERAL POSITION 

a. The first and overriding legal duty on Members is their fiduciary duty to 
weigh the needs of service users against the interests of local taxpayers.  
In planning the budget, Members are under a fiduciary duty to act 
prudently, responsibly, in a businesslike manner and in their view of what 
constitutes the best interests of the general body of local taxpayers.  In 
deciding upon expenditure, the Council must fairly hold a balance between 
recipients of the benefits of services provided by the Council and its local 
taxpayers.  Members should note that their fiduciary duty includes 
consideration of future local taxpayers as well as present local taxpayers. 

b. There is a general requirement in administrative law that a local authority 
decision must be rational, authorised by law and must take account of all 
relevant considerations, whilst ignoring any irrelevant ones.  It should also 
be noted that the concept of proportionality, given great emphasis in the 
Human Rights Act 1998, is also becoming a relevant factor for determining 
the reasonableness of any decision and should be borne in mind by 
Members. 

c.  An authority commits an illegal act if it acts beyond or in abuse of its 
statutory powers or in breach of its fiduciary duty.  It will also act illegally if 
it fails to take relevant considerations into account or acts in outrageous 
defiance of reason. 

 
3. OBLIGATION TO MAKE A COUNCIL TAX 

a.  The legal significance of the Annual Budget derives from the Council's 
duty under the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (the 1992 Act) to set a 
balanced budget.  This is achieved by calculating the aggregate of: 

i.  the expenditure it estimates it will incur in the year in performing its 
functions in the year (including an allowance for contingencies), 

ii.  the payments it estimates it will make in the year in defraying 
expenditure already incurred and 

Appendix 12



Page 2 of 6 

iii.  expenditure it will incur in funding costs before a transfer of funds is 
made from the Collection Fund and then deducting such sums as will 
be paid into the General Fund, i.e. income.  Calculations made under 
this section must be made before 11th March in the preceding financial 
year. 

b.  In order to fulfil this duty, the Council must prepare detailed estimates of its 
expenditure for the coming year and of the resources that will be available 
to meet this expenditure.  Account must be taken of any deficit brought 
forward from a previous year and the amount needed to cover 
contingencies.  The resources include income from rents, fees and 
charges and any available balances.  All of these issues must be 
addressed in the budget report.  The estimation of the detailed resource 
and expenditure items is the main reason for the budget process.  The 
budget must balance, i.e. proposed expenditure must be met from 
proposed income from all sources, with any shortfall being the precept on 
the Collection Fund. 

c.  Failure to make a lawful Council Tax on or before 11th March could have 
serious financial results for the Council and make the Council vulnerable to 
an Order from the Courts requiring it to make a Council Tax. 

d.  Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 places a general duty on 
local authorities to make arrangements for "the proper administration of 
their financial affairs'. 

e.  Information must be published and included in the Council Tax demand 
notice.  The Secretary of State has made regulations, which require 
charging authorities to issue demand notices in a form and with contents 
prescribed by these regulations. 

f.  There is also a duty under Section 65 of the 1992 Act to consult persons 
or bodies appearing to be representative of persons subject to non-
domestic rates in each area about proposals for expenditure (including 
capital expenditure) for each financial year. 

 
4. DEFICIT BUDGETING  

 

a.  A deficit budget, one which does not cover all anticipated expenditure with 
resources reasonably expected to be available, is unlawful.  Any Council 
Tax which rests on such a budget will be invalid.  Councils are constrained 
to make a Council Tax before all the separate elements, which will 
constitute available resources or anticipated expenditure, have been 
identified and quantified fully.  Best estimates have to be employed. 

 

b.  Where these best estimates include sums for unallocated savings or 
unidentified expectations of income, extreme care must be taken to ensure 
that the estimates are reasonable and realistic and do not reflect an 



Page 3 of 6 

unlawful intention to incur a deficit.  It might be appropriate at budget 
setting time to require regular monitoring throughout the financial year of 
such estimated savings or income.  Prompt action to reduce spending 
must be taken, if at any stage it seems likely that a balance between 
income and expenditure will not be achieved. 

  
5. BORROWING  
 

The rules and regulations governing a local authority's ability to borrow money 
were altered significantly by the introduction of the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 and subsequent regulations.  This has now been abolished 
and replaced by the self-regulating Prudential Code. 

 
 
6. OTHER RELEVANT LEGISLATION  
 

a.  The Local Government Finance Act 1988 (the 1988 Act) created the (now 
repealed) Community Charge and the current National Non- Domestic 
Rating regime and deals with grants, funds, capital expenditure and the 
financial administration of a local authority. 

b.  Under Section 114 (2) and 114 (3) of the 1988 Act, the Chief Financial 
Officer is required to make a report, if it appears to him/her that a decision 
or course of action the Council or an officer has agreed or is about to 
make is unlawful, or that expenditure is likely to exceed resources 
available. 

c.  Members have a duty to determine whether they agree with the Chief 
Financial Officer's statutory report issued under Section 26 Local 
Government Act 2003.  If Members were to disagree, they would need to 
set out cogent reasons for so doing.  Unless such reasons could be set 
forward, Members' action in disagreeing with the Chief Financial Officer's 
views on the basis of his/her professional judgement would be likely to be 
held unreasonable and constitute wilful misconduct.  It should be noted 
that under the Members’ Code of Conduct, Members are required to take 
account of any advice issued by Chief Financial Officer (and the 
Monitoring Officer) acting in their statutory capacities. 

 
7. BEST VALUE: LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1999  

 

The Local Government Act 1999 (the 1999 Act) introduced a duty of Best 
Value, which came into force on 1st April 2000.  Members need to be aware 
of and take account of the impact on the Council of this duty. 

 
 
 
8. THE CONSTITUTIONAL POSITION: LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

(THE 2000 ACT)  
 



Page 4 of 6 

a.  The 2000 Act has had a fundamental effect on the governance of the 
Council and in particular has resulted in a change to the working 
arrangements of Council, with the requirement for a Constitution setting 
out executive (Cabinet) and scrutiny and overview arrangements.  The 
2000 Act also provides a power for Councils to promote the economic, 
social and environmental well being of their areas and develop community 
strategies. In addition, the 2000 Act establishes an ethical framework. 

b.  Of particular importance to the Council Tax setting process and Budget 
Meeting of the Full Council is the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework 
Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of the City Council’s Constitution.  These 
provide a legal framework for the decision making process whereby the 
Budget of the City Council is determined, and the Council Tax is set.  In 
addition, Members need to be aware that these Rules provide a route 
whereby the Leader may require the Full Council to reconsider their 
position if they do not accept the Executive’s recommended budget 
without amendment. 

c.  In addition, the Constitution contains a range of further material relevant to 
the setting of the Council Tax and the Budget Setting meeting: 

i.  Article 12 contains guidance on decision making and the law. 

ii.  The Council Procedure Rules in Part 4 regulate the conduct of the Full 
Council meeting (although traditionally, some of the rules relating to the 
conduct of the debate are suspended to allow different arrangements 
during the budget debate). 

iii.  The Members’ Code of Conduct must be followed by Members. 

iv. The Officer/Member Protocol contains guidance both on pre-budget 
discussions, but also on how officers and Members should interact with 
specific guidance about budget preparation issues. 

 
 
9. PERSONAL LIABILITY AND SURCHARGE  

 
The 2000 Act abolished the local government surcharge provisions and 
replaced them with a new statutory offence of 'misuse of public office'.  This 
new statutory offence covers two situations, namely unlawfully incurring 
expenditure or incurring expenditure as a result of wilful misconduct.  It also 
covers the exercise of a public function in a manner that involves dishonesty 
or oppression or malice.  The Courts (rather than the District Auditor) would 
impose penalties.  The Council could sue for losses/deficiencies sustained.   

 
 
 
 
10. LEGAL STATUS OF POLITICAL PROMISES AND DOCUMENTS  

 



Page 5 of 6 

a.  It is appropriate for Members to consider their own position as some 
Members may have expressed support publicly for policies that are not 
policies of the Council. 

 
b.  Political documents do not represent a legal commitment on behalf of the 

Council.  To treat any political document as a legal commitment by the 
Council would be illegal.  Where there is a valid choice before Members, 
then, at that stage and only at that stage, Members may take political 
documents into account. 

 
c.  All decisions must be taken within the framework of the formal decision 

making process of the Authority. Members must take into account all 
relevant matters and disregard all irrelevant ones.  Decisions taken at a 
political meeting, such as a political group meeting, have no status within 
this process.  A Member, who votes in accordance with a group decision 
which has been reached, having regard to relevant factors and who has 
addressed their mind independently to those factors and to the decision 
itself, will be acting within the law. 

 
d.  The Courts have also advised on the balancing exercise to be undertaken 

by a Council when deciding whether to pursue a particular policy: 
 
 
A local authority must exercise its statutory powers in the public interest and 
for the purpose of which those powers have been conferred.  Political views, 
as to the weight to be attached to the various relevant considerations and as 
to what is appropriate in the public interest in the light of those considerations 
may properly influence the exercise of a statutory discretion.  A decision will 
not be unlawful merely because some political advantage, such as electoral 
popularity, is expected to flow from it, so long as the decision is made for a 
legitimate purpose or purposes.  Because at some stage in the evolution of a 
policy an improper political purpose has been espoused, does not mean that 
the policy ultimately adopted is necessarily unlawful.  However, a political 
purpose extraneous to the statutory purpose can taint a decision with 
impropriety.  Where there is more than one purpose: 
 
a)  The decision will generally be lawful provided that the permitted purpose is 

the true and dominant purpose behind the act.  This is so even though 
some secondary or incidental advantage may be gained for some 
purpose, which is outside the authority's powers. 

 
b) The decision will be invalid if there are two purposes one ultra vires and 

one intra vires and the ultra vires purpose is a (even if not the) major 
purpose of the decision.  Accordingly a decision substantially influenced by 
a wish to alter the composition of the electorate would be unlawful. 

 
c)  Where there is some evidence justifying enquiry, the Court will consider 

whether an apparently lawful purpose e.g. home ownership is merely a 
colourable device to conceal an illegitimate purpose e.g. electoral 
advantage. 

 
d) Even if those voting for a particular policy at a Council meeting have 

perfectly proper reasons in mind, the policy can be tainted by the improper 



Page 6 of 6 

motives of others who have taken part in the formulation of that policy 
although not actually present to vote.  As a matter of law it is possible for a 
corrupt principal to cause a result through an innocent agent. 

 

11. OTHER LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

The financial forecasts contained in this report have been prepared and are 
submitted as part of the budget process set out in the Council’s Constitution.  
As part of the review process by Chief Officers Management Team, the 
proposals contained in this report have been checked from a legal viewpoint 
and a number in minor issues are being followed up with Officers. 



 
 
 

STATEMENT ON GENERAL FUND BUDGET STRATEGY 

BY THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

UNDER S.25 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2003 

 
 
Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 imposes a duty on the Chief Financial 
Officer to report on the following matters:- 
 

a)  The robustness of the estimates made for the purpose of the calculations (to 
set the Council Tax), and 

 
b)  The adequacy of the proposed financial reserves. 
 

These specific matters are dealt with below but it is important to set the whole of the 
2011/12 budget process in the context of the exceptional financial circumstances that 
Local Government finds itself in. 
 
Past budget processes have been difficult but the £25M gap forecast for 2011/12 is at 
least double the largest gap ever faced by the Council since it became a unitary 
authority. 
 
Whilst early work was started on the budget in preparation for this likely scenario, the 
scale of the reductions was still beyond what was expected necessitating the need to 
look at radical solutions to closing the budget gap, including changes to staff terms and 
conditions. 
 
Whilst therefore the basic methodology for putting the budget together at the Council has 
not changed, it must be recognised that the scale of the changes and some of the 
measures being introduced do increase the risk built into the budget for 2011/12. 
 
Against this, the Council does have an excellent track record of remaining within budget 
once it has been set and has never been in the position of reporting an overall overspend 
on the General Fund despite some very difficult recent years in respect of reducing 
income and escalating social care costs in both children and adult services. 
 
The Council maintains a healthy £4.5M minimum balance which is after significant sums 
have been put aside to deal with organisational development issues.  If necessary, future 
year’s allocations of these could be utilised in an emergency on the basis that they were 
re-instated at a later date. 

 
Overall therefore whilst it is recognised that this budget has elements of risk not 
experienced before, it is felt that sufficient mitigating actions are already in place to 
accept and to manage those risks. 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 13



a) Robustness of Estimates 
 
Budget setting is made up of several estimates some involving quite complex 
forecasting.  By the very definition of the word, estimates are not factual and the 
degree of accuracy will not only vary but also take different periods of time to be 
proven to be correct or otherwise. 
 
During the Spring and Summer of 2010 the Executive (supported by the Chief 
Officers Management Team) developed a series of detailed budget proposals which 
were subsequently presented to all political groups in December.  Whilst some figures 
were changed and new proposals have been put forward, these have also been 
validated by COMT prior to their inclusion in the final proposed budget.  There is 
therefore a high degree of validation inherent within the final budget proposals. 
 
Key elements within the budget are provisions for inflation on pay and prices, 
projected levels of income and achievability of savings, including those relating to 
changes to Terms & Conditions.  Details of these items are included in the reports 
and have already been through the validation process as set out above, however, 
there are six points to draw out: 
 
i) Assumptions made in all of the forecasts are basically sound.  The pay 

increases have yet to be negotiated, however, a zero pay award has been 
incorporated into the budget for 2011/12 and 2012/13, with an increase of 
£250 per annum for those on less than £21,000. 

 
ii) Corporate savings relating to revised Terms & Conditions to the value of 

£5.0M and Management posts to the value of £0.8M are included within the 
current recommendation.   

 
The scale of the reductions in local government funding has meant that the 
Council has been forced to look at radical options for reducing expenditure 
across services.  One of these options is to reduce the terms and conditions 
of staff to produce ongoing revenue savings.  There is however a 
commitment that this will be the only time that such a change will be made to 
terms and conditions for budgetary purposes.  The budget has been 
prepared on the basis that a collective agreement is reached with the Unions 
on the current proposals.  This is because the budget had to be prepared on 
one basis or another, but it is recognised that the collective agreement is 
subject to a union ballot. 

 
In the event that changes are made to the proposals, this will have an impact 
on the budget position presented in this report as will the process of 
dismissing and re-engaging staff since a period of 90 days notice must be 
given.  The recommendations in this report therefore also delegate authority 
to the CFO in consultation with the Solicitor to the Council to make changes 
to the budget to take account of these implications.  In reality any loss of 
savings arising from either of these issues will be made up through a draw 
from balances on a one-off basis and the on going impact will then need to 
be addressed as part of setting the budget for 2012/13. 

 



iii) Individual savings items have been approved by relevant Chief Officers and 
have been subject to scrutiny by the Chief Officers Management Team.  
Responsibility for actioning any changes in the budgets will fall to me as 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO), and all savings approved will be monitored 
throughout the year although responsibility for the delivery of these savings 
rests with the relevant Executive Director. 

 
iv) The current recommendation by the Cabinet retains a general contingency 

of £250,000 together with a risk based contingency sum of £6.1M which 
should cover any estimation issues or activity changes that arise during the 
year.  There is also a small additional balance over the minimum figure of 
£4.5M that could be used if necessary. 

 
v) The current recommendation by Cabinet includes the continued use of a 

fund to manage the cost of revenue developments totalling just under 
£2.25M.  This will enable any adjustments between schemes and in the 
timing of projects to be managed during the year. 

 
vi) The current economic climate and national issues surrounding continuing 

care and the safeguarding of children have impacted on the budget.   
Adequate provision to cover all of these issues has been included within the 
final budget proposals and will be the subject of detailed monitoring 
throughout the year. 

 
b) Adequacy of Proposed Financial Reserves 
 

i) The Council holds a number of specific reserves for issues like debt write off 
that are assessed on an ongoing basis against the specific debts to which 
they relate.  Review of these provisions forms part of the budget 
preparations covered above. 

 
ii) The general reserves are used to support revenue, capital and strategic 

pressures and to provide a working balance. 
 

Details of the use of general reserves are included in the report.  The level of 
reserves and the projected use is forecast for three years.  The minimum 
level of balances is recommended by the CFO taking into account issues 
like the proposed draw from reserves, the level of risk contained within the 
budget and previous experience on potential levels of net overspend. 
 
Best practice guidance issued by CIPFA is followed in determining a level of 
reserves based on assessed risks, which are periodically reviewed and 
which currently produces a recommended minimum working balance of 
£4.5M despite increased risks in some areas such as future government 
funding.  There is no legal definition or Audit Commission recommendation 
on the absolute level of reserves that any authority should hold but the risk 
based approach does provide a consistent, transparent methodology that 
can be updated periodically. 
 



The Executives recommendations for efficiencies, income generation and 
service reductions now total over £17.9M, including £5.0M from Terms & 
Conditions changes and £0.8M from a reduction in management posts, and 
this allows an addition to balances of just under £1.3M which can be used in 
future years, although it is important to point out that there is still a significant 
gap in funding in future years that will require further recurring savings.  
 

iii) Attention is drawn to the level and use of capital resources in the General 
Fund Capital Programme report.  This identifies that there is currently a 
deficit in the funding of the overall capital programme based on a revised 
estimate of capital receipts which have been adversely affected by the 
current economic climate. 

 
Slippage in capital receipts could also require a further temporary draw from 
balances unless accompanied by equivalent slippage in spend.  Non-receipt 
of any planned income will require a permanent draw from balances or 
savings in the programme.  In drawing up the capital programme these risk 
factors are obviously taken into account but as a backstop position these 
potential shortfalls will continue to be reviewed over the longer term and 
where possible, be reduced by re-phasing schemes or bringing forward the 
use of prudential borrowing. 
 
The Council also has key strategic sites which it is currently holding until 
market conditions improve and this provides a further source of contingency 
to reduce the risks outlined in the above paragraphs. 



 1

Cumulative Impact Assessment: Age 
 

This cumulative impact assessment needs to be read in conjunction with the IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT SUMMARY FOR 2011/12 BUDGET PROPOSALS which provides more detail of 
individual proposals and the actions that will be taken to mitigate their effects. 

 

 
Background 
1. Age equality means securing the equal participation in society of people of every age, based on respect for the 

dignity and value of each individual. It aspires to achieve equality in citizenship, access to opportunities and 
outcomes, as well as respect for differences related to older age and for children and younger people. For public 
bodies, the 2010 Equalities Act sets a public sector duty across a range of protected characteristics. To address 

Item  Portfolio total in 
2011/12 
(£'000) 

Comments 

Virtual health and social care 
ward to provide crisis and 
emergency support 

ASCH2 100 This will have a positive affect on older people enabling them 
to stay in their own home rather than be admitted to hospital 
during crisis periods.  A higher proportion of 85s are expected 
to need the service but not disproportionally so. 

Reduction in Day Care Services ASCH9 400 Review of contracted day services to reflect Fair Access to 
Care activity and increasing take up of Self Directed Support. 
Some services – the Day centre and Heavy Drinkers Unit 
have traditionally offered services to older drinkers who do 
not access other services 
   

Review of Meals on Wheels 
(MoW) service 

ASCH12 45 Around 90% of those receiving MoW are aged 65 and over.  

Non statutory voluntary sector 
services funding.  

ASCH14 % of 776  This includes provision of voluntary sector home care and 
help in the home, older person advocacy and alcohol and 
mental health services.  

Cease provision of later years 
service and support to 
partnership. This includes support 
for the third age centre. 

ASCH16 239 This budget is for services and projects that are specifically 
targeted at older people and promote the profile of older 
people. 

Reduction in bus subsidies 
affecting the 8/8A service, dial-a-
ride, night bus marshals, the no 5 
Sunday service, some city night 
buses and the no 7A service 

E&T 44 90 Dial-a-ride is often used by older, more frail members of 
society, and those who are unable to use buses so a 
reduction could lead to some restrictions in travel.  The 
proposals to Dial A Ride are not a reduction in service as they 
reflect a reduced demand and hence a reduced need for 
buses.  
 

Implementation of 3 year library 
strategy 

LCH 5 % of 246 Reduction in variety of materials could affect people with a 
visual impairment e.g. reduction in audio books and large 
print – many of whom may be older people 

Public Toilets Closures in district 
and city centre  

LSCS8 60 Reduced immediate availability of toilet provision for more 
elderly citizens. Among this demographic there is a higher 
percentage of people who may suffer from a frequent and 
urgent need for toilet facilities. Alternatives are being explored 
in identified areas.  

Review of community safety 
activity 

LSCS10 % of 100 Less young people will get early interventions for ASB; less 
anti-social behaviour contracts in place; in time potential 
increase in anti-social behaviour 
The remaining savings have a direct impact on community 
safety service delivery 

Major review of remaining service 
and consolidation with other 
services and scaling back – 
communities team.  

LSCS11 % of 98 This will affect community centres community development, 
community cohesion and equalities. : Reduced capacity to 
deal with hate crime, harassment and community tension 
incidents 

Review scope and delivery of 
Private Sector Housing Service 
on the basis of statutory provision 

HOU 6 % of 54 Reductions in Fuel Poverty work would hit older people as 
would support to improve the quality of private sector housing 
an address issues. This could lead to additional health 
implications.  
 

Appendix 14



 2

age equality and discrimination the Act will create a public sector duty ( which will include age) to have due 
regard to the need to:  

a. eliminate discrimination;  
b. advance equality of opportunity, and  
c. foster good relations between people who share protected characteristic and people who do 

not share it, and:  
d. ban age discrimination against those over 18 in the provision of services and exercise of public 

functions.  
2. The public sector duty applies to people of all ages, including children, while the ban on age discrimination 

applies in relation to over 18’s. The public sector duty will be effective from April 2011. The ban on age 
discrimination will be effective from 2012. 

 
Demographics 
3. The 2009 Mid Year estimate of Southampton’s population is 236,700 a 4% increase since 2005 which equates to 

9,000 residents. In 2009 27.1% of Southampton’s population was aged over 50 and 22.5% under 20. 
Although no one may be discriminated on the basis of age, the nature of the budget proposals has meant that for 
the purposes of this assessment the focus will be on both older and younger people.  

 
Cumulative Impact of Proposals on Age: Older People 
4. There are a number of proposals which have the potential to impact specifically on older people. Reductions in both 

directly provided and grant funded services could directly affect the health and well-being of older people. There 
areas of significance relate to health and Adult Social care, Housing, and services such as libraries and transport. . 

 
Health and Adult Social Care 

5. Several proposed reductions will affect older people – including some of the most vulnerable who also suffer with a 
disability, Older People’s Mental Health issues or health problems. Whilst many of the services proposed for 
reduction are support based and preventative, this may have a knock on effect in relation to the health and well-
being of older people and an increased demand of statutory services at an earlier stage in the future. The value of 
contact with support agencies in providing early intervention and identification of issues needs to be considered.  
Where those older people with complex issues are affected reductions have the potential to increase costs 

elsewhere and reduce quality of life particularly for those who have traditionally found it hard to input into 
decisions about their care.  

6. In addition to the operational activities, the loss of support provided by the Later Years service directly to older 
people may reduce the representation of older people and their interest in strategic decision making and service 
planning in the City.  

Mitigation  
7. The Putting People First programme provides an opportunity for many of the services affected to be re-provided in 

other ways. This may require market development support to ensure provision is available. In the interim additional 
support for older people to access these service may be required and could increase workloads for other teams 
such as the mental health and community teams and support services (e.g. finance, brokerage). However a positive 
impact could be achieved by providing people with more individualised services which support independence.   

8. Undertake assessments on all service users prior to any service closure – and ensure this considers those who 
access more than one service or who have complex problems. Other reductions across the authority which may 
have an impact, for example transport issues for disabled people should also be considered.  

9. Other mechanisms to ensure older people’s interests are represented in decision making will need to be put in 
place.  

10. Expand the reablement service to enable all assessed users to benefit from the service. 
 
 

Housing  
11. There is a strong link between housing and health, particularly for older people. Poor quality housing can make it 

difficult for people to maintain good health and well-being, particularly in those with existing conditions and where 
complex long-term needs are involved. In 2008/09 there were approximately 113 excess winter deaths in 
Southampton, although 09/10 figures have not yet been published a significant increase is expected due to the 
extreme cold weather experienced. On average people over 65 account for 93% of excess winter deaths. 14% of all 
households in Southampton are single person pensioner households (Census 2001).   



 3

12. A reduction in the housing advice service, when taken together with reductions in grants to others who also provide 
advice a support to older people living in the community, could have a significant impact on the health and 
wellbeing of older people.  

13. In relation to the private and private rental sector, evidence shows that older people are more likely to live in 
properties that are unsafe and require intervention by the team, which will take longer as a result to the proposals. 
Fuel poverty work is currently targeted at older, vulnerable people and this work will cease (energy efficiency advice 
is also affected as part of the advice service).  This is also in the context of a increase in fuel prices of around 7 -8 
% this winter.  

Mitigation 
14. Service reductions in relation to older people and housing both in terms of advice and support and practical help 

should not be carried out in isolation but there needs to be a dialogue between the relevant Heads of Service in the 
Health and Adult Social Care and Neighbourhoods Directorates to ensure the collective impact of reductions has 
been considered. 

15. Health issues related to older people’s housing needs to be monitored so that any adverse impacts on older people 
can be identified and cost benefit analysis undertaken.  

16. Ensure frontline staff across the public sector are able to spot housing and heating issues in older people’s 
properties and make referral and provide advice as necessary.  

Local Services  
17. To a lesser extent the reductions in LSCS Portfolio have the potential to impact on older people. A reduction in 

community safety provision may affect older people particularly those who are vulnerable and/or live alone.  A 
reduction in grants to organisation who provide advice and support on home safety along side this must be taken 
into account. Community activities are an important part of many older peoples daily lives – reductions in 
community centre services, and organisations specifically targeted at older people may reduce the well-being of 
older people. This needs to be considered in the context of reductions in similar services provided by Health and 
Social Care.  

 
Mitigation 

18. Ensure good communications to older people on crime and safety and they are aware of the services available to 
them. 

19. Reductions in the provision of grants to the voluntary sector and reductions in community services that have a high 
usage by older people are considered in the context of cuts taking place across the City and the Putting People 
First agenda.  

Other Factors to Consider 
20. The impact of benefit changes and local housing allowance reforms.  
21. This CIA in relation to age must not be read in isolation. With regards to older people, there are clear links to the 

CIAs in relation to disability and (to a lesser extent) women. 
 
Next step: 
A joint discussion between the relevant Heads of Service or their nominated representatives on the potential cumulative 
impact and mitigating actions: Action: Jane Brentor, Barbara Compton, Jon Dyer-Slade and Mike Harris  
 
 
 



 4

Cumulative Impact of Proposals: Young People 
 
Item  Portfolio Cumulative  

total in Yr 3 
(£'000) 

Comments 

Reduction in youth support services CSL9 530 Reduction of six Personal Advisors and 6 Youth Support 
workers who currently provide informal youth 
work, information, advice and guidance to young people 
aged 11+ 

Reorganisation of services to 
children, young people and families 
from across the Directorate 

CSL10 703 Limited impact due to all services being refocused.  Less 
vulnerable children, young people and families might 
experience a reduction in generic services such as 
information, advice and guidance, youth support. 

Prevention services provided by the 
third and private sector 

CSL 11 600 Reduction in the number of contracts with the private and 
voluntary sectors in line with wider reduction of services to 
children, young people and families. 

Music Service – Reduction in the 
subsidy for the orchestra, choirs 
and ensembles  for children and 
young people 

CSL13 160 Minimal impact based on assessment of service users’ ability 
to financially contribute to the cost of the service. 

Reduced subsidies for some night 
bus services and bus marshals 
 

E&T44 % of 90 
 

 

Some services could be withdrawn by bus operators if 
subsidy is withdrawn.  Young people most likely to travel on 
a night bus and benefit from presence of bus marshals. 

Review scope and delivery of 
Private Sector Service based on 
statutory provision 

HOU 6 54 The proposal to stop support for the accreditation scheme for 
student properties will have a disproportionate effect on 
younger people, who are more likely to live in accredited 
properties. However, discussions are underway with the 
University on the possibility of funding the SASSH scheme. 

Public Toilets Closures in district 
and city centre 

LSCS 8 60 Reduced immediate availability of toilet provision for parents 
shopping with babies or young children that may require 
toilet or nappy changing facilities.   
Reduced immediate availability of specifically designed toilet 
provision, and reduced provision for those suffering from 
health conditions that require a consistent and immediate 
access to toilet facilities. 

Undertake a comprehensive review 
of current community safety activity 
and related budgets. 

LSCS 10 % of 100 Less young people will get early interventions for ASB; less 
anti-social behaviour contracts in place; in time potential 
increase in anti-social behaviour 
The remaining savings have a direct impact on community 
safety service delivery 

Review of the remaining 
communities service and 
consolidation with other 
neighbourhood services combined 
with a significant scaling back of 
service. 

LSCS 11 % of 98 Reduced capacity to deal with hate crime, harassment and 
community tension incidents 

Grants to voluntary organisations  LSCS 13  % of 450 Impact dependent on final recommendations – appraisal of 
grant applications currently underway and IAs will be 
completed on the recommendations to Cabinet in new year. 

 
Cumulative Impact of Proposals on Young People: 
 
1. The proposals above could have a significant impact on young people in the City and as a result on outcomes for 

Southampton.  The proposed reduction in preventative services, both universal ( music and youth services),  and 
targeted (substance misuse, educational welfare, etc) will result in fewer services that are intended to prevent 
young people, particularly those identified as being at risk, from experiencing poor outcomes. 

2. A reduction in early intervention and preventative services could impact on services that work towards achieving 
positive outcomes for young people in the areas of NEETs, offending and re-offending, being a victim of crime 
(night bus, bus marshals, community safety funding), absence from school and exclusion, substance misuse and 
mental health problems. However as the moves is towards more targeting, vulnerable young people such as 
NEETs will continue to be a priority. Further analysis is needed when detailed implementation plans assess the 
impact.  



 5

 
 
Mitigation 
3. Geographically mapping the cumulative impact of services to identify the potential impact on specific locations in 

Southampton and considering ways of minimising the impact 
4. Refocus prevention services delivered by the local authority to provide support to those vulnerable children, young 

people and families.   
5. Signposting to alternative services available 
6. Undertaking assessments of individual service users as services are withdrawn to identify if an individual  has 

specific needs 
7. Consider what alternative provision could be provided through the Big Society agenda – Increase volunteering 
8. Monitor outcomes in key areas to assess the impact of proposals and take actions as necessary. 
9. Discussions are underway with the University on the possibility of funding the SASSH scheme. 
 
Other Factors to Consider: 
10. The cumulative impact of these proposals needs to be considered alongside other factors that may impact on 

young people in Southampton.  These include: 
11. National changes to public services and welfare benefits  
12. Southampton City Council budget saving proposals relating to race and ethnicity, disabled people and gender. 
13. Budget proposals of partner organisations in Southampton.  These include Hampshire Constabulary, Southampton 

PCT, the Probation Service, Job Centre Plus, and schools.  
 

Next step: 
A joint discussion between the relevant Heads of Service or their nominated representatives on the potential impact and 
any mitigating action 
 
Action: Alison Alexander, Jon Dyer-Slade, Mike Harris and Barbara Compton 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Cumulative Impact Assessment Disability 
 

This cumulative impact assessment needs to be read in conjunction with the IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT SUMMARY FOR 2011/12 BUDGET PROPOSALS which provides more detail of 
individual proposals and the actions that will be taken to mitigate their effects. 
 
Item  Portfolio total in 

2011/12 
(£'000) 

Comments 

Virtual health and social care 
ward to provide crisis and 
emergency support 

ASCH2 100 This will have a positive affect on older people enabling them to 
stay in their own home rather than be admitted to hospital during 
crisis periods.  A higher proportion of 85s are expected to need 
the service but not disproportionally so. 

Reduction in Day Care Services ASCH9 400 Review of contracted day services to reflect Fair Access to Care 
activity and increasing take up of Self Directed Support.  Will 
affect people with mental health issues and alcohol problems. 

Review of  Meals on Wheels 
(MoW) provision  

ASCH12 45 Around 90% of those receiving MoW are aged 65 and over.  The 
majority are disabled or have age related frailty. 

Non statutory voluntary sector 
services funding.  

ASCH14 % of 776  Many of these services are specifically targeted at older people.  
 
Reducing access to mental health services generally will impact 
on a disability group who are known to experience prejudice and 
stigma from the general public. Some service provision targets 
people who are particularly vulnerable (Mayfield nursery) and it 
would be difficult to provide alternative provision.  

Cease provision of later years 
service and support to 
partnership. This includes support 
for the third age centre. 

ASCH16 239 This budget is for services and projects that are specifically 
targeted at older people and provide support and advice. This 
may impact on people with disabilities relating to old age though 
not universally the case.  

Reorganisation of services to 
children, young people and 
families from across the 
Directorate 

CSL 10 703 Limited impact due to all services being refocused.  Less 
vulnerable children, young people and families might experience 
a reduction in generic services such as information, advice and 
guidance, youth support. 

Prevention services provided by 
the third and private sector 

CSL 11 600 Impact will be on vulnerable people, children, young people and 
families. 

Reduction in bus subsidies 
affecting the 8/8A service, dial-a-
ride, night bus marshals, the no 5 
Sunday service, some city night 
buses and the no 7A service 

E&T 44 90 Dial-a-ride is often used by older, more frail members of society, 
and those who are unable to use buses so a reduction could 
lead to some restrictions in travel. The proposals to Dial A Ride 
are not a reduction in service as they reflect a reduced demand 
and hence a reduced need for buses.  
 

Itchen Bridge – reduction of toll 
concessions for disabled users 

E & T 51 25  
 

Many people with disabilities rely on the care for transport and 
do not have the option of public transport.  However the impact 
is considered negligible.  (Northam Bridge alternative route also 
available though not as convenient). 

Implementation of 3 year library 
strategy 

LCH 5 % of 246 Reduction in variety of materials would affect people with a 
visual impairment e.g. reduction in audio books and large print. 

Public Toilets Closures in district 
and city centre  

LSCS8 60 Any reduction in accessibility and convenience of public toilet 
provision will disproportionally affect older people, children and 
those with young families.  Also those with health conditions that 
require immediate access to toilet facilities.  Alternatives are 
being explored in identified areas. 

Major review of remaining service 
and consolidation with other 
services and scaling back – 
communities team.  

LSCS11 % of 98 There is the potential reduction in support for hate crime and 
harassment (including incidents against disabled people) and 
community tensions.  

Review scope and delivery of 
Private Sector Housing Service 
on the basis of statutory provision 

HOU 6 % of 54 Reductions in Fuel Poverty work would hit older people as would 
support to improve the quality of private sector housing. This 
could lead to additional health implications.  

Impact as a result of reduction to 
grants and contracts in the 
voluntary sector  

LSCS 13 % of 450  Impact dependent on final recommendations – appraisal of 
grant applications currently underway and IAs will be completed 
on the recommendations to Cabinet in new year. 

Appendix 15



 2 

 
 
Cumulative Impact of Proposals on Disabled People: 
 
Background 
1. The Council has a duty under the Equality Act 2010 (in force from 1st October 2010) not to discriminate against any 

person on the basis of a protected characteristic (such as disability). This includes discrimination by way of less 
favourable treatment (direct discrimination) or by introducing a rule, policy or practice that applies to everyone but 
particularly disadvantages people who have a protected characteristic (indirect discrimination). Direct discrimination 
will always be unlawful. Indirect discrimination will not be unlawful if it can be justified, i.e. it can be shown that the 
rule, policy or practice was intended to meet a legitimate objective in a fair, balanced and reasonable way.  

 
2. In considering whether or not any indirect discrimination is justified, the council must consider whether or not there 

is any other way to meet their objective that is not discriminatory or is less likely to disadvantage those with 
protected characteristics. This may well mean setting out clearly whether or not consideration has been given to 
other ways of achieving these savings (such as raising charges across the board, cutting other services). 

 
3. While the general equality duty is not currently in force, the relevant duties from previous legislation are 'held over' 

and the Council still therefore must show that it has 'had regard' to the impact of it's decision on it's equality duties 
and the need to advance equality of opportunity between people who have protected characteristics and those who 
do not. 

 
Access / Transport 
4. A number of the proposals identified in the table impact on the ability of disabled people to travel and access 

services.   The proposals to remove concessions to cross the Itchen Bridge for approximately 2,500 people 
increase costs for disabled people, many of whom are on low incomes.  This needs to be considered alongside the 
proposal to remove an alternative to driving into the City for disabled people, dial-a-ride, and the potential impact of 
expected reduction in the council’s grants budget on the City Shopmobility service.  However, the proposals to Dial A 
Ride are not a reduction in service as they reflect a reduced demand and hence a reduced need for buses.  

 
5. When considering these proposals collectively it could represent a significant negative impact for disabled people, 

particularly for the relatively small number who will feel the impact of all the above proposals.  It could lead to some 
disabled people to withdraw from community involvement, engagement and activity due to access issues and could 
choose not to spend in the city due to transport and access issues. 

 
6. The savings proposals also have some potential to affect other council activities and funding.  For example, some 

disabled people may be eligible for social care services and by introducing or increasing charges they may have 
less disposable income available to contribute to care packages.  This may mean there could be a need to factor a 
percentage reduction of loss of income in to another part of the council’s business.  The potential increased social 
isolation could also have health and cost implications for the City Council and other public sector organisations. 

 
Mitigation 
7. Other alternative accessible transport options could be reviewed as part of the engagement process, but this could 

be difficult given the need for specially adapted vehicles.   
8. If the grant for City Shopmobility is withdrawn there is the opportunity to influence the service provided by West 

Quay Shopmobility. 
9. Publicity to explain the rationale behind the proposals. 
 
Mental Health  
10. Overall reduction in alcohol and mental health service levels will reduce ability to respond to a range of 
diversity issues. People with serious alcohol problems often develop long term health conditions and limiting access to 
services as early as possible (e.g. through the Day Centre) may increase the likelihood of people developing more 
serious problems. Some service provision targets people who are particularly vulnerable (Day Centre, Heavy Drinkers 
Unit) or who have a variety of problems and act as a gateway to other services. Services for people with alcohol 
problems are limited so any further reduction will have additional impact. Closure of the Day Centre will remove a 
gateway to services for a hard to reach group and it is likely that many will not access a service at all. 
 
 
 



 3 

 
Mitigation 
11. Those with eligible needs will be offered a personal budget and supported to secure appropriate solutions that meet 

their needs in culturally and age appropriate ways.  
 

12. Community Mental Health teams will pick up people with serious problems/risk – though this will impact on other 
services and budgets 
 

13. Assessments will be undertaken on people accessing services which are to close to identify on-going need – 
though this may reduce savings achieved  

 
14. Revisions to the Homelessness grant and the refocusing of the priorities of the Street Homelessness Prevention 

Team present opportunities to take mitigating action relating to the impact on street drinkers.  
 
Other Factors to Consider: 
15. This assessment needs to be read alongside the assessments for age. 

 
16. The cumulative impact of these proposals needs to be considered alongside other factors that may impact on 

disabled people in Southampton.  These include: 
 

• National changes to welfare benefits  
• Budget saving proposals relating to older people - Older disabled people could be impacted upon by these 

proposals in addition to the ones identified above.  
 
Next step: 
 
A joint discussion between the relevant Heads of Service or their nominated representatives on the potential impact and 
any mitigating action   
Action: Jane Brentor, Stephanie Ramsey, Mick Bishop, Paul Nichols,  and Alison Alexander  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1

Cumulative Impact Assessment: Gender 
 

This cumulative impact assessment needs to be read in conjunction with the IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT SUMMARY FOR 2011/12 BUDGET PROPOSALS which provides more detail of 
individual proposals and the actions that will be taken to mitigate their effects. 

 
Item Portfolio Total in 2011/12 

(£'000) 
Comment 

Contract efficiencies ASCH 1 % of 565 As the majority of care workers are low paid and women, 
providers decisions about managing delivery of a 0% inflation 
increase will have an impact on wage levels, with the greatest 
impact on women.  

Review of contracted Day 
Care Services 

ASCH 9 % of 400 Overall reduction in alcohol and mental health service levels 
will reduce ability to respond to women accessing mental 
health services who sometimes prefer to specify the gender of 
their key worker.   

Meals on Wheels Service ASCH 12 % of 45 Almost all customers of meals on wheels are over 65.  The 
majority of customers are either disabled or have age related 
frailty. There are a higher number of female customers as 
females tend to live longer.  

Review the level of funding for 
voluntary organisations where 
service is non statutory 

ASCH 14 % of 776 Overall reduction in services would also limit access to women 
accessing mental health services who feel that they may be 
particularly vulnerable in mixed settings.  People from some 
religions and faith communities prefer to access gender 
specific services.  Some voluntary provision includes women 
only services.  Reduction in voluntary sector contracts will 
remove this provision. 

Strategic Development - 
Cease Later Years Service  

ASCH 16 % of 239 No statutory requirement for this includes team and financial 
support to Third Age Centre including the Suhana Project. 
Partnerships - Southampton Partnership and the Later Years 
Partnership 

School purchasing behaviour 
support services 

CSL 6 % of 175 A smaller service with less capacity - more of the service 
users are boys than girls. 

Reorganisation of services to 
children, young people and 
families from across the 
Directorate 

CSL 10 % of 703 Risk of less progress in tackling differential outcomes for boys 
and girls in attainment. 

Grants to voluntary 
organisations 

LSCS 13 % of 450 Impact dependent on final recommendations – appraisal of 
grant applications currently underway and IAs will be 
completed on the recommendations to Cabinet in new year. 

 
Cumulative Impact of budget proposals on gender 

 
Background 
1. The Equality Act came into force on Friday, 1 October 2010.  The Act consolidates, harmonises and expands upon 

existing discrimination law.  It provides a new cross-cutting and unifying legislative framework that applies to 
discrimination, harassment and victimisation on grounds of disability, gender and race, and six other characteristics: 
age, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, religion or belief, and sexual 
orientation.  This is to: 

• protect the rights of individuals and advance equality of opportunity for all;  

• update, simplify and strengthen the previous legislation;  

• deliver a simple, modern and accessible framework of discrimination law which protects individuals from unfair 
treatment and promotes a fair and more equal society. 

 
Demographics 
2. Southampton city’s gender split of the working age population (between 16-64 years old) is fairly evenly 

proportioned between men and women, with most recent estimates showing there are slightly more men (51.43%) 
than women (48.56%).  This gap is closing with the younger population (0-15 year olds) made up of 50.49% boys 
and 49.56% of girls.  These proportions are dramatically reversed however within the older population (65+), with 
the trend of an ageing population, women’s average life expectancy of 82.1 years old being much higher than 

Appendix 16



 2

men’s (average 75.6 year’s old). In reality, this means that the eldest 6-10% of the population have a much higher 
proportion of women than men and is likely to continue to rise for the foreseeable future. 

3. There are limited direct cumulative impacts of service reduction on the women of Southampton as proposals are 
more individual in their nature.   

 
Possible impacts include 
4. Safety: The reduction of the night time transport services such as fewer night bus marshals, impact of reduction in 

grants budgets and community safety review may have an impact on supporting women experiencing domestic 
violence and reduced community safety services in the voluntary sector may decrease women’s perception of 
safety in the city. 

5. Older women: A large proportion of proposed health cuts are likely to impact on the elderly population.  The higher 
proportion of older women than men in later years is supported by the fact that adult social care female clients over 
65 are more than double of men.  Therefore the majority of cuts to health services such as, Day Care, meals on 
wheels and ceasing of Later Years team and partnership are likely to have a greater impact on elderly women than 
men. Women accessing mental health services can be particularly vulnerable in mixed settings. 

6. Supporting families: There are also some services that are more likely to be accessed by women than men either in 
their continued traditional position as primary carers for children or that they are carers for others although this 
needs further investigation.  There are a number of prevention and inclusion budget cuts proposed such as family 
support workers, education welfare and educational psychologists for example that may potentially have a greater 
negative impact on women through their access to these services and the impact on a particular child, other siblings 
or a cared for adult. Third and private sector contracts for prevention may to be reduced which will have further 
negative impact on women with families or dependents. 

 
Mitigation: 
7. Monitoring and analysis to identify if trends signify if there is greater usage of the services by women and any likely 

impact. Consultation has already taken place with social care users and anyone who feels they have to refuse care 
because of the impact of the additional cost will be assessed and support provided to meet eligible need. Any user 
or carer of day services currently who considers they will be adversely affected will be assessed and support 
provided where eligible need is found to exist 

8. The majority of hospital admissions are people over 65, with a disproportional number of people over 85 (and 
therefore also disproportionately more women).  Most patients prefer to be at home if they do not need acute 
hospital care and will be more able to make their long term decisions about care in a known setting with maximum 
independence. 

9. Ensure that the city wide single comprehensive needs assessment considers the particular gender related needs 
are identified and supported within the GP Consortia commissioning 

10. Consider and encourage alternative options for delivery of these services such as shared services, pooled budgets 
or voluntary sector delivery.   

11. Use communication campaign to support a safer women campaign and raise awareness of where support available 
for women at risk and initiatives such as car/taxi sharing. Alternative routes and timetables are available but need to 
highlight that safety is paramount. 

12. Raise key issues for women, especially later years, at Safe City Partnership, Children’s Trust and Health and Well 
Being Partnership.  The continued arrangement for an older people’s champion will maintain the profile of older 
people’s needs. 

13. Almost all customers of meals on wheels are over 65.  If the customer wishes to withdraw from the service due to 
the increased cost, a care management review will be implemented and alternative care arrangements put in place 
if an eligible care need is identified as a result of the service change. 

14. Undertake an analysis with partners to consider the long-term cost implications of reduced preventative work for 
public services given the greater life expectancy of women. 

 
Next step: 
15. A joint discussion between the relevant Heads of Service or their nominated representatives on the potential 

cumulative impact and mitigating actions: Action: Jane Brentor, Alison Alexander and Jon Dyer-Slade  
 



  1

Cumulative Impact Assessment - Race, Ethnicity and Religion  
 

This cumulative impact assessment needs to be read in conjunction with the IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT SUMMARY FOR 2011/12 BUDGET PROPOSALS which provides more detail of 
individual proposals and the actions that will be taken to mitigate their effects. 

 
Item Portfolio Cumulative  

total in Yr 3 
(£'000) 

 

Comment 

Review of contracted Day 
Care services 

ASCH9 % of 400 People from BME Communities may be less likely to access 
these services.  However all people with Fair Access to Care 
assessments will receive a personal budget and be able to find 
alternative BME sensitive solution to meet their needs. 
 
People with particular religious beliefs prefer to be gender 
specific in their access requirements. 

Review the level of funding 
for voluntary organisations 
where service is non 
statutory. 

ASCH 14 % of 776 Overall reduction in Mental Health services would limit access 
to services for people from BME communities and those who 
face multiple discrimination are more likely to access voluntary 
sector specialist Mental Health services and accessing 
mainstream activities is not always an option due to stigma.  

Cease provision of Later 
Years Service and support to 
Later Years Partnership 

ASCH 16 % of 239 This budget helps fund the Third Age Centre, including the 
Suhana Asian Elders Drop in Centre. The Suhana Centre 
provides services to people from Asian communities and from 
specific religious beliefs. 

Reorganisation of services to 
children, young people and 
families from across the 
Directorate 

CSL10 703 Limited impact due to all services being refocused.  Less 
vulnerable children, young people and families might 
experience a reduction in generic services such as 
information, advice and guidance, youth support. 

Review scope and delivery of 
Private Sector Housing 
Service based on statutory 
responsibilities 

HOU 6 % of 54 Although evidence shows that people from BME communities 
are more likely to live in unsafe private housing, these people 
will be able to continue to access statutory services.  
Landlords from BME Communities access the landlord liaison 
services but stopping these services is not considered to have 
a disproportionate effect on people from BME communities.   

Review of the remaining 
communities service and 
consolidation with other 
neighbourhood services 
combined with a significant 
scaling back of service. 

LSCS 11 % of 98 Reduced capacity to deal with hate crime, harassment and 
community tension incidents. 

Reduction in the amount of 
grant provision available. 

LS&CS 13 % of 450 Impact is dependent on the final recommendations – appraisal 
of grant applications is currently underway and impact 
assessments will need to be completed on the 
recommendations to Cabinet in the New Year. 

 
Cumulative Impact of Proposals on Black and Minority Ethnic Communities: 
 
Background 
1. The Equality Act came into force on 1 October 2010.  The Act consolidates, harmonises and expands upon existing 

discrimination law.  It provides a new cross-cutting and unifying legislative framework that applies to discrimination, 
harassment and victimisation on grounds of disability, gender and race, and six other characteristics: age, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, religion or belief, and sexual 
orientation.  This is to: 
• protect the rights of individuals and advance equality of opportunity for all;  
• update, simplify and strengthen the previous legislation;  
• deliver a simple, modern and accessible framework of discrimination law which protects individuals from unfair 

treatment and promotes a fair and more equal society. 
 

Appendix 17



  2

Demographics 
2. The BME community represented 7.6% of the overall population of Southampton according to the 2001 Census.  

The most recent estimates (2007) indicate that the BME community has increased and now represents 11.9% of 
the population of Southampton.  This is 27,600 people. There are a small number of proposals that would directly 
impact on BME communities in Southampton.  Many of the proposals that will impact on the BME community, if 
approved, would also have a negative impact on a range of people from other communities across Southampton.  
These proposals would impact on young and old alike from BME communities impacting on areas as diverse as 
health, education and culture.  

 
Areas of significance 
Voluntary Sector Funding 
3. Evidence contained within an Integrated Impact Assessment identifies that people from BME communities are more 

likely to access voluntary sector provision. There is local evidence to demonstrate problems with people accessing 
statutory services.  Therefore, the cumulative impact of reducing funding for the voluntary and community sector 
could be more significant for BME communities.    

 
Other Factors to Consider: 
4. The cumulative impact of these proposals needs to be considered alongside other factors that may impact on BME 

communities in Southampton.  These include: 
• National changes to public services and welfare benefits  
• Southampton City Council budget saving proposals relating to older people, disabled people and young people 
• Final recommendations on budget savings proposals that reduce services/grants to voluntary organisations that are 

delivered to communities within wards where there is a high BME population.  In the 2001 Census the wards with the 
highest BME populations were Bevois (30.3%) and Bargate (11.9%).   

• Detailed implementation plans for the budget proposals in CSL and ASCH when a more detailed analysis of the 
impact of reductions is known.   
 

Next step: 
 
A joint discussion between the relevant Heads of Service or their nominated representatives on the potential impact and 
any mitigating action 
 
Action: Jane Brentor, Stephanie Ramsey, Paul Nugent, Alison Alexander and Jon Dyer-Slade  



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY FOR 2011/12 BUDGET PROPOSALS 

Impact Assessment Summary 

 Portfolio 
ref 

Description of item Impact/ issues £ in 2011/12 
(‘000) 

Head of 
Division  

Potential impact  Mitigating action  

1. ASCH 1 Contract Efficiencies Saving to be made through building in an efficiency 
target within the 11/12 inflation increase to all 
providers of both care and advice services. 
Dependant on the care type the level of saving could 
be between 1% and 2.5%. This also includes savings 
from the LD Framework contract for Residential care 
increased from the 2010/11 target. 

565 Stephanie 
Ramsey 

Gender and Poverty:  Current levels of service delivery options 
to meet eligible need will be maintained, given reduction in 
available national resource level and maintaining jobs within the 
local economy. Other social care local authorities are also 
doing the same to enable the balance in the market to be 
maintained. The Government has alerted all public sector 
financed provision to prepare for reductions and this has 
enabled providers to anticipate and plan for cost reductions. The 
workforce within Adults Social Care provision in the City is 
mainly female and therefore it is possible that provider decisions 
about managing delivery of a 0% inflation may have an effect on 
wages through no increases.   

In mitigation the individual businesses will be consulted 
and any other service developments will be shared with 
them to encourage tender applications without 
jeopardising commercial sensitivity. Information has 
already been shared with many agencies, including many 
domiciliary care agencies, to enable preparation for the 
potential impacts from staff and others.  
Our care management and quality standards set baseline 
levels of care and support to be provided, this provides a 
level of guarantee regarding quality of provision. 

2. ASCH2 Adult Disability Care 
Services 

Set up a comprehensive health and social care 
provision, (Virtual Ward) to provide crisis and 
emergency support to people who would otherwise 
require hospitalisation.   

100 Jane Brentor Age and Disability: This will have a positive effect on older 
people enabling them to stay in their own home rather than be 
admitted. There will be a higher proportion of over 85s needing 
this service although this is not anticipated to be a 
disproportionately higher number. The council has been 
consistent in having zero delays to discharge and it is 
anticipated that this will be maintained.  

The mitigation will be through the expansion of the re-
ablement service to enable all assessed users to benefit 
from the services. 
 

3. ASCH 9 Review of contracted Day 
Care services 

A review of quantity of Day Care contracted to reflect 
Fair Access to Care activity and increasing take up of 
Self Directed Support. 

400 Stephanie 
Ramsey 

Gender, Age, Disability and Race: Overall reduction in alcohol 
and mental health service levels will reduce ability to respond to 
a range of diversity issues: 
 
• Women accessing mental health services sometimes prefer 

to specify the gender of their key worker and the ability to 
respond to this is considered best practice. 

• People from BME communities may be less likely to 
access these services. However, all people with FACS 
eligible needs will receive a personal budget and be able to 
find alternative BME sensitive solutions to meet their needs .  

• People with particular religious beliefs prefer to be gender 
specific in their access requirements. 

• Some services – the Day centre and Heavy Drinkers Unit 
have traditionally offered services to older drinkers who do 
not access other services 

• People with serious alcohol problems often develop long 
term health conditions and social issues. Limiting access to 
services as early as possible (e.g. through the Day Centre) 
may increase the likelihood of people developing more 
serious problems and requiring more intensive/expensive 
support. Some service provision targets people who are 
particularly vulnerable (Day Centre, Heavy Drinkers Unit) or 
who have a variety of problems and act as a gateway to 
other services. Services for people with alcohol problems are 
limited so any further reduction will have additional impact. 
Closure of the Day Centre Services will remove a gateway to 
services for a hard to reach group and it is likely that many 
will not access a service at all. 

 
 
 

Joint work with the police and other agencies may be able 
to reduce some impact, subject to resources being 
available for this level of public nuisance. People with 
serious/chronic problems would need to be picked up by 
Health and Social Care teams – though this would have 
impact on other resources and budgets. Services will 
continue to try and respond to requests but compliance 
may have to be based on need and risk levels.  

Revisions to the Homelessness grant and the refocusing 
of the priorities of the Street Homelessness Prevention 
Team present opportunities to take mitigating action 
relating to the impact on street drinkers.  
 
Those with eligible needs will be offered a personal 
budget and supported to secure appropriate solutions that 
meet their needs in culturally and age appropriate ways.  
 
People with serious & chronic problems  will continue to 
be able to access assessment and those with FACS 
eligible needs will have them met but responses to those 
not deemed eligible will be a partnership approach based 
upon need and risk levels  
 
Any changes that result in either a specific reduction or 
the reprovision of current services through an offer of an 
alternative will  need (be)  monitoring during the first year  
of implementation to establish  whether there have been 
any particular  changes in the profile of demand.   For all 
existing and potential users of Local authority social care 
services, assessments can be requested  as a service 
 regardless of whether an individual has eligible needs  . 
 

Any user or carer of services currently who considers they 

A
p
p
e

n
d
ix

 1
8



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY FOR 2011/12 BUDGET PROPOSALS 

 Portfolio 
ref 

Description of item Impact/ issues £ in 2011/12 
(‘000) 

Head of 
Division  

Potential impact  Mitigating action  

will be adversely affected will be assessed and support 
provided where eligible need is found to exist. 
 
The council is undertaking an advice and information 
service review and this impact will be considered within 
that review. 
 
Providers will be advised of alternative service 
developments where this is commercially possible (as 
these become available). 
 
Information on the government’s Transition Fund has 
already been made available to the voluntary sector. 

4. ASCH 12 Review of Meals on Wheels 
service. 

Review options for the provision of meals service 
including making the services self funding and/or 
transfer to City Catering. There will be an increase in 
the charge per meal. There are currently 600 service 
users this will affect. 

45 Jane Brentor Age, Gender and Disability: Almost all customers of meals on 
wheels are over 65.  The majority of customers are either 
disabled or have age related frailty. There are a higher number 
of female customers as females tend to live longer.  

 

Any individuals withdrawing because of cost will be 
offered an assessment which will cover both MCA and 
DOLS and those with eligible needs will benefit from a 
service offer and those not offered a service will be able to 
receive advice and information about alternatives to the 
existing MOW services. 

5. ASCH 14 Review the level of funding 
for voluntary organisations 
where service is non 
statutory. 

All voluntary sector contracts which are identified as 
providing non statutory preventative services are 
included and will be ended. The loss of these 
services will impact on later costs where early 
intervention would have reduced service need. 
 
 

776 Stephanie 
Ramsey 

Gender, Age, Disability and Race: Anyone with eligible needs 
will be able to access advocacy and support as part of the 
personalisation process. It is the general advocacy services 
either providing duplicated services or not linked or providing 
support to those not meeting eligibility criteria that may be 
reduced or withdrawn.  

Specialist Mental Health services (both statutory and voluntary) 
can provide a safe environment for people who face multiple 
discrimination. Overall reduction in services would limit access to 
services: 
• Women accessing mental health services can be particularly 

vulnerable in mixed settings. People from some religious and 
faith communities prefer to access gender specific services. 
Some voluntary sector provision includes women only 
services – reduction in voluntary sector contracts will remove 
this provision. 

• People from BME communities and those who face multiple 
discrimination are more likely to access voluntary sector 
specialist Mental Health services and accessing mainstream 
activities is not always an option due to stigma.  

• Reducing access to mental health services generally will 
impact on a disability group who are known to experience 
prejudice and stigma from the general public. Some service 
provision targets people who are particularly vulnerable 
(Mayfield nursery) and it would be difficult to provide 
alternative provision.  

 
A significant proportion of the people receiving day care services 
under consideration are physically disabled or vulnerable 

Individual organisations can apply for grant support to 
continue with their services , they can advertise and 
publicise their services  so that users who have FACs 
eligible need and consequent personal budgets can buy 
their services from them as organisations.  
 
Use of personal Budgets to provide services in a different 
way – dependent on people meeting eligibility criteria and 
under pinning services 
Community Mental Health teams will pick up people with 
serious problems/risk – though this will impact on other 
services and budgets 
Assessments will be undertaken on people accessing 
services which are to close to identify on-going need – 
though this may reduce savings achieved  
 

6. ASCH 16 Cease provision of Later 
Years Service and support 
to Later Years Partnership 

There is no statutory requirement for this work. This 
saving will impact 100% on the Councils Later Years 
team and the financial support provided to the Third 
Age Centre including the Suhana Project. 

239 Stephanie 
Ramsey 

Age and Race: The Suhana Centre provides services to people 
from Asian communities and from specific religious beliefs. Most 
of the users of the Suhana Centre are older people. It is 
proposed that the service could be self managing but the impact 

As part of the consultation, advice will be given about 
access to alternative funding where appropriate. It is 
expected that if the service can become self managing, 
these religious beliefs can continue to be supported. The 



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY FOR 2011/12 BUDGET PROPOSALS 

 Portfolio 
ref 

Description of item Impact/ issues £ in 2011/12 
(‘000) 

Head of 
Division  

Potential impact  Mitigating action  

of no Council funding is likely to be negative. The support 
provided to the Later Years Partnership is specifically to promote 
the profile of older people. As the work of the Later Years 
Partnership is focused on older people, it is possible that the 
work of the Partnership and the Suhana Centre may impact on 
people with physical disabilities related to older age although this 
is not universally the case. 

continued arrangement for an older people’s champion 
will maintain the profile of older people’s needs. 
Where disability causes people to have an eligible need 
for social care they will be entitled to support in identifying 
how that care can be met. 

7. CSL 5 Restructure of Infrastructure 
Division 

Amalgamation of four teams within the Infrastructure 
Division to create a new structure to best support the 
development of the Children's Services estate, in the 
light of the cancellation of BSF and the school 
expansion required due to the increase in school 
aged children forecast over the next ten years 

150 Karl Limbert None: No identified negative or positive consequence for service 
users. 

Not applicable 

8. CSL 6 School purchasing 
behaviour support services 

School Behaviour Support Team to be funded from 
charges for work done with children on schools' 
behalf.   Schools will have a choice about whether to 
buy the service.  Low take up would result in 
redundancies in the team. 

175 Alison 
Alexander 

Gender: A smaller service with less capacity could impact on the 
number of interventions delivered to young boys - as more 
service users are boys.   

A business unit has been developed and schools will be 
able to purchase the service level they require.  

9. CSL 9 Youth Support Data and performance-led targeting of youth 
resource to allow a reduction of 25% in the numbers 
of Personal Advisors and Youth Support Workers 
currently providing informal youth work, information, 
advice and guidance, and reduction of service where 
underused or unused. 

530 Alison 
Alexander 

Age: Fewer young people receiving generic youth services. Refocused service targeting vulnerable young people.   

10. CSL 10 Reorganisation of services 
to children, young people 
and families from across the 
Directorate 

Reduction and realignment in the number of locality 
teams from three to two plus other services.  This will 
minimise management, overheads and admin as a 
result of moving from three to two localities and 
merging other functions such as training with the 
broader Directorate budget.  A reduction in 
practitioner posts including Youth Support Workers, 
Family Support Workers, Personal Advisors and 
Specialist Support workers.   

703 Alison 
Alexander 

Age, Gender, Race and Disability: limited impact due to all 
services being refocused.  Less vulnerable children, young 
people and families might experience a reduction in generic 
services such as information, advice and guidance, youth 
support.  

Service will be more focussed to respond to vulnerable 
children, young people and families.   

11. CSL 11 Prevention services 
provided by the third and 
private sector 

Realign service provision into two multi-disciplinary 
locality teams as opposed to three, minimising 
management, services and supplies, administration 
and workforce development.  In additional there will 
be a minimal reduction in practitioner posts including 
Youth Support Workers, Family Support Workers, 
Specialist Support workers and Inclusion workers.  

600 Alison 
Alexander 

Age, Gender, Race and Disability: Impact will be on vulnerable 
children, young people and families.   
 
 

Refocus prevention services delivered by the local 
authority to provide support to those vulnerable children, 
young people and families.   
Contract reduction has been focused on areas of low 
usage or service which anticipated funding reductions.  

12. CSL 13 Revision of funding 
arrangements for city 
orchestras, choirs and 
bands currently run by the 
Music Service 

Reduction in staffing and in services and supplies. 
The establishment of a Southampton Music Trust led 
by an external partner is also being explored in detail. 

160 Paul Nugent Minimal impact based on assessment of service users’ ability to 
financially contribute to the cost of the service.  

Seeking new sources of external income and sponsorship 
to minimise additional cost to vulnerable children and 
young people. 

13. CSL New Reduction in Commissioning 
team 

Reduction in Commissioning team in line with 
streamlining of business need 

56 Alison 
Alexander 

No impact assessed  Not applicable 

14. E&T 33 Increased burial fees Increase of 6.6% in burial fees will increase the cost 
above the average. 

45 Liz Marsh Poverty: Potential negative impact in that raising the burial fees 
will increase the financial burden on the deceased’s estate or the 
relatives of the deceased.  

The Council will provide a welfare funeral for people who 
die without relatives or an estate.   

15. E&T 44 Reduction in bus subsidies 
affecting the 8/8A service, 

Some services could be withdrawn by the bus 
operators if they will not operate the services without 

90 Paul Nichols Age, Disability and Safety: Dial-a-ride is often used by older 
more frail members of society, by people who are unable to use 

Alternative bus services are available for some or a 
change of buses may be necessary to complete the 



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY FOR 2011/12 BUDGET PROPOSALS 

 Portfolio 
ref 

Description of item Impact/ issues £ in 2011/12 
(‘000) 

Head of 
Division  

Potential impact  Mitigating action  

dial-a-ride, night bus 
marshals, the no 5 Sunday 
service, some city night 
buses and the no 7A service 

a subsidy. The capacity of dial-a ride is reduced, 
following recent declines in patronage.   

conventional buses and Night buses and marshals assist in 
dispersal from the city centre at night which contributes to 
community safety. However, the reduction in Dial-a-ride reflects 
reduced demand and the reduction in Bus Marshalls will not 
affect the Night Bus services. .  

journey. A service would still be available and some users 
may need to be more flexible on their journey time or 
share the minibus.  Night buses allow people to leave the 
city centre safely at night and the provision of marshals at 
stops help with safe boarding – users could share taxis to 
limit the cost increase compared to the bus fare. 

16. E&T 51 Removal of concessions for 
disabled drivers using the 
Itchen Bridge 

Introduces a one toll for all approach 25 Mick Bishop Disability: Many people with disabilities rely on their car for 
transport and do not have the option of public transport. 
However, the impact is considered negligible (Northam Bridge 
alternative route is also possible, though not as convenient). 

This will bring the council in line with standard practice in 
other areas as many local authorities do not provide 
concessions for tolls for these groups. 

17. E&T 58 Reduction in customer 
engagement, education and 
awareness work, including 
support for residents, 
schools and behaviour 
changes initiatives.   

Reduced provision of information to residents on 
contamination of recycling bins, support for 
increasing participation in recycling and contributions 
to community events or national campaigns. 

67 Andrew Trayer Some reduction in the level of support provided to residents on 
how to recycle and reduce waste contamination with the loss of 
staff resource in this area. 

Other forms of targeted communication and information 
will be provided instead. 

18. E&T 59 Charging for green waste 
collection service 

Probable adverse customer reaction to charges with 
reductions in the use of the new service.  Recycling 
rate could decrease and green waste could end up in 
residual waste stream. 

30 Andrew Trayer Introducing a cost for the green waste service may adversely 
affect those on lower incomes.   

Many authorities charge for green waste collection and 
this will contribute towards the costs of the service.  The 
provision of a wheeled bin will enable more green waste 
to be recycled.  For those who cannot afford to recycle 
green waste, can place it is the residual waste wheeled 
bin. 

19. E&T 60 Reduction in the amount of 
DIY waste that is allowed to 
be disposed off at the Civic 
Amenity site. 

Cap on the amount of DIY waste that can be 
disposed of at the Civic Amenity site. Residents with 
large amounts of DIY waste for disposal will be 
helped with information on alternative methods of 
disposal. Possible adverse publicity and increases in 
fly tipping 

10 Andrew Trayer Should assist in reducing residual waste disposal costs. Monitor any adverse impacts on flytipping and in there are 
any adverse effects, consider mitigating action. 

20. HOU 2 Introduction of charges to  
Housing Associations for 
Housing Register / 
nominations 

Aim to fully recover costs from Housing Associations. 
Proposal also to be discussed on a PUSH wide basis 

25 Barbara 
Compton 

Age and Disability: If landlords are charged to go on the 
housing register they may advertise elsewhere. Older people 
and those with disabilities rely more on eth council’s housing 
resister (Homebid) and it therefore may be difficult for these 
groups to access the full range of housing available to them.  

Partnership working with partner RSLs 

21. HOU 6 Review scope and delivery 
of Private Sector Housing 
Service based on statutory 
responsibilities 

Removing all non statutory functions 54 Barbara 
Compton 

Race, Age and Disability: No evidence that this will have a 
negative impact. Although evidence shows that people from 
BME communities and older people are more likely to live in 
unsafe private housing, these people will be able to continue to 
access statutory services.  Landlords from BME Communities 
access the landlord liaison services but stopping these services 
is not considered to have a disproportionate effect on people 
from BME communities.  Evidence contained in the Private 
Sector Stock Condition Survey carried out by the Council in 2008 
(sample survey in which 1,500 private homes were surveyed and 
data collected on socio economic characteristics of occupiers). 
 
Fuel Poverty work is targeted at older and vulnerable people and 
the accreditation scheme for student properties impacts on 
younger people.  There may be an increase in properties in poor 
condition in the City which tend to be targeted by crime and anti-
social behaviour.  Fuel poverty and poor housing can impact on 
health and well being. 
 

Ethnicity of service users and landlords will continue to be 
monitored and assessed against data on ethnicity in 
Southampton’s communities to ensure there are no 
unforeseen negative impacts. Work to promote assistance 
in communities that have a lower than expected take up of 
services will continue.  
 
The adaptations programme will be maintained, so older 
and disabled people on low incomes living in private 
homes will be able to access financial support for carrying 
out essential adaptations. The service has a robust 
prioritisation scheme in place for all new service requests 
which ensures that those in greatest need receive a swift 
and effective response. This will mitigate against the 
negative impact, as older people are most likely to be 
vulnerable for the particular hazard under investigation 
(e.g. excess cold), which means that they will be treated 
as a priority case.  Cases where there is an imminent risk 
to health & safety will continue to be dealt with the same 
day (Mon-Fri).   
 



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY FOR 2011/12 BUDGET PROPOSALS 

 Portfolio 
ref 

Description of item Impact/ issues £ in 2011/12 
(‘000) 

Head of 
Division  

Potential impact  Mitigating action  

The Council will work with the Universities and other 
stakeholders to develop a suitable alternative to the 
accreditation scheme for student properties that can be 
sustained without support from the Council. This is likely 
to involve increased self-regulation by responsible 
landlords and letting agents. 
 
Capacity will be maintained to bid for external funding to 
tackle fuel poverty and vulnerable customers will be 
signposted to external support where possible. 
 
Continue to work with the Police and other crime 
prevention advice and ensure entry by intruders hazard is 
dealt with where the team has a duty to respond to  
complaints about poor housing conditions. 

22. LCH 5 Implementation of 3 year 
library strategy 

Range of efficiency proposals to reduce time spent 
on non customer facing work. Changes in methods of 
working will be deployed, including reviewing non-
essential back office and other services 

246 Mike Harris Age and Disability: Reduction in variety of materials could 
affect people with a visual impairment e.g. reduction in audio 
books and large print many of whom may be older people.  
Reduction in number of up to date computer for local people 
studying, doing homework, applying for jobs with no computer 
facilities at home 

Continue to target expenditure on materials most used 
and/or most requested. Focus on reducing duplicate items 
so that they will be available within the service, but may 
need to be requested from other branches in the city. 
Audio/visual material is experiencing a reduction in 
demand, opportunities to develop download opportunities 
from within the service are being investigated. 
 
The Library service is developing Wi-Fi opportunities, to 
reduce demand on the “in-house” PCs.  The budget will 
be retained to replace PCs where heavy demand/usage 
shows that wear and tear requires earlier replacement. 
The key issue for customers has been the speed of the 
lines, rather than the PCs themselves, and the service is 
seeking to address this separately. 

23. LSCS 2 Review and re-organise the 
parks & street cleansing 
management, technical & 
support activities and 
undertake an options 
appraisal for the future 
delivery of the service. 

The parks & street cleansing management, technical 
& support team functions would see a reduction in 
staff costs of at least 25%. The proposal also 
encompasses working with Bereavement Services to 
integrate the management and delivery of the 
Cemeteries Service to achieve shared savings for 
both the Neighbourhood Services and Environment 
Divisions, however it is anticipated that this saving is 
in addition to the Environment saving.  The full 
staffing impact of the complete review is not known at 
this time and the staffing numbers quoted relate to 
2011/12 only. 

72 Jon Dyer-
Slade 

Cohesion, Safety and H&WB: Reduced capacity to develop 
and support ‘Friends’ and volunteer groups and actively engage 
local communities in the care of their local environment. 
Reduced capacity to carry out educational, enforcement and 
campaigning activities to safeguard or improve standards of 
environmental cleanliness. National research indicates 
neighbourhoods with low levels of cleanliness suffer from 
correspondingly higher levels of criminality and ASB (’broken 
windows’ theory). Reduced capacity to promote and develop role 
of quality green spaces in contributing to community and 
individual health and well-being 

Re-focus work of Park Rangers team on developing and 
supporting growth of new Friends groups and on 
developing healthy activities within the city’s parks and 
green spaces, with a particular emphasis on involving 
users more directly in their ongoing care and 
maintenance. Continue to engage with existing bodies 
and further develop existing links with internal and 
external partners to maximise available capacity. Increase 
levels of knowledge within remaining members of parks & 
street cleansing team, and develop individual areas of 
specialism. Retain a limited provision to buy in specialist 
advice or knowledge as required. Continue to work closely 
with other teams with similar objectives to pool resources 
and expertise and maximise impact of enforcement 
activities. Further develop existing links with internal and 
external partners (e.g. NHS, Communities Team, 
Groundwork Solent) to promote the value of green spaces 
in improving local indicators of health and well-being. 

24. LSCS 3 Review and re-structure 
parks & street cleansing ‘out 
of hours’ service delivery 
arrangements and 
undertake an options 
appraisal for the future 

Reduction in levels of staff overtime working with 
carefully targeted schedules and resource allocations 
to focus on maintaining current levels of care and 
cleanliness in high-demand areas such as the city 
centre and central parks, and district centres and 
district parks. 

50 Jon Dyer-
Slade 

Safety and Economy: More visible presence in city’s public 
spaces outside of current core working hours contributes to 
public reassurance and this proposal could have an impact on 
this. However, the proposals safeguard provision of an adequate 
and effective street cleansing service in the city centre and 
district centres outside of core working hours. 

Purpose of re-designing present service delivery 
arrangements is to enshrine a broader and more 
economic and responsive ‘out of hours’ parks and street 
cleansing service within future work schedules and 
contractual conditions, rather than relying on overtime 
arrangements currently in place. 



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY FOR 2011/12 BUDGET PROPOSALS 

 Portfolio 
ref 

Description of item Impact/ issues £ in 2011/12 
(‘000) 

Head of 
Division  

Potential impact  Mitigating action  

delivery of the service. 

25. LSCS 5 Undertake a major cross 
council review of CCTV to 
deliver efficiencies and 
reduce costs 

Undertake a major service review to develop options 
for appraisal in terms of the current CCTV operation 
and related services.  The full staffing impact of the 
complete review is not known at this time and the 
staffing numbers quoted relate to 2011/12 only. 

36 Jon Dyer-
Slade 

None: This will impact on one post and will not have any service 
impact in 2011/12 

Not applicable  

26. LSCS 8 Close the Bargate, 
Kingsland and Woolston 
public toilets. Secure 
additional sponsorship to 
provide a new automatic 
public toilet to replace 
existing provision in Bitterne. 
Explore alternative provision 
in Portswood & Woolston 

There are a number of alternative public toilet 
providers in the city centre. Communication of 
alternatives and closure notices will be required, and 
work will be undertaken with private sector partners 
to develop a new cost efficient alternative provision 
within the District Centres 

60 Jon Dyer-
Slade 

Age, Safety and Disability: Reduced immediate availability of 
toilet provision for more elderly citizens. Among this 
demographic there is a higher percentage of people who may 
suffer from a frequent and urgent need for toilet facilities. 
Reduced immediate availability of toilet provision for parents 
shopping with babies or young children that may require toilet or 
nappy changing facilities.   
Reduced immediate availability of specifically designed toilet 
provision, and reduced provision for those suffering from health 
conditions that require a consistent and immediate access to 
toilet facilities. 

Alternative toilet provision already exists in the city centre 
in West Quay, Marlands and Bargate shopping centres, 
the Parkafe and Civic Centre. There is a coin-operated 
Automatic Public Toilet in Pound Street. Work is still 
ongoing to identify alternative provision in Woolston, 
Bitterne and Portswood outside of local cafes and public 
houses. The provision of further Automatic Public Toilets 
under the arrangement with JC DeCaux is dependent on 
new advertising sites being identified and receiving 
Planning approval (15 panels per APT).  

27. LSCS 10 Undertake a comprehensive 
review of current community 
safety activity and related 
budgets. 

Undertake a major service review to develop options 
for appraisal in terms of future Safer Communities 
operational arrangements including potential further 
joint working with key partners including the Police, 
Hampshire Probation, other SCC teams and the Fire 
and Rescue Service. 

100 Jon Dyer-
Slade 

Age and Safety: Less young people will get early interventions 
for ASB; less anti-social behaviour contracts in place; in time 
potential increase in anti-social behaviour 
The remaining savings have a direct impact on community safety 
service delivery 

Work is already underway to identify alternative routes to 
support young people within reduced resources and 
across key partner agencies including the 3rd sector 
Communications work will shift to the SCC and police 
corporate communications teams; neighbourhood watch 
and community engagement will be the role of all Safer 
Communities staff. 

28. LSCS 11 Review of the remaining 
communities service and 
consolidation with other 
neighbourhood services 
combined with a significant 
scaling back of service. 

Redirection / reduction in the resources and support 
available to voluntary sector groups, management of 
community centres, community cohesion / equalities 
work and reduced support for resident associations 
and local community groups. 

98 Jon Dyer-
Slade 

Race, Disability and Age: Reduced capacity to deal with hate 
crime, harassment and community tension incidents 

Continuing the approach of moving towards a 
coordinating role, maximising input from partners 
agencies and focus on key tasks. Reshaping the team to 
ensure the council is able to respond to community 
tension incidents, while maximising joint working with the 
Police as well as developing capacity in the voluntary 
sector. 

29. LSCS 13 Reduction in the amount of 
grant provision available. 

Reductions targeted at the New Projects element of 
the grants and where funding reductions are 
proposed to previously funded organisations 
appropriate consultation and where appropriate 
notice periods will be required. 

450 Jon Dyer-
Slade 

Potentially Age, Disability, Race and Gender: Impact is 
dependent on the final recommendations – appraisal of grant 
applications is currently underway and impact assessments will 
need to be completed on the recommendations to Cabinet in the 
New Year.  

To be assessed 

 


	Agenda
	4 Housing Revenue Account Budget Report
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6

	5 General Fund Capital Programme - 2011/12 to 2013/14
	Appendix 1
	Appendix  2
	Appendix 3

	6 General Fund Revenue Budget - 2011/12 to 2013/14
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7
	Appendix 8
	Appendix 9
	Appendix 10
	Appendix 11
	Appendix 12
	Appendix 13
	Members' Room Document
	Members' Room Document
	Members' Room Document
	Members' Room Document
	Members' Room Document


